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This document (the "Base Prospectus™) constitutes a base prospectus in respect of Warrants and Certificates
issued under the Note, Warrant and Certificate Programme of BNP Paribas Issuance B.V. ("BNPP B.V.") and
BNP Paribas ("BNPP") (the "Programme"). Any W&C Securities (as defined below) issued on or after the date
of this Base Prospectus pursuant to Final Terms referencing this Base Prospectus are issued subject to the
provisions herein. This does not affect any W&C Securities issued before the date of this Base Prospectus. This
Base Prospectus constitutes a base prospectus for the purposes of Article 8 of the Prospectus Regulation.
"Prospectus Regulation" means Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 of 14 June 2017. This Base Prospectus received
approval no. 20-298 on 1 July 2020 from the Autorité des marchés financiers (the "AMF") and will be valid for
a period of one year following the date of its approval by the AMF. The obligation to supplement this Base
Prospectus in the event of a significant new factor, material mistake or material inaccuracy does not apply when
this Base Prospectus is no longer valid.

This Base Prospectus has been approved as a base prospectus by the AMF in France as competent authority under
the Prospectus Regulation. The AMF only approves this Base Prospectus as meeting the standards of
completeness, comprehensibility and consistency imposed by the Prospectus Regulation. Approval by the AMF
should not be considered as an endorsement of the Issuers or the Guarantor (each as defined below) or of the
quality of the W&C Securities. Investors should make their own assessment as to the suitability of investing in
the W&C Securities.

Upon such approval, application may be made for securities issued under the Programme during a period of 12
months from the date of this Base Prospectus to be listed and/or admitted to trading on Euronext Paris and/or a
Regulated Market (as defined below) in another Member State of the European Economic Area (the "EEA"™)
(which, for these purposes, includes the United Kingdom). Euronext Paris is a regulated market for the purposes
of the Markets in Financial Instruments Directive 2014/65/EU (each such regulated market being a "Regulated
Market"). Reference in this Base Prospectus to W&C Securities being "listed" (and all related references) shall
mean that such W&C Securities have been listed and admitted to trading on Euronext Paris or, as the case may
be, a Regulated Market (including the regulated market of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange (including the
professional segment of the regulated market of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange)) or on such other or further
stock exchange(s) as the relevant Issuer may decide. Each Issuer may also issue unlisted W&C Securities. The
applicable Final Terms (as defined below) will specify whether or not W&C Securities are to be listed and
admitted to trading and, if so, the relevant Regulated Market or other or further stock exchange(s).

The requirement to publish a prospectus under the Prospectus Regulation only applies to W&C Securities which
are to be admitted to trading on a regulated market in the EEA and/or offered to the public in the EEA other than
in circumstances where an exemption is available under Article 1(4) and/or 3(2) of the Prospectus Regulation



(and, for these purposes, references to the EEA include the United Kingdom). Each Issuer may issue W&C
Securities for which no prospectus is required to be published under the Prospectus Regulation ("Exempt
Securities") under this Base Prospectus. See "Exempt Securities" in the "Overview of this Base Prospectus"
section below. The AMF has neither approved nor reviewed information contained in this Base Prospectus in
connection with Exempt Securities.

Under the Programme each of BNPP B.V. and BNPP (the "Issuers" and each an "Issuer™), may from time to
time issue, inter alia, warrants ("Warrants") or certificates ("Certificates” and, together with the Warrants,
"W&C Securities") of any kind including, but not limited to, W&C Securities relating to a specified index or a
basket of indices, a specified share (including two or more shares which are attached to each other so that they
trade as a single unit ("Stapled Shares"), global depositary receipt ("GDR") or American depositary receipt
("ADR") or a basket of shares (including Stapled Shares), ADRs and/or GDRs, a specified interest in an exchange
traded fund, an exchange traded note, an exchange traded commodity or other exchange traded product (each an
"exchange traded instrument™) or a basket of interests in exchange traded instruments, a specified debt
instrument or a basket of debt instruments, a specified fund share or unit or basket of fund shares or units, a
specified entity or entities and any other types of W&C Securities including hybrid W&C Securities whereby the
underlying asset(s) may be any combination of such indices, shares, interests in exchange traded instruments,
debt, fund shares or units, or other asset classes or types. Each issue of the W&C Securities will be issued on the
terms set out herein which are relevant to such W&C Securities under "Terms and Conditions of the W&C
Securities” (the "Security Conditions™ or the "Conditions"). Notice of, inter alia, the specific designation of the
W&C Securities the number and type of the W&C Securities, the date of issue of the W&C Securities, the issue
price (if applicable), the underlying asset, index, fund, or other item(s) to which the W&C Securities relate, the
exercise period or date (in the case of Warrants), the redemption date (in the case of Certificates), whether they
are interest bearing, partly paid, redeemable in instalments (in the case of Certificates), exercisable (on one or
more exercise dates) (in the case of Certificates), whether the W&C Securities are eligible for sale in the United
States and certain other terms relating to the offering and sale of the W&C Securities will be set out in a final
terms document (the "Final Terms") which may be issued for more than one series of W&C Securities and will
be filed with the AMF. Copies of Final Terms in relation to W&C Securities to be listed on Euronext Paris will
also be published on the website of the AMF (www.amf-france.org). References herein to the Final Terms may
include, in the case of U.S. Securities (as defined below), (X) a supplement to the Base Prospectus under Article
23 of the Prospectus Regulation or (y) a prospectus.

W&C Securities related to a specified interest in an exchange traded instrument or basket of interests in exchange
traded instruments, a specified fund share or unit or basket of fund shares or units or hybrid W&C Securities
related to any of these asset classes or any commodity or commodity interest regulated by the United States
Commodity Futures Trading Commission (the "CFTC"), may not at any time be offered, sold, resold, held, traded,
pledged, exercised (in the case of Warrants), settled or redeemed (in the case of Certificates), transferred or
delivered, directly or indirectly, in the United States or to, by or for the account or benefit of, persons that are (i)
a "U.S. person” as defined in Regulation S under the Securities Act ("Regulation S™); or (ii) a person other than
a "Non-United States person” as defined in Rule 4.7 under the United States Commodity Exchange Act of 1936,
as amended (the "Commodity Exchange Act"); or (iii) a "U.S. person” as defined in the Interpretive Guidance
and Policy Statement Regarding Compliance with Certain Swap Regulations promulgated by the CFTC; or (iv)
any other "U.S. person" as such term may be defined in Regulation S or in regulations or guidance adopted under
the Commodity Exchange Act (each such person, a "U.S. person"), unless expressly provided for pursuant to any
applicable U.S. wrapper to the Base Prospectus. Any such applicable U.S. wrapper may restrict the types of W&C
Securities that can be offered, sold, resold, held, traded, pledged, exercised, redeemed, transferred or delivered
and the terms of such W&C Securities.

Neither the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") nor any state securities commission
has approved or disapproved of these securities or passed upon the accuracy of this prospectus. Any representation
to the contrary is a criminal offence. W&C Securities issued by BNPP B.V. will be guaranteed by BNP Paribas
(in such capacity, the "Guarantor") pursuant to a Deed of Guarantee (the "Guarantee™), the form of which is set
out herein.

Except in the case of U.S. Securities, each of BNPP B.V. and BNPP has a right of substitution as set out herein.
In the event that either BNPP B.V. or BNPP exercises its right of substitution, a supplement to the Base Prospectus
will be published on the website of the AMF (www.amf.france.org) and on the website of BNPP (https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/public/LegalDocs.aspx).

Each issue of W&C Securities will entitle the holder thereof on due exercise (in the case of Warrants) or on the
Instalment Date(s) and/or the Redemption Date (in the case of Certificates) (or, in the case of Multiple Exercise
Certificates, each Exercise Settlement Date) to receive a cash amount (if any) calculated in accordance with the
relevant terms, all as set forth herein and in the applicable Final Terms.


http://www.amf-france.org/
http://www.amf.france.org/

Other than in relation to the documents which are deemed to be incorporated by reference (see "Documents
Incorporated by Reference™ below), the information on the websites to which this Base Prospectus refers does not
form part of this Base Prospectus unless that information is incorporated by reference into the Base Prospectus
and has not been scrutinised or approved by the AMF.

Capitalised terms used in this Base Prospectus shall, unless otherwise defined, have the meanings set forth in the
Conditions.

Prospective purchasers of W&C Securities should ensure that they understand the nature of the relevant
W&C Securities and the extent of their exposure to risks and that they consider the suitability of the
relevant W&C Securities as an investment in the light of their own circumstances and financial condition.
W&C Securities are complex financial instruments and involve a high degree of risk and potential investors
should be prepared to sustain a total loss of the purchase price of their W&C Securities. There are
significant risks associated with holding W&C Securities, including risks in relation to the circumstances
in which W&C Securities may be written down or converted to ordinary shares and the implications on
prospective purchasers of W&C Securities (such as a substantial loss). The circumstances in which such
prospective purchasers may suffer loss as a result of holding W&C Securities are difficult to predict and
the quantum of any loss incurred by investors in such circumstances is also highly uncertain. For more
information, see ""Risks"" on pages 15 to 50.

Investors in Hong Kong should not purchase the W&C Securities in the primary or secondary markets
unless they are professional investors (as such term is defined in the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Cap. 571, Laws of Hong Kong) and its subsidiary legislation, "*Professional Investors™) and understand
the risks involved.

In particular, the W&C Securities and the Guarantee have not been, and will not be, registered under the
United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the *"Securities Act™), or any other applicable U.S. state
securities laws and trading in the W&C Securities has not been approved by the CFTC under the
Commodity Exchange Act. Neither Issuer has registered as an investment company pursuant to the United
States Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the "Investment Company Act'). Unless such
Securities are U.S. Securities as specified in the applicable Final Terms, the W&C Securities are being
offered and sold in reliance on Regulation S. No W&C Securities of such series, or interests therein, may
at any time be offered, sold, resold, held, traded, pledged, exercised, redeemed, transferred or delivered,
directly or indirectly, in the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, persons that are (i) a ""U.S.
person™ as defined in Regulation S ; (ii) a person other than a "*Non-United States person* as defined in
Rule 4.7 under the Commodity Exchange Act; (iii) a ""U.S. person™ as defined in the Interpretive Guidance
and Policy Statement Regarding Compliance with Certain Swap Regulations promulgated by the CFTC;
or (iv) any other ""U.S. person™ as such term may be defined in Regulation S or in regulations or guidance
adopted under the Commodity Exchange Act (each such person, a ""U.S. person'’). Any offer, sale, resale,
trade, pledge, exercise, transfer or delivery made, directly or indirectly, within the United States or to, or
for the account or benefit of, a U.S. person will not be recognised. The W&C Securities of such series may
not be legally or beneficially owned at any time by any U.S. person (as defined in the " Offering and Sale"'
section below) and accordingly are being offered and sold outside the United States to non-U.S. persons in
reliance on Regulation S and pursuant to CFTC regulations and guidance.

Certain issues of W&C Securities may also be offered and sold in the United States to persons reasonably
believed to be both qualified institutional buyers (""QIBs") as defined in Rule 144A under the Securities
Act (""Rule 144A™) and qualified purchasers ("'"QPs") as defined under the Investment Company Act.
Each purchaser of U.S. Securities within the United States is hereby notified that the offer and sale of such
Securities is being made in reliance upon an exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act.
For a description of certain further restrictions on offers and sales of the W&C Securities and on the distribution
of this Base Prospectus, see "Offering and Sale" below.

U.S. Securities will, unless otherwise specified in the Final Terms, be sold through BNP Paribas Securities Corp.,
a registered broker-dealer. See the Conditions below.

The Issuers have requested the AMF, in accordance with Article 25(1) of the Prospectus Regulation, to provide
the competent authorities in Luxembourg with a certificate of approval attesting that the Base Prospectus has been
drawn up in accordance with the Prospectus Regulation.

In the event that the applicable Final Terms specify that W&C Securities are eligible for sale in the United States
("U.S. Warrants" or "U.S. Certificates", as the case may be, and together, the "U.S. Securities"), (A) the W&C
Securities sold in the United States to QIBs who are QPs will be represented by one or more global Securities
(each, a "Rule 144A Global Security") issued and deposited with (1) a custodian for, and registered in the name
of a nominee of, The Depository Trust Company ("DTC") or (2) a common depositary on behalf of Clearstream
Banking, S.A. ("Clearstream, Luxembourg") or Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V. ("Euroclear") and/or any other
relevant clearing system and (B) W&C Securities sold outside the United States to non-U.S. persons will be
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represented by one or more global Securities (each, a "Regulation S Global Security") issued and deposited with
a common depositary on behalf of Clearstream, Luxembourg and Euroclear and/or any other relevant clearing
system and may not be legally or beneficially owned at any time by any U.S. person. In the event that the Final
Terms do not specify that W&C Securities are eligible for sale within the United States or to U.S. persons, the
W&C Securities offered and sold outside the United States to non-U.S. persons may not be legally or beneficially
owned at any time by any U.S. person and will be represented by a Clearing System Global Security or a
Registered Global Security, as the case may be. Such U.S. Securities will be subject to additional restrictions as
set forth in the applicable U.S. wrapper to the Base Prospectus, including restrictions on the types of Securities
that can be offered, sold, resold, held, traded, pledged, exercised, redeemed, transferred or delivered and the terms
of such Securities.

The securities described in this Base Prospectus may only be offered in the Netherlands to Qualified Investors (as
defined in the Prospectus Regulation).

BNPP B.V.'s long-term credit ratings are A+ with a negative outlook (S&P Global Ratings Europe Limited
("Standard & Poor's")) and BNPP B.V.'s short term credit ratings are A-1 (Standard & Poor's). BNPP's long-
term credit ratings are A+ with a negative outlook (Standard & Poor's), Aa3 with a stable outlook (Moody's
Investors Service Ltd. ("Moody’s")), AA- with a "rating watch negative" outlook (Fitch France S.A.S. ("Fitch
France")) and AA (low) with a stable outlook (DBRS Limited ("DBRS")) and BNPP's short-term credit ratings
are A-1 (Standard & Poor's), P-1 (Moody's), F1+ (Fitch France) and R-1 (middle) (DBRS). Each of Standard &
Poor's, Moody's, Fitch France and DBRS is established in the European Union or the United Kingdom and is
registered under the Regulation (EC) No. 1060/2009 (as amended) (the "CRA Regulation"). As such each of
Standard & Poor's, Moody's, Fitch France and DBRS is included in the list of credit rating agencies published by
the European Securities and Markets Authority on its website (at http://www.esma.europa.eu/page/List-
registered-and-certified-CRAS) in accordance with the CRA Regulation. W&C Securities issued under the
Programme may be rated or unrated. A security rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and
may be subject to suspension, reduction or withdrawal at any time by the assigning rating agency.

Notification under Section 309B(1)(c) of the Securities and Futures Act (Chapter 289) of Singapore, as
modified or amended from time to time (the "*SFA™) — Unless otherwise specified in the applicable Final Terms
in respect of any W&C Securities, all W&C Securities issued or to be issued under the Programme shall be capital
markets products other than prescribed capital markets products (as defined in the Securities and Futures (Capital
Markets Products) Regulations 2018 of Singapore) and Specified Investment Products (as defined in MAS Notice
SFA 04-N12: Notice on the Sale of Investment Products and MAS Notice FAA-N16: Notice on Recommendations
on Investment Products).

Guidance under the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (the ""HKMA") circular - In October 2018, the HKMA
issued a circular regarding enhanced investor protection measures on the sale and distribution of debt instruments
with loss-absorption features and related products (the "HKMA Circular"”). Under the HKMA Circular, debt
instruments with loss-absorption features, being subject to the possibility of being written-down or converted to
ordinary shares, and investment products that invest mainly in, or whose returns are closely linked to the
performance of such instruments (together, "Loss-Absorption Products™), may only be offered to professional
investors (as defined in the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws of Hong Kong) and its subsidiary
legislation, "Professional Investors") in Hong Kong. Unless otherwise specified in the applicable Final Terms in
respect of any W&C Securities, all W&C Securities issued or to be issued under the Programme contain loss-
absorption features and may be considered Loss-Absorption Products under the HKMA Circular. Investors in
Hong Kong should not purchase such W&C Securities with loss-absorption features unless they are
Professional Investors and understand the risks involved. Such W&C Securities are generally not suitable
for retail investors in Hong Kong in either the primary or the secondary markets.

IMPORTANT — EEA AND UK RETAIL INVESTORS - If the Final Terms in respect of any W&C Securities
specifies the "Prohibition of Sales to EEA and UK Retail Investors — Legend" as applicable, the W&C Securities
are not intended to be offered, sold or otherwise made available to and should not be offered, sold or otherwise
made available to any retail investor in the EEA or in the United Kingdom (the "UK"), other than in the
jurisdiction(s) for which a key information document will be made available. If the Final Terms in respect of any
W&C Securities specifies the "Prohibition of Sales to EEA and UK Retail Investors — Legend™ as not applicable,
the W&C Securities may be offered, sold or otherwise made available to any retail investor in the EEA or in the
UK, provided that, where a key information document is required pursuant to the PRIIPs Regulation (as defined
below), the W&C Securities may only be offered, sold or otherwise made available to retail investors in the EEA
or in the UK in the jurisdiction(s) for which a key information document will be made available. For these
purposes, a retail investor means a person who is one (or more) of: (i) a retail client as defined in point (11) of
Article 4(1) of Directive 2014/65/EU (as amended, "MIiFID I1'); (ii) a customer within the meaning of Directive
(EV) 2016/97 (as amended or superseded, the "Insurance Distribution Directive™), where that customer would



not qualify as a professional client as defined in point (10) of Article 4(1) of MIFID II; or (iii) not a qualified
investor as defined in the Prospectus Regulation. Consequently, no key information document required by
Regulation (EU) No 1286/2014 (the "PRIIPs Regulation™) for offering or selling the W&C Securities or
otherwise making them available to retail investors in the EEA or in the UK has been prepared, other than in
respect of the jurisdiction(s) for which a key information document will be made available, and therefore offering
or selling the W&C Securities or otherwise making them available to any retail investor in the EEA or in the UK
may be unlawful under the PRIIPs Regulation.

Amounts payable under the W&C Securities may be calculated by reference to one or more "benchmarks" for the
purposes of Regulation (EU) No. 2016/1011 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 8 June 2016 (the
"Benchmarks Regulation™). In this case, a statement will be included in the applicable Final Terms as to whether
or not the relevant administrator of the "benchmark™ is included in ESMA's register of administrators under Article
36 of the Benchmarks Regulation. Certain "benchmarks" may either (i) not fall within the scope of the Benchmarks
Regulation by virtue of Article 2 of that regulation or (ii) transitional provisions in Article 51 of the Benchmarks
Regulation may apply to certain other "benchmarks" which would otherwise be in scope such that at the date of
the relevant Final Terms, the administrator of the "benchmark™ is not required to be included in the register of
administrators.

MiFID Il product governance / target market — The Final Terms in respect of any W&C Securities may include
a legend entitled "MiFID Il product governance/target market assessment" which will outline the target market
assessment in respect of the W&C Securities and which channels for distribution of the W&C Securities are
appropriate. Any person subsequently offering, selling or recommending the W&C Securities (a "distributor")
should take into consideration the target market assessment; however, a distributor subject to MiFID Il is
responsible for undertaking its own target market assessment in respect of the W&C Securities (by either adopting
or refining the target market assessment) and determining appropriate distribution channels.
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OVERVIEW OF THIS BASE PROSPECTUS

The following overview does not purport to be complete and is taken from, and is qualified in its entirety by,
the remainder of this Base Prospectus and, in relation to the terms and conditions of any particular Tranche
of W&C Securities, the applicable Final Terms.

This overview constitutes a general description of this Base Prospectus for the purposes of Article 25(1) of
Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) No 2019/980 of 14 March 2019 (the "Delegated Regulation™).

Words and expressions defined in the "Form of the W&C Securities” and "Terms and Conditions of the W&C

Securities" shall have the same meanings in this overview.

Issuers

Guarantor

Risk Factors

Description of the W&C
Securities under this Base
Prospectus

Certain Restrictions

Form of W&C Securities

BNP Paribas Issuance B.V. ("BNPP B.V.")
Issuer Legal Entity Identifier (LEI): 7245009UXRIGIRYOBR48

BNP Paribas ("BNPP" and, together with its consolidated subsidiaries, the
"Group").

Issuer Legal Entity Identifier (LEI): ROMUWSFPUSMPRO8K5P83
BNP Paribas

There are certain factors that may affect the relevant Issuer's ability to fulfil
its obligations under W&C Securities issued under this Base Prospectus.
In the case of W&C Securities issued by BNPP B.V., there are also certain
factors that may affect the Guarantor's ability to fulfil its obligations under
the Guarantee. In addition, there are certain factors which are material for
the purpose of assessing the market risks and legal risks associated with
W&C Securities issued under the Programme, risks relating to the
structure of a particular Series of W&C Securities and risks relating to the
Underlying Reference or the disruption and adjustment provisions of a
particular Series of W&C Securities issued under the Programme. All of
these are set out under "Risks". Additional considerations associated with
an investment in the W&C Securities are also set out under "Investment
Considerations".

Cash settled warrants ("Warrants") and certificates ("Certificates" and,
together with the Warrants, "W&C Securities") issued under this Base
Prospectus.

Each issue of W&C Securities denominated in a currency in respect of
which particular laws, guidelines, regulations, restrictions or reporting
requirements apply will only be issued in circumstances which comply
with such laws, guidelines, regulations, restrictions or reporting
requirements from time to time (see "Offering and Sale").

Certificates are represented by (i) a Permanent Global Certificate, (ii) a
Rule 144A Global Certificate, (iii) a Regulation S Global Certificate, (iv)
certificates in registered form, as specified in the applicable Final Terms.
Except as provided in the limited circumstances set out in the Conditions,
no Certificates in definitive form will be issued.



W&C Securities

Redemption/Exercise

W&C Securities may be issued as:

€)] Index Securities, where the amount payable on redemption or
exercise of the W&C Securities is determined by reference to an
Index or a Basket of Indices (or index futures or options
contracts);

(b) Share Securities, where the amount payable on redemption or
exercise of the W&C Securities is determined by reference to a
Share (or a Stapled Share) or a Basket of Shares (which may be
comprised of one or more Stapled Shares);

(c) ETI Securities, where the amount payable on redemption or
exercise of the W&C Securities is determined by reference to an
ETI Interest or a Basket of ETI Interests;

(d) Debt Securities, where the amount payable on redemption or
exercise of the W&C Securities is determined by reference to a
Debt Instrument or a Basket of Debt Instruments (or debt futures
or options contracts);

(e) Fund Securities, where the amount payable on redemption or
exercise of the W&C Securities is determined by reference to a
Fund or a Basket of Funds; and

()] Hybrid Securities, where the amount payable on redemption or
exercise of the W&C Securities is determined by reference to any
combination of any Indices, Shares, ETI Interests, Debt
Instruments, Funds and other asset classes or types.

The terms under which W&C Securities may be redeemed or exercised
(including the redemption date or exercise date and related settlement date
and the amount payable or deliverable on redemption or exercise as well
as any provisions relating to early redemption or cancellation) will be
determined by the Issuer at the time of issue of the relevant W&C
Securities, specified in the applicable Final Terms and, if applicable,
summarised in the relevant issue specific summary annexed to the
applicable Final Terms.

W&C Securities may be redeemed or cancelled early if the performance
of the Issuer's obligations under the W&C Securities has become illegal or
by reason of force majeure or act of state it becomes impossible or
impracticable for the Issuer to perform its obligations under the W&C
Securities and/or any related hedging arrangements. If specified in the
applicable Final Terms, W&C Securities may be redeemed early at the
option of the Issuer or at the option of the Holders at the Optional
Redemption Amount specified in the applicable Final Terms.

The W&C Securities may also be redeemed early following the occurrence
of certain disruption, adjustment, extraordinary or other events. If Payout
Switch Election or Automatic Payout Switch is specified in the applicable



Interest

Payout Methodology

Final Payouts

Final Terms, the amount payable or deliverable on redemption or exercise
may be switched from one amount payable or deliverable to another.

The W&C Securities do not bear or pay interest.

Unless previously redeemed or purchased and cancelled (in the case of
Certificates) or cancelled (in the case of Warrants), each W&C Security
entitles its holder to receive from the relevant Issuer:

@ In respect of a Redemption Date or an Exercise Date, the Cash
Settlement Amount (see Conditions 19 (Definitions (Warrants))
and 27 (Definitions) and Payout Condition 1), being an amount
equal to the Final Payout specified in the applicable Final Terms.

(b) If Automatic Early Redemption is specified as applicable in the
applicable Final Terms and an Automatic Early Redemption
Event occurs, the Automatic Early Redemption Amount (see
Condition 31.7 (Automatic Early Redemption (Certificates)) and
Payout Condition 2).

(c) If an Issuer Call Option or Holder Put Option is specified as
applicable in the applicable Final Terms, the relevant Optional
Redemption Amount (see Conditions 31.2 (Issuer Call Option)
and 31.3 (Holder Put Option) and Payout Condition 1(a)).

The terms of a Series of W&C Securities are comprised of (i) the
Conditions, (ii) the Annex relevant to the relevant Underlying References
and (iii) if selected in the applicable Final Terms, the Payout(s) selected
from Annex 1 to the Conditions (the "Payout Annex") specified in the
applicable Final Terms and the related variables specified in the applicable
Final Terms (including the relevant valuation provisions) for such
Payout(s) (as selected from the Payout Annex).

Investors must review the Conditions, the Annex relevant to the
relevant Underlying Reference and the Payout Annex, together with
the applicable Final Terms to ascertain the terms and conditions
applicable to the W&C Securities.

The below Final Payout represents a vanilla product that has a fixed term
and a potential to have zero payout at maturity under the worst case
scenario:

(1) Listed Securities Final Payout: Fixed term products which have a
return linked to a linear performance of the Underlying Reference. There
is no capital protection.

(2) Short Certificates Final Payout: Fixed term products which have a
return linked to the inverse of the linear performance of the Underlying
Reference. There is no capital protection.

(3) Out-Performance Certificates Final Payout: Fixed term products
which have a return linked to a linear performance of the Underlying
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Automatic Early Redemption

Taxation

Reference. An Outperformance Bonus is delivered as well. There is no
capital protection.

(4) Turbo Certificates Final Payout and Short Turbo Certificates
Final Payout: Fixed term products which have a return linked to a non-
linear performance of the Underlying Reference, which is based on the
application of an adjustment factor to the performance of the Underlying
Reference. There is no capital protection.

(5) Listed Security on Single Underlying Final Payout: Fixed term
products which have a return linked to a linear performance of the
Underlying Reference, adjusted by a FX factor. There is no capital
protection.

If an Automatic Early Redemption Event, as specified in the applicable
Final Terms, occurs, the W&C Securities will be redeemed early at the
Automatic Early Redemption Amount on the Automatic Early
Redemption Date.

In the case of Certificates, the Automatic Early Redemption Amount will
be equal to the Automatic Early Redemption Payout specified in the
applicable Final Terms.

Automatic Early Redemption Payout

(1) Short Certificates Automatic Early Redemption Payout

(2) Out-Performance Certificates Automatic Early Redemption Payout
(3) Turbo Certificates Automatic Early Redemption Payout

(4) Short Turbo Certificates Automatic Early Redemption Payout

The Holder must pay all taxes, duties and/or expenses arising from the
exercise and settlement or redemption of the W&C Securities. The Issuer
shall deduct from amounts payable to Holders certain taxes and expenses
not previously deducted from amounts paid to Holders, as the Calculation
Agent determines are attributable to the W&C Securities.

Payments will be subject in all cases to (i) any fiscal or other laws and
regulations applicable thereto in the place of payment, (ii) any withholding
or deduction required pursuant to an agreement described in Section
1471(b) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the "Code™) or
otherwise imposed pursuant to Sections 1471 through 1474 of the Code,
any regulations or agreements thereunder, any official interpretations
thereof, or any law implementing an intergovernmental approach thereto,
and (iii) any withholding or deduction required pursuant to Section 871(m)
of the Code.

In addition, if the W&C Securities are deemed to be "specified securities"
for the purpose of Section 871(m) of the Code, in determining the amount
of withholding or deduction required pursuant to Section 871(m) of the
Code imposed with respect to any amounts to be paid on the W&C
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Negative Pledge

Events of Default

Governing Law

Status

Guarantee

Securities, the Issuer shall be entitled to withhold on any "dividend
equivalent" payment (as defined for purposes of Section 871(m) of the
Code) at a rate of 30 per cent.

Payments on the W&C Securities that reference U.S. securities or an index
that includes U.S. securities may be calculated by reference to the net
dividends payable on such U.S. securities or net total returns of the U.S.
components of such index. In calculating the relevant payment amount, the
Issuer may withhold, and the holder may be deemed to have received, 30
per cent. of any "dividend equivalent" payments (as defined in Section
871(m) of the Code) in respect of the relevant U.S. securities or U.S.
dividend paying index components, as the case may be. The Issuer will not
pay any additional amounts to the holder on account of the Section 871(m)
amount deemed withheld.

The terms of the W&C Securities will not contain a negative pledge
provision.

The terms of the W&C Securities will not contain events of default.

The W&C Securities, the Agency Agreement (as amended or
supplemented from time to time), the related Guarantee in respect of the
W&C Securities and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in
connection with the W&C Securities, the Agency Agreement (as amended
or supplemented from time to time) and the Guarantee in respect of the
W&C Securities will be governed by and shall be construed in accordance
with English law.

In the case of W&C Securities issued by BNPP B.V.:

The W&C Securities are unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the
Issuer and rank pari passu among themselves.

In the case of W&C Securities issued by BNPP:

The W&C Securities are unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the
Issuer and rank pari passu among themselves. The term "unsubordinated
obligations" refers to senior preferred obligations which fall or are
expressed to fall within the category of obligations described in Article
L.613-30-3-1-3°. of the French Code monétaire et financier. Additionally,
BNPP may not issue senior non-preferred securities pursuant to this Base
Prospectus.

W&C Securities issued by BNPP B.V. will be unconditionally and
irrevocably guaranteed by BNPP pursuant to an English law deed of
guarantee executed by BNPP on or around 2 June 2020. The obligations
under the guarantee are senior preferred obligations (within the meaning
of Article L.613-30-3-1-3° of the French Code monétaire et financier) and
unsecured obligations of BNPP and will rank pari passu with all its other
present and future senior preferred and unsecured obligations, subject to
such exceptions as may from time to time be mandatory under French law.
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Ratings

Listing and Admission
Trading

Selling Restrictions

Exempt Securities

to

In the event of a bail-in of BNPP but not BNPP B.V., the obligations and/or
amounts owed by BNPP under the guarantee shall be reduced to reflect
any such modification or reduction applied to liabilities of BNPP resulting
from the application of a bail-in of BNPP by any relevant regulator
(including in a situation where the guarantee itself is not the subject of such
bail-in).

BNPP B.V.'s long term credit rating is A+ with a negative outlook (S&P
Global Ratings Europe Limited) and BNPP B.V.'s short term credit rating
is A-1 (S&P Global Ratings Europe Limited).

BNPP's long term credit ratings are A+ with a negative outlook (S&P
Global Ratings Europe Limited), Aa3 with a stable outlook (Moody's
Investors Service Ltd.), AA- with a "rating watch negative" outlook (Fitch
France S.A.S.) and AA (low) with a stable outlook (DBRS Limited) and
BNPP's short-term credit ratings are A-1 (S&P Global Ratings Europe
Limited), P-1 (Moody's Investors Service Ltd.), F1+ (Fitch France S.A.S.)
and R-1 (middle) (DBRS Limited).

W&C Securities issued under the Base Prospectus may be rated or unrated.

A security rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities
and may be subject to suspension, reduction or withdrawal at any time by
the assigning rating agency.

W&C Securities issued under this Base Prospectus may be listed and
admitted to trading on Euronext Paris, the Luxembourg Stock Exchange
(including the professional segment of the regulated market of the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange) or such other regulated market, organised
market, third country market, SME market or other trading system
specified in the applicable Final Terms, or may be issued on an unlisted
basis.

The W&C Securities will be freely transferable, subject to the offering and
selling restrictions in the United States, the European Economic Area
(including the United Kingdom), France, Luxembourg, Netherlands,
United Kingdom, Japan, India, People's Republic of China, Republic of
Korea, Taiwan, Hong Kong, Socialist Republic of Vietnam, Thailand,
Singapore, Australia and under the Prospectus Regulation and the laws of
any jurisdiction in which the relevant W&C Securities are offered or sold.

The requirement to publish a prospectus under the Prospectus Regulation
only applies to W&C Securities which are to be admitted to trading on a
regulated market in the European Economic Area and/or offered to the
public in the European Economic Area other than in circumstances where
an exemption is available under Article 1(4) and/or Article 3(2) of the
Prospectus Regulation (and, for these purposes, references to the European
Economic Area include the United Kingdom). Under this Base
Prospectus, the Issuers may issue Exempt Securities (being W&C
Securities for which no prospectus is required to be published under the
Prospectus Regulation). In the case of Exempt Securities, any terms and
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conditions not contained in this Base Prospectus which are applicable to
such Exempt Securities will be set out in a pricing supplement document
(the "Pricing Supplement"). The Agency Agreement (as defined in the
Conditions) sets out the form of Pricing Supplement for Exempt Securities.
For the purposes of any Exempt Securities, references in the Conditions to
"Final Terms" shall be deemed to include a reference to "Pricing
Supplement".
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RISKS

Prospective purchasers of the W&C Securities offered hereby should consider carefully, among other things and
in light of their financial circumstances and investment objectives, all of the information in this Base Prospectus
and, in particular, the risks set forth below (which each Issuer, in its reasonable opinion, believes represents or
may represent the risks known to it which may affect such Issuer's ability to fulfil its obligations under the W&C
Securities) in making an investment decision. Investors may lose the value of their entire investment in certain
circumstances.

Terms used in this section and not otherwise defined have the meanings given to them in the relevant Conditions.
Risks Relating to BNPP and its Industry

See "Risk Factors™ under Chapter 5 on pages 276 to 288 of the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration Document (in
English), pages 3 and 4 of the First Amendment to the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration Document (in English)
and pages 76 to 79 of the Second Amendment to the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration Document (in English)
(each as defined below), each of which is incorporated by reference in this document.

Risk Factors

The main categories of risk inherent in BNPP's business as further described in the BNPP 2019 Universal
Registration Document (in English), the First Amendment to the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration Document
(in English) and the Second Amendment to the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration Document (in English) are
presented below. They may be measured through risk-weighted assets or other quantitative or qualitative indicia,
to the extent risk-weighted assets are not relevant (for example, for liquidity and funding risk).

Risk-weighted assets in billions of euros 31.12.2019 31.12.2018

Credit risk 524 504
Counterparty risk 30 27
Securitization risk in the banking book 11 7
Operational risk 69 73
Market risk 19 20
Other risks* 16 17
|T0tal risk-weighted assets under Basel 3 | | 669 | | 647 |

* Risks related to deferred taxes and certain investments in credit or financial institutions.

More generally, the risks to which BNPP is exposed may arise from a number of factors related, among others, to
changes in its macroeconomic or regulatory environment or factors related to the implementation of its strategy
and its business.

The risks specific to BNPP's business are presented below under 7 main categories: credit risk, counterparty risk
and securitization risk in the banking portfolio; operational risk; market risk; liquidity and funding risk; risks
related to the macroeconomic and market environment; regulatory risks; and risks related to BNPP's growth in its
current environment.
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BNPP's risk management policies have been taken into account in assessing the materiality of these risks; in
particular, risk-weighted assets factor in risk mitigation elements to the extent eligible in accordance with
applicable banking regulations.

These risk factors are described in detail below.

11

Credit risk, counterparty risk and securitization risk in the banking portfolio

BNPP's credit risk is defined as the probability of a borrower or counterparty defaulting on its
obligations to BNPP. Probability of default along with the recovery rate of the loan or debt in the event
of default are essential elements in assessing credit quality. In accordance with European Banking
Authority recommendations, this category of risk also includes risks on equity investments, as well as
those related to insurance activities. As of 31 December 2019, BNPP's credit risk exposure broke down
as follows: corporates (44%), retail customers (29%), central governments and central banks (19%),
credit institutions (5%), other assets at risk (2%) and equities (1%). As of 31 December 2019, 30% of
BNPP's credit exposure was comprised of exposures in France, 13% in Belgium and Luxembourg, 10%
in Italy, 21% in other European countries, 14% in North America, 6% in Asia and 6% in the rest of the
world. BNPP's risk-weighted assets subject to this type of risk amounted to €524 billion at 31 December
2019, or 78% of the total risk-weighted assets of BNPP.

BNPP's counterparty risk arises from its credit risk in the specific context of market transactions,
investments, and/or settlements. BNPP's exposure to counterparty risk, excluding Credit Valuation
Adjustment ("CVA") risk as of 31 December 2019, was comprised of: 41% in the corporate sector, 23%
in governments and central banks, 12% in credit institutions and investment firms, and 24% in clearing
houses. By product, BNPP's exposure, excluding CVA risk, as of 31 December 2019 was comprised of:
54% in over-the-counter ("OTC™) derivatives, 30% in repurchase transactions and securities
lending/borrowing, 14% in listed derivatives and 2% in contributions to the clearing houses' default
funds. The amount of this risk varies over time, depending on fluctuations in market parameters affecting
the potential future value of the covered transactions. In addition, CVA risk measures the risk of losses
related to CVA volatility resulting from fluctuations in credit spreads associated with the counterparties
in respect of which BNPP is subject to risk. The risk-weighted assets subject to this type of risk amounted
to €30 billion at 31 December 2019, representing 4% of the BNP Paribas Group's total risk-weighted
assets.

Securitization risk in the banking portfolio: Securitization is a transaction or arrangement by which
the credit risk associated with a liability or set of liabilities is subdivided into tranches. Any commitment
made by BNPP under a securitization structure (including derivatives and liquidity lines) is considered
to be a securitization. The bulk of BNPP's commitments are in the prudential banking portfolio.
Securitized exposures are essentially those generated by BNPP. The securitization positions held or
acquired by BNPP may also be categorized by its role: of the positions as at 31 December 2019, BNPP
was originator of 49%, was sponsor of 36% and was investor of 15%. The risk-weighted assets subject
to this type of risk amounted to €11 billion at 31 December 2019 for BNPP, or 2% of the total risk-
weighted assets of BNPP.

A substantial increase in new provisions or a shortfall in the level of previously recorded provisions
exposed to credit risk and counterparty risk could adversely affect BNPP's results of operations and
financial condition.

Credit risk and counterparty risk impact BNPP's consolidated financial statements when a customer or
counterparty is unable to honour its obligations and when the book value of these obligations in BNPP's
records is positive. The customer or counterparty may be a bank, a financial institution, an industrial or
commercial enterprise, a government or a government entity, an investment fund, or a natural person. If
the level of customer or counterparty defaults increases compared to recent historically low levels, BNPP
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1.2

may have to record significant charges and provisions for possible unrecoverable or doubtful debts,
affecting its profitability.

As a result, in connection with its lending activities, BNPP regularly establishes provisions for loan
losses, which are recorded on its income statement in the line item Cost of Risk. These provisions
amounted to €3.203 billion at 31 December 2019, representing 39 basis points of outstanding customer
loans (compared with 35 basis points at 31 December 2018).

BNPP's overall level of provisions is based on its assessment of prior loss experience, the volume and
type of lending being conducted, industry standards, past due loans, economic conditions and other
factors related to the recoverability of various loans or statistical analysis based on scenarios applicable
to asset classes.

Although BNPP seeks to establish an appropriate level of provisions, its lending businesses may have to
increase their provisions for loan losses substantially in the future as a result of deteriorating economic
conditions or other causes. Any significant increase in provisions for loan losses or a significant change
in BNPP's estimate of the risk of loss inherent in its portfolio of non impaired loans, as well as the
occurrence of loan losses in excess of the related provisions, could have a material adverse effect on
BNPP's results of operations and financial condition.

As at 31 December 2019, the ratio of doubtful loans to total loans outstanding was 2.2% and the coverage
ratio of these loans (net of guarantees received) by provisions was 74%, compared to 2.6% and 76.2%,
respectively, as at 31 December 2018.

While BNPP seeks to reduce its exposure to credit risk and counterparty risk by using risk mitigation
techniques such as collateralization, obtaining guarantees, entering into credit derivatives and entering
into netting agreements, it cannot be certain that these techniques will be effective to offset losses
resulting from counterparty defaults that are covered by these techniques. Moreover, BNPP is also
exposed to the risk of default by the party providing the credit risk coverage (such as a counterparty in a
derivative or a loan insurance contract) or to the risk of loss of value of any collateral. In addition, only
a portion of BNPP's overall credit risk and counterparty risk is covered by these techniques. Accordingly,
BNPP has very significant exposure to these risks.

The soundness and conduct of other financial institutions and market participants could adversely affect
BNPP.

BNPP's ability to engage in financing, investment and derivative transactions could be adversely affected
by the soundness of other financial institutions or market participants. Financial institutions are
interrelated as a result of trading, clearing, counterparty, funding or other relationships. As a result,
defaults of one or more states or financial institutions, or even rumours or questions about, one or more
financial institutions, or the financial services industry generally, may lead to market wide liquidity
problems and could lead to further losses or defaults. BNPP has exposure to many counterparties in the
financial industry, directly and indirectly, including clearing houses, brokers and dealers, commercial
banks, investment banks, mutual and alternative investment funds, and other institutional clients with
which it regularly executes transactions. BNPP may also be exposed to risks related to the increasing
involvement in the financial sector of players and the introduction of new types of transactions subject
to little or no regulation (e.g., unregulated funds, trading venues or crowdfunding platforms). Credit and
counterparty risks could be exacerbated if the collateral held by BNPP cannot be realized or is liquidated
at prices not sufficient to recover the full amount of the loan or derivative exposure due to BNPP or in
case of a failure of a significant financial market participant such as a central counterparty. It is worth
noting in this respect that regulatory changes requiring mandatory clearing of standardized OTC
derivatives through central counterparties have resulted in an increase of the exposure of financial market
participants to such central counterparties.
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For reference, counterparty risk exposure related to financial institutions was €20 billion at 31 December
2019, or 12% of BNPP's total counterparty risk exposure, and counterparty risk exposure related to
clearing houses was €40 billion, or 24% of BNPP's total counterparty risk exposure.

In addition, fraud or misconduct by financial market participants can have a material adverse effect on
financial institutions due in particular to the interrelated nature of the financial markets. An example is
the fraud perpetrated by Bernard Madoff that came to light in 2008, as a result of which numerous
financial institutions globally, including BNPP, announced losses or exposure to losses in substantial
amounts. BNPP remains the subject of various claims in connection with the Madoff matter; see Note
8.b "Contingent liabilities: legal proceedings and arbitration" to the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration
Document (in English).

Losses resulting from the risks summarized above could materially and adversely affect BNPP's results
of operations.

Operational Risk

BNPP's operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from failed or inadequate internal processes
(particularly those involving personnel and information systems) or external events, whether deliberate,
accidental or natural (floods, fires, earthquakes, terrorist attacks, etc.). BNPP's operational risks cover
fraud, human resources risks, legal and reputational risks, non-compliance risks, tax risks, information
systems risks, risk of providing inadequate financial services (conduct risk), risk of failure of operational
processes including credit processes, or from the use of a model (model risk), as well as potential
financial consequences related to reputation risk management. From 2011-2019, BNPP's main type of
incidents involving operational risk were in "Clients, products and business practices", which represents
63% of the total financial impact, largely as a result of BNPP's agreement with U.S. authorities regarding
its review of certain dollar transactions concluded in June 2014. The next largest category of incident for
BNPP in operational risk was in "Execution, delivery and process management", accounting for 17% of
the financial impact. Between 2011 and 2019, other types of risk in operational risk consist of external
fraud (13%), business disruption and systems failure (3%), employment practices and workplace safety
(2%), internal fraud (1%) and damage to physical assets (1%).

The risk-weighted assets subject to this type of risk amounted to €69 billion at 31 December 2019, or
10% of the total risk-weighted assets of BNPP.

BNPP's risk management policies, procedures and methods may leave it exposed to unidentified or
unanticipated risks, which could lead to material losses.

BNPP has devoted significant resources to developing its risk management policies, procedures and
assessment methods and intends to continue to do so in the future. Nonetheless, BNPP's risk management
techniques and strategies may not be fully effective in mitigating its risk exposure in all economic and
market environments or against all types of risk, particularly risks that BNPP may have failed to identify
or anticipate. BNPP's ability to assess the creditworthiness of its customers or to estimate the values of
its assets may be impaired if, as a result of market turmoil such as that experienced in recent years, the
models and approaches it uses become less predictive of future behaviour, valuations, assumptions or
estimates. Some of BNPP's qualitative tools and metrics for managing risk are based on its use of
observed historical market behaviour. BNPP applies statistical and other tools to these observations to
arrive at quantifications of its risk exposures. The process BNPP uses to estimate losses inherent in its
credit exposure or estimate the value of certain assets requires difficult, subjective, and complex
judgments, including forecasts of economic conditions and how these economic predictions might impair
the ability of its borrowers to repay their loans or impact the value of assets, which may, during periods
of market disruption, be incapable of accurate estimation and, in turn, impact the reliability of the process.
These tools and metrics may fail to predict future risk exposures, e.g., if BNPP does not anticipate or
correctly evaluate certain factors in its statistical models, or upon the occurrence of an event deemed
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extremely unlikely by the tools and metrics. This would limit BNPP's ability to manage its risks. BNPP's
losses could therefore be significantly greater than the historical measures indicate. In addition, BNPP's
quantified modelling does not take all risks into account. Its more qualitative approach to managing
certain risks could prove insufficient, exposing it to material unanticipated losses.

An interruption in or a breach of BNPP's information systems may cause substantial losses of client or
customer information, damage to BNPP's reputation and result in financial losses.

As with most other banks, BNPP relies heavily on communications and information systems to conduct
its business. This dependency has increased with the spread of mobile and online banking services, and
the development of cloud computing. Any failure or interruption or breach in security of these systems
could result in failures or interruptions in BNPP's customer relationship management, general ledger,
deposit, servicing and/or loan organization systems or could cause BNPP to incur significant costs in
recovering and verifying lost data. BNPP cannot provide assurances that such failures or interruptions
will not occur or, if they do occur, that they will be adequately addressed.

In addition, BNPP is subject to cybersecurity risk, or risk caused by a malicious and/or fraudulent act,
committed virtually, with the intention of manipulating information (confidential data, bank/insurance,
technical or strategic), processes and users, in order to cause material losses to BNPP's subsidiaries,
employees, partners and clients. An increasing number of companies (including financial institutions)
have in recent years experienced intrusion attempts or even breaches of their information technology
security, some of which have involved sophisticated and highly targeted attacks on their computer
networks. Because the techniques used to obtain unauthorized access, disable or degrade service, steal
confidential data or sabotage information systems have become more sophisticated, change frequently
and often are not recognized until launched against a target, BNPP and its third party service providers
may be unable to anticipate these techniques or to implement in a timely manner effective and efficient
countermeasures.

Any failures of or interruptions in BNPP's information systems or those of its providers and any
subsequent disclosure of confidential information related to any client, counterparty or employee of
BNPP (or any other person) or any intrusion or attack against the its communication system could cause
significant losses and have an adverse effect on BNPP's reputation, financial condition and results of
operations.

Moreover, BNPP is exposed to the risk of operational failure or interruption of a clearing agent, foreign
markets, clearing houses, custodian banks or any other financial intermediary or external service provider
used by BNPP to execute or facilitate financial transactions. Due to its increased interaction with clients,
BNPP is also exposed to the risk of operational malfunction of the latter's information systems. BNPP's
communications and data systems and those of its clients, service providers and counterparties may also
be subject to malfunctions or interruptions as a result of cyber-crime or cyber-terrorism. BNPP cannot
guarantee that these malfunctions or interruptions in its own systems or those of other parties will not
occur or that in the event of a cyberattack, these malfunctions or interruptions will be adequately
resolved. These operational malfunctions or interruptions accounted for an average of 3% of operational
risk losses over the 2011-2019 period.

Reputational risk could weigh on BNPP's financial strength and diminish the confidence of clients and
counterparties in it.

Considering the highly competitive environment in the financial services industry, a reputation for
financial strength and integrity is critical to BNPP's ability to attract and retain customers. BNPP's
reputation could be harmed if it cannot adequately promote and market its products and services. BNPP's
reputation could also be damaged if, as it increases its client base and the scale of its businesses, BNPP's
comprehensive procedures and controls dealing with conflicts of interest fail, or appear to fail, to address
them properly. At the same time, BNPP's reputation could be damaged by employee misconduct, fraud
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or misconduct by financial industry participants to which BNPP is exposed, a decline in, a restatement
of, or corrections to, its financial results, as well as any adverse legal or regulatory action, such as the
settlement BNPP entered into with the U.S. authorities in 2014 for violations of U.S. laws and regulations
regarding economic sanctions. The loss of business that could result from damage to BNPP's reputation
could have an adverse effect on its results of operations and financial position.

Market risk

BNPP's market risk is the risk of loss of value caused by an unfavourable trend in prices or market
parameters. The parameters affecting BNPP's market risk include, but are not limited to, exchange rates,
prices of securities and commodities (whether the price is directly quoted or obtained by reference to a
comparable asset), the price of derivatives on an established market and all benchmarks that can be
derived from market quotations such as interest rates, credit spreads, volatility or implicit correlations or
other similar parameters.

BNPP is exposed to market risk mainly through trading activities carried out by the business lines of its
Corporate & Institutional Banking ("CIB") operating division, primarily in Global Markets, which
represented 12% of BNPP's revenue in 2019. BNPP's trading activities are directly linked to economic
relations with clients of these business lines, or indirectly as part of its market making activity.

In addition, the market risk relating to BNPP's banking activities covers its interest rate and foreign
exchange rate risk in connection with its activities as a banking intermediary. The "operating” foreign
exchange risk exposure relates to net earnings generated by activities conducted in currencies other than
the functional currency of the entity concerned. The "structural” foreign exchange risk position of an
entity relates to investments in currencies other than the functional currency. In measuring interest rate
risk, BNPP defines the concepts of standard rate risk and structural rate risk as the following: the standard
rate risk corresponds to the general case, namely when it is possible to define the most appropriate
hedging strategy for a given transaction, and the structural rate risk is the interest rate risk for equity and
non-interest-bearing current accounts.

BNP Paribas' market risk based on its activities is measured by Value at Risk ("VaR"), or the maximum
potential loss over one year, at a 99.9% confidence level to calculate regulatory capital requirements, and
various other market indicators (stressed VaR, Incremental Risk Charge, Comprehensive Risk Measure
for credit correlation portfolio) as well as by stress tests and sensitivity analysis compared with market
limits.

The risk-weighted assets subject to this type of risk amounted to €19 billion at 31 December 2019, or 3%
of the total risk-weighted assets of BNPP.

BNPP may incur significant losses on its trading and investment activities due to market fluctuations and
volatility.

BNPP maintains trading and investment positions in the debt, currency, commaodity and equity markets
and in unlisted securities, real estate and other asset classes, including through derivative contracts. These
positions could be adversely affected by extreme volatility in these markets, i.e., the degree to which
prices fluctuate over a particular period in a particular market, regardless of market levels. Moreover,
volatility trends that prove substantially different from BNPP's expectations may lead to losses relating
to a broad range of other products that BNPP uses, including swaps, forward and future contracts, options
and structured products.

To the extent that BNPP owns assets, or has net long positions, in any of those markets, a market
downturn could result in losses from a decline in the value of its positions. Conversely, to the extent that
BNPP has sold assets that it does not own, or has net short positions in any of those markets, a market
upturn could, in spite of the existing limitation of risks and control systems, expose BNPP to potentially
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substantial losses as it attempts to cover its net short positions by acquiring assets in a rising market.
BNPP may from time to time hold a long position in one asset and a short position in another, in order
to hedge transactions with clients and/or from which it expects to gain based on changes in the relative
value of the two assets. If, however, the relative value of the two assets changes in a direction or manner
that BNPP did not anticipate or against which it is not hedged, it might realize a loss on those paired
positions. Such losses, if significant, could adversely affect BNPP's results and financial condition. In
addition, BNPP's hedging strategies may not be suitable for certain market conditions.

If any of the variety of instruments and strategies that BNPP uses to hedge its exposure to various types
of risk in its businesses is not effective, the Group may incur losses. Many of its strategies are based on
historical trading patterns and correlations. For example, if BNPP holds a long position in an asset, it
may hedge that position by taking a short position in another asset where the short position has
historically moved in a direction that would offset a change in the value of the long position. However,
the hedge may only be partial, or the strategies used may not protect against all future risks or may not
be fully effective in mitigating BNPP's risk exposure in all market environments or against all types of
risk in the future. Unexpected market developments may also reduce the effectiveness of BNPP's hedging
strategies, as occurred for example in late 2018 with BNPP's index derivatives hedging in the United
States. In addition, the manner in which gains and losses resulting from certain ineffective hedges are
recorded may result in additional volatility in BNPP's reported earnings.

BNPP uses a VaR model to quantify its exposure to potential losses from market risks, and also performs
stress testing with a view to quantifying its potential exposure in extreme scenarios. However, these
techniques rely on statistical methodologies based on historical observations, which may turn out to be
unreliable predictors of future market conditions. Accordingly, BNPP's exposure to market risk in
extreme scenarios could be greater than the exposures predicted by its quantification techniques.

The Global Markets business line in particular had €18 billion in risk-weighted assets subject to market
risk at 31 December 2019, or 3% of the total risk-weighted assets of BNPP.

BNPP may generate lower revenues from commission and fee based businesses during market
downturns.

Commissions represented 21% of BNPP's total revenues in 2019. Financial and economic conditions
affect the number and size of transactions for which BNPP provides securities underwriting, financial
advisory and other investment banking services. These revenues, which include fees from these services,
are directly related to the number and size of the transactions in which BNPP participates and can thus
be significantly affected by economic or financial changes that are unfavourable to its Investment
Banking business and clients. In addition, because the fees that BNPP charges for managing its clients'
portfolios are in many cases based on the value or performance of those portfolios, a market downturn
that reduces the value of its clients' portfolios or increases the amount of withdrawals would reduce the
revenues it receives from its asset management, equity derivatives and private banking businesses.
Independently of market changes, below market performance by BNPP's mutual funds may result in
increased withdrawals and reduced inflows, which would reduce the revenues BNPP receives from its
asset management business.

Adjustments to the carrying value of BNPP's securities and derivatives portfolios and BNPP's own debt
could have an adverse effect on its net income and shareholders' equity.

The carrying value of BNPP's securities and derivatives portfolios and certain other assets, as well as its
own debt, in its balance sheet is adjusted as of each financial statement date. As at 31 December 2019,
on the assets side of BNPP's balance sheet, financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss,
derivative financial instruments used for hedging purposes and financial assets at fair value through
shareholders' equity amounted to €576.1 billion, €12.4 billion and €52.7 billion respectively. In the
liabilities column, financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss and derivative financial
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instruments used for hedging purposes amounted to €582.2 billion and €14.1 billion, respectively, at 31
December 2019. Most of the adjustments are made on the basis of changes in fair value of BNPP's assets
or debt during an accounting period, with the changes recorded either in the income statement or directly
in shareholders' equity. Changes that are recorded in the income statement, to the extent not offset by
opposite changes in the value of other assets, affect BNPP's consolidated revenues and, as a result, its
net income. All fair value adjustments affect shareholders' equity and, as a result, BNPP's capital
adequacy ratios. The fact that fair value adjustments are recorded in one accounting period does not mean
that further adjustments will not be needed in subsequent periods.

Liquidity and funding risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that BNPP will not be able to honour its commitments or unwind or offset a
position due to market conditions or specific factors within a specified period of time and at a reasonable
cost. It reflects the risk of not being able to cope with net cash outflows, including collateral requirements,
over short-term to long-term horizons. The Group's specific risk can be assessed through its short-term
liquidity ratio ("Liquidity Coverage Ratio" or "LCR"), which analyses the hedging of net cash outflows
during a thirty-day stress period. The monthly average in 2019 of the Group's LCR was 123%,
representing a liquidity surplus of €58 billion compared to regulatory requirements. The liquidity reserve
was €309 billion at the end of 20109.

BNPP's access to and cost of funding could be adversely affected by a resurgence of financial crises,
worsening economic conditions, rating downgrades, increases in sovereign credit spreads or other
factors.

The financial crisis, the euro zone sovereign debt crisis as well as the general macroeconomic
environment have at times adversely affected the availability and cost of funding for European banks in
recent years. This was due to several factors, including a sharp increase in the perception of bank credit
risk due to exposure to sovereign debt in particular, credit rating downgrades of sovereigns and of banks,
and debt market speculation. Many European banks, including BNPP, at various points experienced
restricted access to wholesale debt markets and to the interbank market, as well as a general increase in
their cost of funding. Accordingly, reliance on direct borrowing from the European Central Bank
("ECB") at times increased substantially. If such adverse credit market conditions were to reappear in
the event of prolonged stagnation of growth, deflation, resurgence of the financial crisis, another
sovereign debt crisis or new forms of financial crises, factors relating to the financial industry in general
or to BNPP in particular, the effect on the liquidity of the European financial sector in general and BNPP
in particular could be materially adverse and have a negative impact on BNPP's results of operations and
financial condition.

Protracted market declines can reduce BNPP's liquidity, making it harder to sell assets and possibly
leading to material losses. Accordingly, BNPP must ensure that its assets and liabilities properly match
in order to avoid exposure to losses.

In some of BNPP's businesses, particularly Global Markets (which represented 12% of BNPP's revenue
in 2019) and Asset/Liability Management, protracted market movements, particularly asset price
declines, can reduce the level of activity in the market or reduce market liquidity. These developments
can lead to material losses if BNPP cannot close out deteriorating positions in a timely way. This is
particularly true for assets that are intrinsically illiquid. Assets that are not traded on stock exchanges or
other public trading markets, such as certain derivative contracts between financial institutions, may have
values that BNPP calculates using models rather than publicly quoted prices. Monitoring the
deterioration of prices of assets like these is difficult and could lead to significant unanticipated losses.

BNPP is exposed to the risk that the maturity, interest rate or currencies of its assets might not match
those of its liabilities. The timing of payments on certain of BNPP's assets is uncertain, and if BNPP
receives lower revenues than expected at a given time, it might require additional market funding in order
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to meet its obligations on its liabilities. While BNPP imposes strict limits on the gaps between its assets
and its liabilities as part of its risk management procedures, it cannot be certain that these limits will be
fully effective to eliminate potential losses arising from asset and liability mismatches.

Any downgrade of BNPP's credit ratings could weigh heavily on its profitability.

Credit ratings have a significant impact on BNPP's liquidity. On 23 April 2020, Standard & Poor's
confirmed the long-term deposit and senior preferred debt rating at A+, and short-term rating at A-1,
with an outlook revised from stable to negative. On 30 March 2020, Fitch France placed its AA- long-
term deposits and senior preferred debt rating for BNPP and its F1+ short-term rating for BNPP on Rating
Watch Negative. On 9 December 2019, Moody’s confirmed its long-term deposits and senior preferred
debt rating from as Aa3, and confirmed its short-term rating as P-1, with a stable outlook. On 12 July
2019, DBRS confirmed BNPP's senior preferred debt rating as AA (low), as well as its short-term rating
as R-1(middle) with a stable outlook. A downgrade in BNPP's credit rating could affect its liquidity and
competitive position. It could also increase BNPP's borrowing costs, limit access to the capital markets
or trigger additional obligations under its covered bonds or under certain bilateral provisions in some
trading, derivative or collateralized financing contacts..

In addition, BNPP's cost of obtaining long term unsecured funding from market investors is also directly
related to its credit spreads, which in turn depend to a certain extent on its credit ratings. Increases in
credit spreads can significantly increase BNPP's cost of funding. Changes in credit spreads are
continuous, market driven, and subject at times to unpredictable and highly volatile movements. Credit
spreads are also influenced by market perceptions of BNPP's creditworthiness. Furthermore, credit
spreads may be influenced by movements in the cost to purchasers of credit default swaps referenced to
BNPP's debt obligations, which are influenced both by the credit quality of those obligations, and by a
number of market factors that are beyond the control of BNPP.

Risks related to the macroeconomic and market environment

Adverse economic and financial conditions have in the past had and may in the future have an impact
on BNPP and the markets in which it operates.

BNPP's business is sensitive to changes in the financial markets and more generally to economic
conditions in France (31% of BNPP's revenues at 31 December 2019), other countries in Europe (44%
of BNPP's revenues at 31 December 2019) and the rest of the world (25% of BNPP's revenues at 31
December 2019). A deterioration in economic conditions in the markets where BNPP operates could
have some or all of the following impacts:

. Adverse economic conditions could affect the business and operations of BNPP's customers,
reducing credit demand and trading volume and resulting in an increased rate of default on loans
and other receivables;

. A decline in market prices of bonds, equities and commodities could impact many of the
businesses of BNPP, including in particular trading, investment banking and asset management
revenues;

. Macroeconomic policies adopted in response to actual or anticipated economic conditions could

have unintended effects, and are likely to impact market parameters such as interest rates and
foreign exchange rates, which in turn could affect BNPP's businesses that are most exposed to
market risk;

. Perceived favourable economic conditions generally or in specific business sectors could result

in asset price bubbles, which could in turn exacerbate the impact of corrections when conditions
become less favourable;
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. A significant economic disruption (such as the global financial crisis of 2008 or the European
sovereign debt crisis of 2011) could have a severe impact on all of BNPP's activities, particularly
if the disruption is characterized by an absence of market liquidity that makes it difficult to sell
certain categories of assets at their estimated market value or at all; and

. A significant deterioration of market and economic conditions resulting from, among other
things, adverse political and geopolitical events such as natural disasters, geopolitical tensions
(in particular protectionist measures), emergence of health risks such as pandemics, acts of
terrorism, societal unrest, cyber attacks, military conflicts or threats thereof and related risks
could affect the operating environment for BNPP episodically or for extended periods.

In 2020, European economies and financial markets will be particularly sensitive to a number of factors,
including, for example, tensions around international trade (protectionist measures, such as customs
duties, the "trade war" between the United States and China and tensions between the United States and
Europe), geopolitical tensions (particularly in the Middle East and, more generally, between the United
States and Iran), political risks directly affecting Europe (including the implementation of Brexit and the
rise of populism), a persisting climate of sluggish economic growth, the volatility in commodity prices
(itself affected by the above-mentioned factors) and, as discussed below, the evolution of monetary
policy or the impact of health risks related to a pandemic such as the coronavirus.

More generally, increased volatility of financial markets could adversely affect BNPP's trading and
investment positions in the debt, currency, commodity and equity markets, as well as its positions in
other investments. For reference, Global Markets accounted for 12% of BNPP's revenues in 2019. Severe
market disruptions and extreme market volatility have occurred in recent years and may occur again in
the future, which could result in significant losses for BNPP. Such losses may extend to a broad range of
trading and hedging products, including swaps, forward and future contracts, options and structured
products. The volatility of financial markets makes it difficult to predict trends and implement effective
trading strategies.

It is difficult to predict when economic or market downturns or other market disruptions will occur, and
which markets will be most significantly impacted. If economic or market conditions in France or
elsewhere in Europe, or global markets more generally, were to deteriorate or become more volatile,
BNPP's operations could be disrupted, and its business, results of operations and financial condition
could be adversely affected.

Significant interest rate changes could adversely affect BNPP's revenues or profitability. The prolonged
low interest rate environment carries inherent systemic risks, which could impact BNPP's income or
profitability, and any exit from such environment would also carry risks.

The net interest income earned by BNPP during any given period significantly affects its overall revenues
and profitability for that period. Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors beyond BNPP's control,
such as the rate of inflation, country-specific monetary policies and certain decisions concerning
regulatory capital. Changes in market interest rates could affect the interest rates charged on interest-
earning assets differently than the interest rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities. Any adverse change
in the yield curve could cause a decline in net interest income generated by BNPP's lending activities. In
addition, increases in the interest rates at which BNPP's short-term funding is available and maturity
mismatches may adversely affect its profitability.

Since the 2008-2009 financial crisis, global markets have been characterized by an extended period of
low interest rates. This low interest rate environment has weighed significantly on banks’ profitability,
including that of BNPP, for a number of years. The relative impact on banks depends, in particular, on
the proportion of their revenues represented by net interest income; this proportion was 47% for BNPP
in 2019 (see Note 3.a "Net interest income" to the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration Document (in
English)). The situation worsened in 2019, in particular with the emergence and increasing prevalence
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of loans at negative interest rates, including placements by European banks with the ECB. If the low, and
even negative, interest rate environment continues, as a result, for example, of continued monetary
loosening, low growth or other factors, BNPP's profitability could be impacted or even decline. In this
respect, the ECB announced in 2019 — in the face of slower than anticipated growth — a status quo on its
benchmark lending rates until at least the first half of 2020), new targeted longer-term financing
operations ("TLTRO") bearing, under certain conditions, negative rates and, in September 2019, the
resumption of its quantitative easing policy, which had been suspended a few months earlier. In addition,
the persistently low interest rate environment blunts the effectiveness of monetary policies against
declining growth or recessions.

During periods of low interest rates, interest rate spreads tend to tighten, and BNPP may be unable to
lower interest rates on deposits sufficiently to offset reduced income from lending at lower interest rates.
Net interest income amounted to €21,062 million in 2018 and €21,127 million in 2019, respectively (see
Note 3.a "Net interest income" to the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration Document (in English)). On an
indicative basis, over one-, two- and three-year timeframes, the sensitivity of revenues at 31 December
2019 to a parallel, instantaneous and definitive increase in market rates of +50 basis points (+0.5%)
across all currencies had an impact of +€270 million, +€216 million and +€614 million, respectively, or
0.6%, 0.5% and 1.4% of BNPP's net banking income. The negative interest rate environment in which
banks are charged for cash deposited with central banks, whereas banks typically do not charge clients
for deposits, further weighs on banks’ margins. In addition, BNPP has been facing and may continue to
face an increase in early repayment and refinancing of mortgages and other fixed rate consumer and
corporate loans as clients take advantage of lower borrowing costs. This, along with the issuance of new
loans at the low prevailing market interest rates, has resulted and may continue to result in a decrease in
the average interest rate of BNPP's portfolio of loans thereby causing a decline in its net interest income
from lending activities. Moreover, an environment of persistently low interest rates can also have the
effect of flattening the yield curve in the market more generally, which could reduce the premium
generated by BNPP from its funding activities. A flattening yield curve can also influence financial
institutions to engage in riskier activities in an effort to earn the desired level of returns, which can
increase overall market risk and volatility. Low interest rates may also affect the profitability and even
the solvency of the insurance activities of French banks, including BNPP, particularly due to the
prevalence in the market of life insurance contracts backed by euro-denominated funds, which may not
be able to generate sufficient returns to be competitive with other investment products. Low interest rates
may also adversely affect commissions charged by BNPP's asset management subsidiaries on money
market and other fixed income products. A reduction in credit spreads and decline in retail banking
income resulting from lower portfolio interest rates may adversely affect the profitability of BNPP's retail
banking operations.

However, the end of a period of prolonged low interest rates, in particular due to tightening monetary
policy (itself triggered in particular by increases in economic growth or in inflation at rates higher than
expected by central banks) would also carry risks. If market interest rates were to rise, a portfolio
featuring significant amounts of lower interest loans and fixed income assets would be expected to
decline in value. If BNPP's hedging strategies are ineffective or provide only a partial hedge against such
a change in value, BNPP could incur losses. Any sharper or more rapid than expected tightening could
have a negative impact on the economic recovery. On the lending side, it could in particular cause stress
in loan and bond portfolios, possibly leading to an increase in non performing exposures and defaults.
More generally, the ending of accommodative monetary policies (including liquidity infusions from
central bank asset purchases) may lead to severe corrections in certain markets or asset classes (e.g., non
investment grade corporate and sovereign borrowers, certain sectors of equities and real estate) that
particularly benefitted (including from very low risk premia as compared to historical averages) from the
prolonged low interest rate and high liquidity environment, and such corrections could potentially be
contagious to financial markets generally, including through substantially increased volatility.
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Given the global scope of its activities, BNPP may be vulnerable to risk in certain countries where it
operates and may be vulnerable to political, macroeconomic or financial changes in the countries and
regions where it operates.

BNPP is subject to country risk, meaning the risk that economic, financial, political or social conditions
in a given foreign country in which it operates could affect its business and results. BNPP monitors
country risk and takes it into account in the fair value adjustments and cost of risk recorded in its financial
statements. However, a significant change in political or macroeconomic environments may require it to
record additional charges or to incur losses beyond the amounts previously written down in its financial
statements. In addition, factors specific to a country or region in which BNPP operates could make it
difficult for it to carry out its business and lead to losses or impairment of assets.

At 31 December 2019, BNPP's loan portfolio consisted of receivables from borrowers located in France
(30%), Belgium and Luxembourg (13%), Italy (10%), other European countries (21%), North America
(14%), Asia (6%) and the rest of the world (6%). Adverse conditions that particularly affect these
countries and regions would have a particularly significant impact on BNPP. In addition, BNPP has
significant exposures in countries outside the OECD, which are subject to risks that include political
instability, unpredictable regulation and taxation, expropriation and other risks that are less present in
more developed economies.

Regulatory Risks

Laws and regulations adopted in recent years, particularly in response to the global financial crisis, as
well as new legislative proposals, may materially impact BNPP and the financial and economic
environment in which it operates.

Laws and regulations have been enacted in the past few years, in particular in France, Europe and the
United States, with a view to introducing a number of changes, some permanent, in the financial
environment. The impact of the measures has changed substantially the environment in which BNPP and
other financial institutions operate.

The measures that have been adopted include:

. more stringent capital and liquidity requirements (particularly for global systemically important
banks such as BNPP), as well as changes to the risk-weighting methodologies and the methods
of using internal models that could lead to increased capital requirements;

. restrictions on certain types of activities considered as speculative undertaken by commercial
banks that are prohibited or need to be ring fenced in subsidiaries (particularly proprietary
trading) and are subject to prudential requirements and autonomous funding;

. prohibitions or restrictions on certain types of financial products or activities;

. enhanced recovery and resolution regimes, in particular the Bank Recovery and Resolution
Directive of 15 May 2014 (the "BRRD"), as amended from time to time, which strengthens
powers to prevent and resolve banking crises in order to ensure that losses are borne largely by
the creditors and shareholders of the banks and in order to keep the costs incurred by taxpayers
to a minimum;

) the establishment of the national resolution funds by the BRRD and the creation of the Single
Resolution Board (the "SRB") by the European Parliament and Council of the European Union
in a resolution dated 15 July 2014 (the "SRM Regulation™), as amended from time to time,
which can initiate resolution proceedings for banking institutions such as BNPP, and the Single
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Resolution Fund (the "SRF"), the financing of which by BNPP (up to its annual contribution)
can be significant;

. the establishment of national deposit guarantee schemes and a proposed European deposit
guarantee scheme or deposit insurance which will gradually cover all or part of the guarantee
schemes of participating countries;

. increased internal control and reporting requirements with respect to certain activities;

. greater powers granted to the relevant authorities to combat money laundering and terrorism
financing;

. more stringent governance and conduct of business rules and restrictions and increased taxes on

employee compensation over specified levels;

. measures to improve the transparency, efficiency and integrity of financial markets and in
particular the regulation of high frequency trading, more extensive market abuse regulations,
increased regulation of certain types of financial products including mandatory reporting of
derivative and securities financing transactions, requirements either to mandatorily clear, or
otherwise mitigate risks in relation to, OTC derivative transactions (including through posting
of collateral in respect of non centrally cleared derivatives);

. the taxation of financial transactions;

. enhanced protection of personal data and cybersecurity requirements;

. enhanced disclosure requirements, for instance in the area of sustainable finance; and

. strengthening the powers of supervisory bodies, such as the French Prudential Supervision and

Resolution Authority (the "ACPR") and the creation of new authorities, including the adoption
of the Single Resolution Mechanism (the "SRM") in October 2013, which placed BNPP under
the direct supervision of the ECB as of November 2014.

These measures may have a significant adverse impact. For example, the introduction of a required
contribution to the Single Resolution Fund resulted in a substantial additional expense for BNPP (BNPP
made a €0.6 billion contribution to the SRF in 2019).

Measures relating to the banking sector could be further amended, expanded or strengthened. Moreover,
additional measures could be adopted in other areas. It is impossible to predict what additional measures
will be adopted and, given the complexity and continuing uncertainty of a certain number of these
measures, to determine their impact on BNPP. The effect of these measures, whether already adopted or
that may be adopted in the future, has been and could continue to be a decrease in BNPP's ability to
allocate its capital and capital resources to financing, limit its ability to diversify risks, reduce the
availability of certain financing and liquidity resources, increase the cost of financing, increase the cost
of compliance, increase the cost or reduce the demand for the products and services offered by BNPP,
require BNPP to proceed with internal reorganizations, structural changes or reallocations, affect the
ability of BNPP to carry on certain activities or to attract and/or retain talent and, more generally, affect
its competitiveness and profitability, which could have an impact on its profitability, financial condition
and operating results. For example, the European Banking Authority estimated, in a report published on
5 August 2019, that the implementation of the final Basel 111 agreement adopted by the Group of Central
Bank Governors and Heads of Supervision ("GHOS") on 7 December 2017 may result, under
conservative assumptions, in an increase of the tier 1 minimum required capital amount by 24.4% with
respect to the June 2018 baseline, which would cause, for the 189 banks in the sample, a shortfall in total
capital of €135.1 billion, of which €91.1 billion is common equity tier 1.
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BNPP is subject to extensive and evolving regulatory regimes in the jurisdictions in which it operates.
BNPP faces the risk of changes in legislation or regulation in all of the countries in which it operates,
including, but not limited to, the following:

o monetary, liquidity, interest rate and other policies of central banks and regulatory authorities;

. changes in government or regulatory policy that may significantly influence investor decisions,
in particular in the markets in which BNPP operates;

. changes in regulatory requirements applicable to the financial industry, such as rules relating to
applicable governance, remunerations, capital adequacy and liquidity frameworks, restrictions
on activities considered as speculative and recovery and resolution frameworks;

o changes in securities regulations as well as in financial reporting, disclosure and market abuse
regulations;
. changes in the regulation of certain types of transactions and investments, such as derivatives

and securities financing transactions and money market funds;

. changes in the regulation of market infrastructures, such as trading wvenues, central
counterparties, central securities depositories and payment and settlement systems;

. changes in the regulation of payment services, crowdfunding and fintech;

. changes in the regulation of protection of personal data and cybersecurity;

. changes in tax legislation or the application thereof;

. changes in accounting norms;

. changes in rules and procedures relating to internal controls, risk management and compliance;
and

o expropriation, nationalization, price controls, exchange controls, confiscation of assets and

changes in legislation relating to foreign ownership.

These changes, the scope and implications of which are highly unpredictable, could substantially affect
BNPP and have an adverse effect on its business, financial condition and results of operations. Some
reforms not aimed specifically at financial institutions, such as measures relating to the funds industry or
promoting technological innovation (such as open data projects), could facilitate the entry of new players
in the financial services sector or otherwise affect BNPP's business model, competitiveness and
profitability, which could in turn affect its financial condition and results of operations.

BNPP may incur substantial fines and other administrative and criminal penalties for non compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, and may also incur losses in related (or unrelated) litigation with
private parties.

BNPP is exposed to regulatory compliance risk, i.e. the failure to comply fully with the laws, regulations,
codes of conduct, professional norms or recommendations applicable to the financial services industry.
This risk is exacerbated by the adoption by different countries of multiple and occasionally diverging
and even conflicting legal or regulatory requirements. Besides damage to BNPP's reputation and private
rights of action (including class actions), non compliance could lead to material legal proceedings, fines
and expenses (including fines and expenses in excess of recorded provisions), public reprimand, enforced
suspension of operations or, in extreme cases, withdrawal by the authorities of operating licenses. This

28



6.3

risk is further exacerbated by continuously increasing regulatory scrutiny of financial institutions, as well
as substantial increases in the quantum of applicable fines and penalties. Moreover, litigation by private
parties against financial institutions has substantially increased in recent years. Accordingly, BNPP faces
significant legal risk in its operations, and the volume and amount of damages claimed in litigation,
regulatory proceedings and other adversarial proceedings against financial services firms have
substantially increased in recent years and may increase further. BNPP may record provisions in this
respect as indicated in Note 5.p "Provisions for contingencies and charges" to the BNPP 2019 Universal
Registration Document (in English).

In this respect, on 30 June 2014 BNPP entered into a series of agreements with, and was the subject of
several orders issued by, U.S. federal and New York state government agencies and regulatory authorities
in settlement of investigations into violations of U.S. laws and regulations regarding economic sanctions.
The fines and penalties imposed on BNPP as part of this settlement included, among other things, the
payment of monetary penalties amounting in the aggregate to $8.97 billion (€6.6 billion) and guilty pleas
by BNP Paribas S.A., the parent company of BNPP, to charges of having violated U.S. federal criminal
law and New York State criminal law. Following this settlement, BNPP remains subject to increased
scrutiny by regulatory authorities (including via the presence of an independent consultant within BNPP)
who are monitoring its compliance with a remediation plan agreed with them.

BNPP is currently involved in various litigations and investigations as summarised in Note 8.b
"Contingent liabilities: legal proceedings and arbitration" to the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration
Document (in English). 1t may become involved in further such matters at any point. No assurance can
be given that an adverse outcome in one or more of such matters would not have a material adverse effect
on BNPP's operating results for any particular period.

BNPP could experience an unfavourable change in circumstances, causing it to become subject to a
resolution proceeding: holders of securities of BNPP could suffer losses as a result.

The BRRD, the SRM Regulation and the Ordinance of 20 August 2015, each as amended from time to
time, confer upon the ACPR or the SRB the power to commence resolution proceedings for a banking
institution, such as BNPP, with a view to ensuring the continuity of critical functions, avoiding the risks
of contagion and recapitalizing or restoring the viability of the institution. These powers are to be
implemented so that, subject to certain exceptions, losses are borne first by shareholders, then by holders
of additional capital instruments qualifying as tier 1 and tier 2 (such as subordinated bonds), then by the
holders of non-preferred senior debt and finally by the holders of senior preferred debt, all in accordance
with the order of their claims in normal insolvency proceedings. For reference, BNPP's medium- to long-
term wholesale financing at 31 December 2019 consisted of the following: €10 billion of hybrid Tier 1
debt, €18 billion of Tier 2 subordinated debt, €41 billion of senior unsecured non-preferred debt, €81
billion of senior unsecured preferred debt and €26 billion of senior secured debt.

Resolution authorities have broad powers to implement resolution measures with respect to institutions
and groups subject to resolution proceedings, which may include (without limitation): the total or partial
sale of the institution's business to a third party or a bridge institution, the separation of assets, the
replacement or substitution of the institution as obligor in respect of debt instruments, the full or partial
write down of capital instruments, the dilution of capital instruments through the issuance of new equity,
the full or partial write down or conversion into equity of debt instruments, modifications to the terms of
debt instruments (including altering the maturity and/or the amount of interest payable and/or imposing
a temporary suspension on payments), discontinuing the listing and admission to trading of financial
instruments, the dismissal of managers or the appointment of a special manager (administrateur spécial).

Certain powers, including the full or partial write down of capital instruments, the dilution of capital

instruments through the issuance of new equity, the full or partial write down or conversion into equity
of additional capital instruments qualifying as tier 1 and tier 2 (such as subordinated bonds), can also be
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exercised as a precautionary measure, outside of resolution proceedings and/or pursuant to the European
Commission's State Aid framework if the institution requires exceptional public financial support.

The implementation of these tools and powers with respect to BNPP may result in significant structural
changes to BNPP (including as a result of asset or business sales or the creation of bridge institutions)
and in a partial or total write down, modification or variation of claims of shareholders and creditors.
Such powers may also result, after any transfer of all or part of BNPP's business or separation of any of
its assets, in the holders of securities (even in the absence of any such write down or conversion) being
left as creditors of BNPP in circumstances where BNPP's remaining business or assets are insufficient to
support the claims of all or any of the creditors of BNPP.

Risks related to BNPP's growth in its current environment.

Epidemics and pandemics, including the ongoing coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic and their economic
consequences may adversely affect BNPP's business, operations, results and financial condition.

Since emerging in China in December 2019, a novel strain of the coronavirus (COVID-19) spread
globally and became a pandemic, with a high concentration of cases in several countries in which the
Group operates. Both the pandemic and government measures taken in response (including, border
closings, travel restrictions, lockdown measures) have had and will continue to have a major impact, both
direct and indirect, on economic activity and financial markets globally. In particular, the sharp
slowdowns of the economies in many regions as well as the reduction in global trade and commerce
more generally have had and are likely to continue to have severe negative effects on global economic
conditions as global production, investments, supply chains and consumer spending have been and
continue to be affected.

In response to the adverse economic and market consequences of the pandemic, various governments
and central banks have taken or announced measures to support the economy (such as loan guarantee
schemes, tax payment deferrals, expanded unemployment coverage) or to improve liquidity in the
financial markets (such as increased asset purchases, funding facilities). The Group has been channelling
and continues to channel these measures to support customers in particular in the domestic markets'
networks, as well as through active participation in the French government loan guarantee programme
(retaining 10 to 30 per cent. of the risk, depending on the borrower's size). No assurance can be given,
however, that such measures will suffice to offset the negative effects of the pandemic on the economy
regionally or globally, to mitigate regional or global recessions (which are now occurring or are generally
forecast) or to stabilise financial markets fully and sustainably. The economic environment may well
deteriorate further before beginning to improve.

The Group is exposed to risks from the pandemic and its economic and market consequences both due
to its inherent general sensitivity, as a global financial institution, to macroeconomic and market
conditions, as well as to specific implications, as described below.

The Group's results and financial condition could be adversely affected by reduced economic activity
(including recessions) in its principal markets. The containment measures taken in several of the principal
countries where the Group operates, in particular its domestic markets (France, Italy, Belgium and
Luxembourg which collectively represent 43 per cent. of its total gross credit exposures as at 31
December 2019), have significantly reduced economic activity to recessionary levels and a substantial
prolongation or reinstitution of such measures would have a similar effect. The Group's results are
affected by such measures due to reduced revenues and to deteriorated asset quality both generally and
in specific sectors that are particularly affected. The sectors most adversely affected to date include the
travel and tourism sectors. The Group's exposure to the aircraft sector (e.g. airlines and lessors) and to
the tourism sector each represented approximately 1 per cent. of its total gross credit exposures as at 31
December 2019. The non-food retail sector has been affected by the lockdown measures; this sector
represents slightly above 1 per cent. of the Group's total gross credit exposures as of 31 December 2019.
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The transport and storage (excluding shipping) sector, which represents approximately 3 per cent. of the
Group’s total gross credit exposures as of 31 December 2019, has been affected by the lockdown
measures and the disruption in global trade. The oil and gas sector has been affected by a concomitant
decrease in demand resulting from the pandemic and increase in supply due to the temporary unravelling
of the OPEC/Russia production cooperation. This sector represented approximately 2.2 per cent. of the
Group's total gross credit exposures as of 31 December 2019. The Group's results and financial condition
could be adversely affected to the extent that the counterparties to whom it has exposure in these sectors
(and more generally, to the extent the negative effect on credit quality is more widespread) could be
materially and adversely affected, resulting in an increase in the Group's cost of risk.

An immediate financial effect of the health crisis is the impact on the Group's cost of risk, which reflects
macroeconomic expectations based on several scenarios, in accordance with the framework in place prior
to the health crisis. In the application of this framework, macroeconomic scenarios and GDP assumptions
and forecasts are key inputs for the calculation of the cost of risk. The health crisis has led, among other
things, to a weakening in GDP assumptions in many of the markets in which the Group operates. The
cost of risk calculation also incorporates the specific features of the dynamics of the health crisis on credit
and counterparty risk and in particular the impact of lockdown measures on economic activity and the
effects of government support measures and authorities' decisions. It also includes an ex-ante sector
component based on a review of several sensitive sectors (such as hotels, tourism and leisure; non-food
retail (excluding home furnishings and e-commerce); transport and logistics; and oil and gas). All these
elements contributed to the substantial increase in the Group's cost of risk in the first quarter of 2020,
and could likewise contribute to continued high cost of risk in the following quarters, depending on
macroeconomic scenarios and, in particular, the current uncertainties around the course of the pandemic
and its economic consequences going forward. Moreover, the impact of the pandemic on the long-term
prospects of businesses in the affected sectors and more generally is uncertain and may lead to significant
charges on specific exposures, which may not be fully captured by modelling techniques. The Group's
exposure to increased cost of risk could also result from its participation in government-guaranteed loan
programmes (given its residual exposure) and the existence of forbearance periods limiting credit-
protection measures (such as payment acceleration) under emergency health legislation in various
markets.

The Group's results and financial condition could also be negatively affected by adverse trends in
financial markets to the extent that the pandemic initially led in particular to extreme market conditions
(including, market volatility spikes, sharp drop in equity markets, tension on spreads, specific asset
markets on hold), with market volatility continuing. This situation has had and could continue to have an
adverse impact on the Group's market activities, which accounted for 12 per cent. of its consolidated
revenues in 2019, resulting in trading or other market-related losses, including additions to valuation
reserves and counterparty risk provisions. This extreme market volatility has been and could continue to
increase as a consequence of the decisions taken by authorities in particular in Europe, such as restrictions
on short-selling and dividend distributions. Moreover, some of the Group's investment portfolios (e.g. in
its insurance subsidiaries) are accounted for on a mark to market basis and thus have been and could
continue to be impacted by deteriorated market conditions.

The current health crisis could increase the probability and magnitude of various existing risks faced by
the Group such as:

@ pressure on revenues due in particular to (i) a further reduction in market interest rates and a
likely prolongation of the low interest rate environment and (ii) lower asset management inflows

and hence revenues from fees and commissions;

(b) increased risk of a ratings downgrade following the sector reviews announced by certain rating
agencies;
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7.2

(c) deterioration in the Group's liquidity due to various factors including increased customer
drawdowns and / or lower deposit balances; and

(d) higher risk weighted assets due to the deterioration of risk parameters hence affecting the
Group's capital position.

Uncertainty as to the duration and extent of the course of the pandemic as well as the pace of emergence
from lockdowns and loosening of restrictions on mobility and other restrictions makes the overall impact
on the economies of the Group's principal markets as well as the world economy difficult to predict. The
extent to which the economic consequences of the pandemic will continue to affect the Group's results
and financial condition will depend largely on (i) the timing and extent of a return to pre-pandemic
lifestyles, business operations and economic interactions, (ii) the effects of the measures taken to date or
future measures that may be taken by governments and central banks to attenuate the economic fallout
of the pandemic and (iii) the duration and extent of the pandemic, including the prospect of additional
waves and hence of a reinstitution of containment measures in the various markets where the Group
operates. In addition, while central bank and government actions and support measures taken in response
to the pandemic have to date attenuated, and may well continue to help attenuate, the adverse economic
and market consequences of the pandemic, they have also issued and may issue additional restrictions or
recommendations in respect of banks' actions (in particular, the recommendation issued by the European
Central Bank on 27 March 2020). In particular, the measures have limited and may continue to limit or
seek to limit banks' flexibility in managing their business and taking action in relation to capital
distribution and capital allocation. In this respect, BNPP announced on 2 April 2020 that its Board of
Directors would propose to the annual shareholders’ meeting to suspend the payment of the dividend
originally proposed to be paid in respect of 2019 and to allocate the amount to reserves, with a potential
decision to be taken after 1 October 2020 regarding a possible distribution of reserves to shareholders.

BNPP's failure to implement its strategic plan or to achieve its published financial objective could affect
the trading price of its securities.

BNPP announced a strategic plan for the 2017-2020 period on 7 February 2017. This plan contemplates
a number of initiatives, including the implementation of new customer pathways, BNPP's digital
transformation, continuing to improve operating efficiency and various business development initiatives.
In its first quarter results publication on 5 May 2020, the Group provided new disclosure on the outlook
in respect of trends in revenues, operating expenses, cost of risk and net income attributable to the Group
for 2020 in order to take into account the possible effects, which are subject to a high degree of
uncertainty, of the health crisis which has caused a drastic revision of the 2020 macroeconomic scenario.

These financial objectives were established primarily for purposes of internal planning and allocation of
resources, and are based on a number of assumptions with regard to business and economic conditions.
BNPP's actual results could vary significantly from these objectives for a number of reasons, including
the occurrence of one or more of the risk factors relating to BNPP, in particular due to the consequences
of the health crisis, which has had and could continue to have major repercussions on the economic
outlook and generate major shocks in the financial market. If BNPP does not achieve its objectives, its
financial position and the trading price of its securities, as well as its financing costs, could be affected.

Additionally, BNPP is pursuing an ambitious Corporate Social Responsibility ("CSR") policy and is
committed to making a positive impact on society with concrete achievements. At the end of 2019, BNPP
reaffirmed its ambition to be a global leader in sustainable finance. BNPP is thus taking strong positions,
as a founding member of the United Nations Principles for Responsible Banking, which commits it to
align its strategy with the Paris Agreement and the Sustainable Development Goals ("SDGs"). Its
objective in 2020 is to provide €185 billion in financing to sectors contributing to the SDGs. It is
enhancing its support for the energy and environmental transition by deciding, for example, to reduce its
outstanding loans to thermal coal companies to zero by 2030 in the European Union and 2040 in the rest
of the world, and by raising its target for supporting renewable energy development by €18 billion by
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2021. These measures (and any future ones along similar lines) may in certain cases adversely affect
BNPP's results in the relevant sectors.

BNPP may experience difficulties integrating acquired companies and may be unable to realize the
benefits expected from its acquisitions.

BNPP makes acquisitions on a regular basis. For example, BNPP's most recent major acquisition was of
substantially all of the activities of Raiffeisen Bank Polska in Poland, which was completed on 31
October 2018; such activities were subsequently merged with BGZ BNP Paribas. Integrating acquired
businesses is a long and complex process, which entailed, in 2019, BNPP incurring €311 million in
restructuring costs, the integration of Raiffeisen Bank Polska, as well as the discontinuation or
restructuring of certain businesses (in particular, BNP Paribas Suisse in 2019). Successful integration
and the realization of synergies require, among other things, proper coordination of business
development and marketing efforts, retention of key members of management, policies for effective
recruitment and training as well as the ability to adapt information and computer systems. Any difficulties
encountered in combining operations could result in higher integration costs and lower savings or
revenues than expected. There will accordingly be uncertainty as to the extent to which anticipated
synergies will be achieved and the timing of their realization. Moreover, the integration of BNPP's
existing operations with those of the acquired operations could interfere with its respective businesses
and divert management's attention from other aspects of BNPP's business, which could have a negative
impact on BNPP's business and results. In some cases, moreover, disputes relating to acquisitions may
have an adverse impact on the integration process or have other adverse consequences, including
financial ones.

Although BNPP undertakes an in depth analysis of the companies it plans to acquire, such analyses often
cannot be complete or exhaustive. As a result, BNPP may increase its exposure to doubtful or troubled
assets and incur greater risks as a result of its acquisitions, particularly in cases in which it was unable to
conduct comprehensive due diligence prior to the acquisition.

BNPP's current environment may be affected by the intense competition amongst banking and non-
banking operators, which could adversely affect BNPP's revenues and profitability.

Competition is intense in all of BNPP's primary business areas in France and the other countries in which
it conducts a substantial portion of its business, including other European countries and the United States.
Competition in the banking industry could intensify as a result of consolidation in the financial services
area or as a result of the presence of new players in the payment and the financing services area, the
development of crowdfunding platforms, as well as the continuing evolution of consumer habits in the
banking sector. While BNPP has launched initiatives in these areas, such as the debut of Hello Bank!
and its acquisition of Nickel, competitors subject to less extensive regulatory requirements or to less
strict capital requirements (e.g., debt funds, shadow banks), or benefiting from economies of scale, data
synergies, technological innovation (e.g., internet and mobile operators, digital platforms, fintechs), or
free access to customer financial data could be more competitive by offering lower prices and more
innovative services to address the new needs of consumers. In addition, new payment systems and crypto-
currencies, such as Bitcoin, and new technologies that facilitate transaction processes, such as
blockchain, have developed in recent years. While it is difficult to predict the effects of these emerging
technologies as well as any applicable regulations, their use could nevertheless reduce BNPP's market
share or secure investments that otherwise would have used technology used by more established
financial institutions, such as BNPP. If BNPP is unable to respond to the competitive environment in
France or in its other major markets by offering more attractive, innovative and profitable product and
service solutions than those offered by current competitors or new entrants, it may lose market share in
key areas of its business or incur losses on some or all of its activities. In addition, downturns in the
economies of its principal markets could add to the competitive pressure, through, for example, increased
price pressure and lower business volumes for BNPP and its competitors (the results of BNPP's various
business lines in 2019 are described in the press release presenting the 2019 results, published on 5
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February 2020). It is also possible that the imposition of more stringent requirements (particularly capital
requirements and business restrictions) on large or systemically significant financial institutions, could
lead to distortions in competition in a manner adverse to large private sector institutions such as BNPP.

BNPP could experience business disruption and losses due to climate change risks such as transition
risks, physical risks or liability risks.

BNPP is exposed to risks related to climate change, either directly through its own operations or
indirectly through its financing and investment activities. There are two main types of risks related to
climate change: (i) transition risks, which result from changes in the behaviour of economic and financial
actors in response to the implementation of energy policies or technological changes; (ii) physical risks,
which result from the direct impact of climate change on people and property through extreme weather
events or long-term risks such as rising water levels or increasing temperatures. In addition, liability risks
may arise from both categories of risk. They correspond to the damages that a legal entity would have to
pay if it were found to be responsible for global warming. BNPP is progressively integrating the
assessment of these risks into its risk management system. BNPP monitors these risks in the conduct of
its business, in the conduct of its counterparties' business, and in its investments on its own behalf and
on behalf of third parties. In this respect, the specific credit policies and the General Credit Policy have
been enhanced since 2012 and 2014, respectively, with the addition of relevant clauses in terms of social
and environmental responsibility. In addition, sector-specific policies and policies excluding certain
Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG") sectors from financing have also been put in place. In
2019, as part of the fight against climate change, BNPP made new commitments to reduce its exposure
to thermal coal to zero by 2030 in the European Union and by 2040 for the rest of the world. By the end
of 2015, BNPP had already significantly strengthened its criteria for financing and investing in the coal
sector, and in 2017, it was the first bank to announce the cessation of its financing activities for companies
that derive most of their revenues from non-conventional hydrocarbons, measures that remain to date
among the most advanced in the sector. These decisions are also reflected in the energy mix that BNPP
finances. BNPP also supports its clients, both individuals and businesses, in their transition to a low-
carbon economy. BNPP also aims to reduce the environmental footprint of its own operations. Despite
the actions taken by BNPP to monitor risks and combat climate change, physical, transition or liability
risks related to climate change could disrupt business or lead to losses

Changes in certain holdings in credit or financial institutions could have an impact on BNPP's financial
position.

Amounts below the thresholds for prudential capital deduction are assets subject to a risk-weight of
250%. These assets include: credit or financial institutions consolidated under the equity method within
the prudential scope, (excluding insurance); significant financial interest in credit or financial institutions
in which BNPP holds a stake of more than 10%; and deferred tax assets that rely on future profitability
and arise from temporary differences.

The risk-weighted assets subject to this type of risk amounted to €16 billion at 31 December 2019, or 2%
of the total risk-weighted assets of BNPP.

Risk Factors Relating to BNPP B.V.

The main risks described above in relation to BNPP also represent the main risks for BNPP B.V., either as an
individual entity or a company of the BNPP Group.

Dependency Risk.

BNPP B.V. is an operating company. The assets of BNPP B.V. consist of the obligations of other BNPP Group
entities. In respect of securities it issues, the ability of BNPP B.V. to meet its obligations under such securities
depends on the receipt by it of payments under certain hedging agreements that it enters with other BNPP Group
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entities. Consequently, Holders of securities issued by BNPP B.V. will, subject to the provisions of the Guarantee
issued by BNPP, be exposed to the ability of BNPP Group entities to perform their obligations under such hedging
agreements and may suffer losses should these entities fail to satisfy their obligations.

More generally, the creditworthiness of BNPP B.V. depends on the creditworthiness of BNPP. In the case of
bankruptcy proceedings of BNPP B.V. or any other similar proceedings affecting the Issuer, Holders of securities
will become creditors of BNPP pursuant to the relevant guarantee granted by BNPP. Holders should also refer to
risk factor 6.3 BNPP could experience an unfavourable change in circumstances, causing it to become subject
to a resolution proceeding: holders of securities of BNPP could suffer losses as a result." above for a description
of the impact of resolution on the BNPP Group.

Credit risk.

BNPP B.V. has significant concentration of credit risks as all OTC contracts are acquired from its parent company
and other BNPP Group entities and such credit risks amount to the total size of its balance sheet (EUR 64.9 billion
as at 31 December 2019).

RISK FACTORS RELATING TO W&C SECURITIES

A number of the risks described below may be relevant to a specific series of W&C Securities, depending on the
terms of those W&C Securities. The effect of this compounding of risks is likely to increase the volatility of the
W&C Securities and increase the possibility that a Holder loses some or all of their investment or does not receive
the anticipated return.

Risks Relating to the Structure of the W&C Securities
Risks associated with specific types of products
€)] Risks associated with Leverage Products

The return on the W&C Securities depends on the performance of the Underlying Reference(s) and, in
the case of Certificates, whether automatic early redemption features apply. Additionally, the return may
depend on other market factors such as interest rates, the implied volatility of the Underlying
Reference(s) and the time remaining until exercise (in the case of European Style Warrants) or
redemption (in the case of Certificates). The effect of leverage on the W&C Securities may be either
positive or negative. As a consequence, investors may be exposed to a partial or total loss of their
investment.

(b) Final Payouts

The below products are vanilla products that all have a fixed term and a potential to have zero payout at
maturity under the worst case scenario, hence they are all considered to have no capital protection. All
but Turbo Certificates and Short Turbo Certificates have an exposure to the linear or inverse linear
performance of the Underlying Reference. Turbo Certificates and Short Turbo Certificates involve the
application of an adjustment factor to the performance of the Underlying Reference such that the payout
becomes non-linear. These products all share the same or similar risk profiles and belong to the same
category of vanilla products.

(1) Risks associated with Listed Securities

The return on the W&C Securities depends on the performance of the Underlying Reference(s).
There is no capital protection. As a consequence, investors may be exposed to a partial or total
loss of their investment.
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(i) Risks associated with Short Certificates

The return on the W&C Securities depends on the performance of the Underlying Reference(s).
There is no capital protection. As a consequence, investors may be exposed to a partial or total
loss of their investment.

(iii) Risks associated with Out-Performance Certificates

The return on the W&C Securities depends on the performance of the Underlying Reference(s).
There is no capital protection. As a consequence, investors may be exposed to a partial or total
loss of their investment.

(iv) Risks associated with Turbo Certificates and Short Turbo Certificates

The return on the W&C Securities depends on the performance of the Underlying Reference(s),
which is subject to the application of an adjustment factor. There is no capital protection. As a
consequence, investors may be exposed to a partial or total loss of their investment.

(v) Risks associated with Listed Securities on Single Underlying

The return on the W&C Securities depends on the performance of the Underlying Reference(s).
There is no capital protection. As a consequence, investors may be exposed to a partial or total
loss of their investment.

The formulae, relevant variables and other related provisions of these products are more fully described in "Annex
1 — Additional Terms and Conditions for Payouts".

W&C Securities subject to early redemption at the option of the Issuer, other early redemption (including
Automatic Early Redemption) and consequences of early redemption

An optional or other early redemption feature (including an Automatic Early Redemption feature) is likely to limit
the market value of the W&C Securities. In the case of W&C Securities with an optional redemption feature,
during any period when the relevant Issuer may elect to redeem the relevant W&C Securities, the market value of
those W&C Securities generally will not rise substantially above the price at which they can be redeemed. This
may also be true prior to any redemption period. In addition, the Final Terms may provide that the relevant W&C
Securities will be redeemed early in specified circumstances, such as the occurrence of an Additional Disruption
Event (as defined in Condition 15 (Additional Disruption Events and Optional Additional Disruption Events)), an
Optional Additional Disruption Event (as defined in Condition 15 (Additional Disruption Events and Optional
Additional Disruption Events)) and/or an Automatic Early Redemption Event (as defined in Condition 31.7
(Automatic Early Redemption (Certificates)). Following an optional or other early redemption (including an
Automatic Early Redemption), a Holder generally would not be able to reinvest the redemption proceeds (if any)
at an effective interest rate as high as the interest rate on the relevant W&C Securities being redeemed and may
only be able to do so at a significantly lower rate. As a consequence, the Holder may lose some or all of their
investment. Investors should consider reinvestment risk in light of other investments available at that time. In
addition, in the case of W&C Securities with an Automatic Early Redemption feature, the value of the W&C
Securities and the amount that Holders receive upon an Automatic Early Redemption may not correlate with the
value of the Underlying Reference, which may trigger such Automatic Early Redemption and Holders could
receive a significantly lower return than expected in relation to the change in value of the Underlying Reference.

Cost of borrowing
Holders of W&C Securities that are "short" (or "put") W&C Securities should note that the price of such W&C

Securities may include a premium charged to Holders which reflects the cost to the Issuer or its Affiliates of
borrowing the Underlying Reference(s). Holders will not receive a refund of this premium if an Automatic Early
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Redemption Event occurs or upon the exercise of an Issuer Call Option or a Holder Put Option, and consequently
may significantly reduce the return a Holder stands to receive on its investment.

Minimum trading amount may affect a Holder's ability to transfer their W&C Securities

If the W&C Securities have a minimum trading amount, a Holder will not be permitted to transfer its W&C
Securities prior to redemption without purchasing enough additional W&C Securities to hold the minimum trading
amount. The Holder may not be able to purchase additional W&C Securities, in which case they will have to wait
until redemption of the W&C Securities to realise any value. If they are able to purchase additional W&C
Securities, this may be at a price higher than their original investment and is likely to adversely affect the overall
return they achieve on their investment.

Certain specific information may not be known at the beginning of an offer period

Where an indicative range is specified in the Final Terms at the start of an offer period in respect of the issue
price, prospective purchasers of W&C Securities should be aware that the actual price selected from within the
indicative range specified for the issue price in respect of any W&C Securities may have a negative impact on the
final return on the W&C Securities when compared with another price within the indicative range.

Gap Risk

The relevant level, value or price of one or more Underlying Reference(s) may change suddenly and significantly
during the trading day or at the opening of the market. Such change may be positive or negative and is known as
the "Gap Risk". If the price of the W&C Securities includes a premium, this will be calculated to take account of
the cost to the Issuer or its Affiliates of unwinding its hedging positions in relation to the W&C Securities on early
redemption of the W&C Securities and the Gap Risk associated with the relevant level, value or price of the
Underlying Reference(s). Holders will not receive a refund of this premium if an Automatic Early Redemption
Event occurs, which could significantly reduce the return a Holder stands to receive on its investment.

Limited exposure to Underlying Reference(s)

If the applicable Final Terms provide that the exposure of the relevant W&C Securities to one or more Underlying
References is limited or capped at a certain level or amount, the relevant W&C Securities will not benefit from
any upside in the value of any such Underlying Reference(s) beyond such limit or cap. In this case, Holders will
not receive as much from their investment as they would have done if they had invested directly in the Underlying
Reference(s) or in alternative W&C Securities without such features. The likelihood of this occurring is dependent
on the likelihood of the Underlying Reference(s) performing such that the limit or cap affects the W&C Securities.

Limitations on Exercise

If so indicated in the Final Terms, the Issuer will have the option to limit the number of Warrants exercisable on
any date (other than the final exercise date) to the maximum number specified in the Final Terms and, in
conjunction with such limitation, to limit the number of Warrants exercisable by any person or group of persons
(whether or not acting in concert) on such date. In the event that the total number of Warrants being exercised on
any date (other than the final exercise date) exceeds such maximum number and the Issuer elects to limit the
number of Warrants exercisable on such date, a Holder may not be able to exercise on such date all the Warrants
that such Holder desires to exercise delaying the point at which a Holder may realise a return on the Warrants.

Minimum Exercise Amount of Warrants
If so indicated in the Final Terms, a Holder must tender or, in the case of automatic exercise, hold, a specified
number of Warrants at any one time in order to exercise. Thus, Holders with fewer than the specified minimum

number of Warrants will either have to sell their Warrants or purchase additional Warrants, incurring transaction
costs in each case, in order to realise their investment. Furthermore, holders of such Warrants incur the risk that
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there may be differences between the trading price of such Warrants and the Cash Settlement Amount of such
Warrants.

Time Lag after Exercise of Warrants

Delivery of an Exercise Notice by a Holder will constitute an irrevocable election to exercise the relevant
Warrants. After the delivery of an Exercise Notice, such Holder will not be able to transfer the Warrants that have
been exercised. There will be a time lag between the time a Holder gives instructions to exercise and the time the
applicable Cash Settlement Amount relating to such exercise is determined. Such delay could be significantly
longer, particularly in the case of a delay in the exercise of Warrants arising from any daily maximum exercise
limitation, the occurrence of a Market Disruption Event or the failure to open of an exchange (if applicable). The
applicable Cash Settlement Amount may change significantly during any such period, and such movement or
movements could decrease the Cash Settlement Amount of the relevant Warrants, and may result in such Cash
Settlement Amount being zero.

If the amount payable or deliverable on redemption of the W&C Securities changes during the life of the W&C
Securities, Holders may receive less than expected

If specified in the applicable Final Terms and the Issuer exercises its Payout Switch Election or if an Automatic
Payout Switch Event occurs (see Condition 31.8 (Payout Switch) (in the case of a Payout Switch Election or an
Automatic Payout Switch Event)), the redemption payout on such W&C Securities will change during the life of
the W&C Securities and investors may receive a return which differs from, and may be significantly less than,
that which they expected to receive as of the Issue Date or they may receive no return.

Risk of leveraged exposure

W&C Securities including a leverage feature magnify gains and losses. If the Underlying Reference moves against
expectations, Holders risk losing a greater proportion of their investment than if they had invested in a W&C
Security that is not leveraged.

There are no events of default under the W&C Securities

The Terms and Conditions of the W&C Securities do not include events of default allowing for the acceleration
of the W&C Securities if certain events occur. Accordingly, if the Issuer or the Guarantor (if applicable) fail to
meet any obligations under the W&C Securities, including the payment of any interest or bankruptcy proceedings
are instituted, Holders will not be able to accelerate the payment of principal. Upon a payment default, the sole
remedy available to Holders for recovery of amounts owing in respect of any payment of principal or interest on
their W&C Securities will be the institution of proceedings to enforce such payment. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, the Issuer or the Guarantor (if applicable) will not, by virtue of the institution of any such proceedings,
be obliged to pay any sum or sums sooner than the same would otherwise have been payable by it, meaning
investors could lose all or part of their investment. As a result, the value of the W&C Securities and/or their
liquidity in the secondary market could be negatively affected.

The terms of the W&C Securities do not contain a negative pledge and the Issuer is entitled to incur additional
debt

There is no negative pledge in respect of the W&C Securities and the Terms and Conditions of the W&C Securities
place no restrictions on the incurrence by the Issuer or the Guarantor (if applicable) of additional obligations that
rank pari passu with, or senior to, the W&C Securities. In addition, the Issuer or the Guarantor (if applicable) may
pledge assets to secure other notes or debt instruments without granting an equivalent pledge or security interest
and status to the W&C Securities. An increase of the outstanding amount of such securities or other liabilities
could reduce the amount (if any) recoverable by the Holders on a winding-up of the Issuer, if the amount
outstanding exceeds the assets of the Issuer, Holders could suffer a loss of their entire investment if the Issuer
becomes insolvent (whether voluntarily or otherwise).
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Risks Relating to the Underlying Reference(s) and Disruption and/or Adjustment Mechanisms
Risks associated with Underlying Reference Securities

W&C Securities issued under this Base Prospectus may be linked to the performance of one or more Underlying
Reference(s) (as further described in the "Investment Considerations™ section below) (such W&C Securities,
"Underlying Reference Securities"). Depending on the terms of the Underlying Reference Securities, the amount
payable on redemption will be determined by reference to the value of one or more Underlying References
specified in the applicable Final Terms. If an Underlying Reference does not perform as expected, this will have
a material adverse impact on the amounts (if any) that Holders will receive in respect of the W&C Securities and
may also negatively affect the value of the W&C Securities.

Absence of rights in respect of the Underlying Reference(s)

The W&C Securities do not represent a claim against any Underlying Reference (or any issuer, sponsor, manager
or other connected person in respect of an Underlying Reference) and Holders will not have any right of recourse
under the W&C Securities to any such Underlying Reference (or any issuer, sponsor, manager or other connected
person in respect of an Underlying Reference). The W&C Securities are not in any way sponsored, endorsed or
promoted by any issuer, sponsor, manager or other connected person in respect of an Underlying Reference and
such entities have no obligation to take into account the consequences of their actions on any Holders and such
consequences may have a negative impact on Holders.

The value of Underlying References may be subject to market fluctuations

Depending on the Underlying Reference, the value of a Holder's investment in Underlying Reference Securities,
may be significantly adversely affected by the negative impact of market fluctuations caused by economic and
political developments, changes in interest rates and perceived trends in the prices of securities.

Investment decision based on publicly available information

Holders are required to make their investment decision on the basis of information that is publicly available.
Therefore, Holders are exposed to the risk that information that is subsequently made public could adversely affect
the trading price of the Underlying Reference(s), which could have a significant adverse impact on the value of
the W&C Securities.

Risks associated with the occurrence of Additional Disruption Events and/or Optional Additional Disruption
Events

If an Additional Disruption Event occurs or any Optional Additional Disruption Event specified in the applicable
Final Terms occurs (each as defined in Condition 15 (Additional Disruption Events and Optional Additional
Disruption Events)), the W&C Securities may be subject to adjustment (including, in the case of Share Securities
linked to a Basket of Shares, adjustments to the Basket of Shares), early redemption or the amount payable on
scheduled redemption may be different from the amount expected to be paid at scheduled redemption. Any of
these consequences is likely to have a material adverse effect on the value and liquidity of the W&C Securities
and/or the return a Holder can expect to receive on their investment.

The occurrence of a Disrupted Day may have an adverse effect on the value and liquidity of the Index Securities,
Share Securities, ETI Securities or Debt Securities

If, in the determination of the Calculation Agent, a Market Disruption Event as described in the Index Security
Conditions, Share Security Conditions, ETI Security Conditions or Debt Security Conditions, as the case may be)
has occurred or the relevant exchange has not opened on a date for valuation in respect of an issue of Index
Securities, Share Securities, ETI Securities or Debt Securities (a "Disrupted Day"), any consequential
postponement of the valuation date, or any alternative provisions for valuation provided in any W&C Securities
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in respect of an Underlying Reference (including any Underlying Reference comprising a basket) may have an
adverse effect on the value and liquidity of such W&C Securities, particularly if the Redemption Date of the W&C
Securities is postponed as a consequence.

Additional risks associated with Index Securities

Index Securities are linked to the performance of an underlying index (an "Index"), which may reference various
asset classes such as equities, bonds, currency exchange rates or property price data, or could reference a mixture
of asset classes. Investors in Index Securities face the risk of a broader set of circumstances that mean that the
assets underlying the Index do not perform as expected compared to an investment in conventional debt securities.
Accordingly, the return on an investment in Index Securities is more likely to be adversely affected than an
investment in conventional debt securities. The terms and conditions relevant to Index Securities are set out in
"Annex 2 — Additional Terms and Conditions for Index Securities".

The occurrence of an Index Adjustment Event may adversely impact Holders of Index Securities

The occurrence of an Index Modification, an Index Cancellation or an Index Disruption (each being an "Index
Adjustment Event", as more fully described in Index Security Condition 3.2 (Modification and Cessation of
Calculation of an Index)) may (except as may be limited in the case of U.S. Securities) lead to (i) changes in the
calculation of the relevant value or price (if the Calculation Agent determines such Index Adjustment Event has
a material effect on the W&C Securities), (ii) early redemption of the W&C Securities or (iii) the amount payable
on scheduled redemption of the W&C Securities being different from the amount expected to be paid at scheduled
redemption. Any such adjustment or early redemption of the Index Securities may have an adverse effect on the
value and liquidity of such W&C Securities and accordingly the amount Holders can expect to receive on their
investment.

Additional risks associated with Share Securities

Unlike a direct investment in any Share(s), Stapled Share(s), GDR(s) and/or ADR(s) comprising the Underlying
Reference(s) (together the "Share(s)"), an investment in Share Securities does not entitle Holders to vote or
receive dividends or distributions (unless otherwise specified in the Final Terms). Accordingly, the return on Share
Securities will not be the same as a direct investment in the relevant Share(s) and Holders could receive less than
they would have done on a direct investment. The terms and conditions relevant to Share Securities are set out in
"Annex 3 — Additional Terms and Conditions for Share Securities".

An adjustment to Share Securities following a Potential Adjustment Event may adversely impact Holders

In the case of Share Securities, except as may be limited in the case of U.S. Securities, following the declaration
by the Basket Company or Share Company, as the case may be (or, in the case of Stapled Shares, an issuer of each
constituent share comprising the Stapled Shares), of the occurrence of any Potential Adjustment Event (as more
fully described in Share Security Condition 3 (Potential Adjustment Events)), the Calculation Agent will, acting
in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner, determine whether such Potential Adjustment Event has
a diluting or concentrative effect on the theoretical value of the Shares (or the Stapled Shares, as the case may be)
and, if so, will make the corresponding adjustment, if any, to any terms of the W&C Securities as the Calculation
Agent acting in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner determines appropriate to account for that
diluting or concentrative effect (provided that no adjustments will be made to account solely for changes in
volatility, expected dividends, stock loan rate or liquidity relative to the relevant Share (or the relevant Stapled
Shares, as the case may be)). Such adjustment may have an adverse effect on the value and liquidity of the affected
Share Securities and accordingly the amount Holders can expect to receive on their investment.

Extraordinary Events relating to Share Securities

Following the occurrence of an Extraordinary Event (as defined in Share Security Condition 4 (Extraordinary
Events)) in relation to a Share, the terms of the Share Securities may be adjusted (including, in the case of Share
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Securities linked to a Basket of Shares, adjustments to and/or substitution of constituent shares of the Basket of
Shares), the Share Securities may be redeemed in whole or in part or the Calculation Agent may make an
adjustment corresponding to adjustments made by an Options Exchange.

An adjustment to the Share Securities may have an adverse effect on the value and liquidity of the affected Share
Securities and accordingly the amount Holders can expect to receive on their investment. If the Share Securities
are early redeemed, an investor generally would not be able to reinvest the relevant proceeds at an effective interest
rate as high as the effective return on the relevant Securities being redeemed and may only be able to do so at a
significantly lower rate, and investors should consider reinvestment risk in light of other investments available at
that time. Consequently, the occurrence of an Extraordinary Event in relation to a Share may have an adverse
effect on the value or liquidity of the W&C Securities and accordingly the amount Holders can expect to receive
on their investment.

Securities Linked to Shares Traded on the China Connect Service

In respect of W&C Securities linked to Shares traded on the China Connect Service, if an Optional Additional
Disruption Event (as more fully described in Condition 15 (Additional Disruption Events and Optional Additional
Disruption Events)) specified in the applicable Final Terms occurs, such W&C Securities may be subject to
adjustment (including, in the case of Share Securities linked to a Basket of Shares, adjustments to the Basket of
Shares), cancellation (in the case of Warrants) or early redemption (in the case of Certificates) or the amount
payable on scheduled redemption (in the case of Certificates) may be different from the amount expected to be
paid at scheduled redemption. Further, if an issue of W&C Securities includes provisions dealing with the failure
to open of the China Connect Service on a date for valuation of an Underlying Reference (including any
Underlying Reference comprising a basket) and the Calculation Agent determines that the failure to open of the
China Connect Service has occurred or exists on such valuation date, the valuation date, the relevant Settlement
Date or Redemption Date may be subject to postponement, or any alternative provisions for valuation may apply.
Any of these consequences is likely to have a material adverse effect on the value and liquidity of the W&C
Securities and/or the return a Holder can expect to receive on their investment.

Additional risks associated with ETI Securities

An investment in ETI Securities carries similar risks to an investment in Share Securities or Fund Securities. An
exchange traded instrument (an "ETI") may invest using sophisticated techniques, such as leverage or short selling
or in complex financial instruments such as derivatives (swaps, options, futures), securities lending transactions,
repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements or foreign exchange instruments. If the investment strategy of the
ETI is not successful it will have a negative impact upon the performance of the ETI, and consequently, could
have a negative impact on the value of the ETI Securities and the return investors may receive. Holders of ETI
Securities have no right to participate in the ETI, whether by voting or in any distributions. Accordingly, the return
a Holder of ETI Securities receives could be less (and could be significantly less) than a direct investment in an
ETI. This effect could be amplified if the ETI Share Provisions (as set out in ETI Security Conditions 9 to 14) are
specified as not applicable in the applicable Final Terms and the value of the ETI is linked to the NAV per ETI
Interest, the trading price of the ETI or the actual redemption proceeds the Hedge Provider or a hypothetical
investor in the relevant ETI(s) would receive. The terms and conditions relevant to ETI Securities are set out in
"Annex 4 — Additional Terms and Conditions for ETI Securities".

An adjustment to ETI Securities following a Potential Adjustment Event may adversely impact Holders

In the case of ETI Securities, except as may be limited in the case of U.S. Securities, following the declaration by
the relevant ETI or any person appointed to provide services directly or indirectly in respect of such ETI, as the
case may be, of the terms of any Potential Adjustment Event (as more fully described in ETI Security Condition
3 (Potential Adjustment Events) or (if the ETI Share Provisions are specified as applicable in the applicable Final
Terms) ETI Security Condition 11 (Potential Adjustment Events)), the Calculation Agent will, acting in good faith
and in a commercially reasonable manner, determine whether such Potential Adjustment Event has a diluting or
concentrative effect on the theoretical value of the ETI Interests and, if so, will make the corresponding
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adjustment, if any, to any terms of the W&C Securities as the Calculation Agent acting in good faith and in a
commercially reasonable manner determines appropriate to account for that diluting or concentrative effect
(provided that no adjustments will be made to account solely for changes in volatility, expected dividends, stock
loan rate or liquidity relative to the relevant ETI Interest). Such adjustment may have an adverse effect on the
value and liquidity of the affected ETI Securities, and accordingly, the amount Holders can expect to receive on
their investment.

The occurrence of an Extraordinary ETI Event (where ETI Share Provisions is not applicable) or Extraordinary
Event (where ETI Share Provisions is applicable) may have an adverse impact on Holders

If an Extraordinary ETI Event or an Extraordinary Event (each as further described in the "Investment
Considerations" section below and ETI Security Condition 4 (Extraordinary ETI Events) or (if the ETI Share
Provisions are specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms) ETI Security Condition 12 (Extraordinary
Events)) occurs, the Issuer may (i) adjust the terms of the ETI Securities to reflect such event, (ii) substitute the
relevant ETI Interests, or (iii) early redeem the ETI Securities. Consequently, the occurrence of an Extraordinary
ETI Event or an Extraordinary Event, as the case may be, may have an adverse effect on the value or liquidity of
the W&C Securities and the amount Holders can expect to receive on their investment.

Additional risks associated with Fund Securities

The value of underlying fund shares or units in respect of Fund Securities will be affected by the investment
strategy of the relevant fund. The investment strategy is often opaque and may not be publicly available. In
addition, funds are often illiquid and/or unregulated. If the investment strategy does not perform as expected, there
are limited methods by which direct investments in fund shares or units can be exited. The value of the fund shares
or units is also exposed to the performance of various fund service providers, in particular, the investment adviser.
Taking these circumstances into account, compared to other types of investment, there is a greater risk associated
with an investment in Fund Securities that the value of the W&C Securities may be adversely affected (and could
fall to zero) and the return an investor can expect to receive may be less (and could be significantly less) than
expected. The terms and conditions relevant to Fund Securities are set out in "Annex 6 — Additional Terms and
Conditions for Fund Securities".

The occurrence of an Extraordinary Fund Event may have an adverse impact on Holders

If an Extraordinary Fund Event (as further described in the "Investment Considerations” section below and Fund
Security Condition 2 (Extraordinary Fund Events)) occurs, the Issuer may, (i) adjust the terms of the Fund
Securities to reflect such event, (ii) substitute the relevant Fund Shares or (iii) early redeem the Fund Securities.
Consequently, the occurrence of an Extraordinary Fund Event may have an adverse effect on the value or liquidity
of the W&C Securities and the amount Holders can expect to receive on their investment.

Date for redemption may be postponed if Hedge Provider does not receive redemption proceeds from Fund Shares

In the event that redemption proceeds in respect of the underlying Fund Shares are not received by the Hedge
Provider on or prior to the scheduled date for redemption, the Redemption Date of the Fund Securities may be
postponed for a period of up to two calendar years (or such other period as may be specified in the applicable
Final Terms) in accordance with Fund Security Condition 5 (Settlement Date/Redemption Date/Termination Date
Extension) and no additional amount shall be payable as a result of such delay. Such delay could have a significant
adverse impact on the amount that the Holder would have otherwise received had such date for redemption not
been postponed.

Risks Relating to the Market

Certain factors affecting the value and trading price of W&C Securities
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The trading price of the W&C Securities may be affected by a number of factors including, but not limited to, the
relevant price, value or level of the Underlying Reference(s), the time remaining until the scheduled redemption
date of the W&C Securities, the actual or implied volatility associated with the Underlying Reference(s) and the
correlation risk of the relevant Underlying Reference(s).

The possibility that the value and trading price of the W&C Securities will fluctuate (either positively or
negatively) depends on a number of factors, which investors should consider carefully before purchasing or selling
W&C Securities, including:

€)] the trading price of the W&C Securities;

(b) depending on the applicable payout, movements in the value and/or volatility of the Underlying
Reference may cause the value of the W&C Securities to either rise or fall;

(© depending on the applicable payout, the value of the W&C Securities may fluctuate as the time remaining
until the scheduled redemption date decreases;

(d) the probable range of Cash Settlement Amounts;

(e) depending on the applicable payout, movements in interest rates and/or dividends (if applicable) may
cause the theoretical value of the W&C Securities to either rise or fall;

()] any change(s) in currency exchange rates;

(9) the depth of the market or liquidity of the Underlying Reference as specified in the applicable Final
Terms; and

(h) any related transaction costs.

Such factors may mean that the trading price of the W&C Securities is below the Cash Settlement Amount, as
applicable and accordingly, Holders may receive an amount or an asset with a value significantly lower than the
amount that they invested to purchase the W&C Securities.

A Security's purchase price may not reflect its inherent value

Prospective investors in the W&C Securities should be aware that the purchase price of a Security does not
necessarily reflect its inherent value. Any difference between a Security's purchase price and its inherent value
may be due to a number of different factors including, without limitation, prevailing market conditions and fees,
discounts or commissions paid or accorded to the various parties involved in structuring and/or distributing the
Security. Any such difference in value could negatively affect the return an investor may receive. For further
information prospective investors should refer to the party from whom they are purchasing the W&C Securities.
Prospective investors may also wish to seek an independent valuation of W&C Securities prior to their purchase.

Possible illiquidity of the W&C Securities in the secondary market

For certain issues of W&C Securities, BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C. is required to act as market-maker, in which
case it will endeavour to maintain a secondary market throughout the life of the W&C Securities. However, during
certain periods, it may be difficult, impractical or impossible for BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C. to quote bid and
offer prices, and during such periods, it may be difficult, impracticable or impossible to buy or sell these W&C
Securities. Adverse market conditions, volatile prices or large price fluctuations, a large marketplace being closed
or restricted or experiencing technical problems such as an IT system failure or network disruption could affect
BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C.'s ability to maintain a secondary market.
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Each Issuer may, but is not obliged to, at any time purchase W&C Securities at any price in the open market or
by tender or private offer/treaty. Any Manager may also be a market-maker for an issue of W&C Securities but it
is not obliged to and may cease to do so at any time. Even if a Manager is a market-maker for an issue of W&C
Securities (including where BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C. acts as market-maker), the secondary market for such
W&C Securities may be limited.

The only means through which a Holder can realise value from their W&C Securities prior to its Redemption
Date is to sell them at the market price in an available secondary market, which may be a lower price than a
Holder's original investment. If there is no or a limited secondary market for the W&C Securities and the Holder
is unable to sell its W&C Securities they will have to wait until redemption of the W&C Securities to realise any
value.

W&C Securities sold in the United States or to U.S. persons may be subject to transfer restrictions, which will
also limit a Holder's ability to sell their W&C Securities prior to redemption.

Effect of credit rating reduction

The value of the W&C Securities is expected to be affected, in part, by investors' general appraisal of the
creditworthiness of the relevant Issuer and, if applicable, the Guarantor. Such perceptions are generally influenced
by the ratings attributed to the outstanding securities of BNPP B.V. or BNPP by standard statistical rating services,
such as S&P Global Ratings Europe Limited, Fitch France S.A.S., Moody's France SAS, Moody's Investors
Service Ltd., and Fitch Ratings Ltd. A reduction in the rating, if any, attributed to outstanding debt securities of
BNPP B.V. or BNPP by one of these rating agencies could result in a reduction in the trading value of the W&C
Securities.

Risks associated with W&C Securities with a nexus to emerging markets

Where the value and return an investor can expect to receive in respect of the W&C Securities depends on the
performance of one or more Underlying References issued by issuers located in, or subject to regulation in,
emerging or developing countries, denominated in the currency of, or are traded in, emerging or developing
countries or where the W&C Securities are denominated in currencies of emerging or developing countries,
Holders are exposed to greater risks associated with political and economic uncertainty, adverse governmental
policies, restrictions on foreign investment and currency convertibility, currency exchange rate fluctuations,
possible lower levels of disclosure and regulation, and uncertainties as to the status, interpretation and application
of laws including, but not limited to, those relating to expropriation, nationalisation and confiscation. Holders of
W&C Securities with such a nexus to emerging or developing countries are exposed to the risk that such W&C
Securities may be less liquid and the prices of such W&C Securities more volatile, thus increasing the risk that
such Holders may experience a loss on their investment. In addition, settlement of trades in such markets may be
slower and more likely to be subject to failure than in markets in developed countries.

Investors in such W&C Securities should also be aware that the probability of the occurrence of a Hedging
Disruption Event (or other adjustment event under the relevant terms of the W&C Securities as set out further in
the Conditions) and consequently loss of investment or profit by an investor may be higher for certain developing
or emerging markets.

Exchange control risks

There is a risk that authorities with jurisdiction over the Settlement Currency (as specified in the applicable Final
Terms) and/or the currency in which the Underlying Reference is denominated, such as government and monetary
authorities, may impose or modify (as some have done in the past) exchange controls that could adversely affect
an applicable exchange rate or the ability to transfer of funds in and out of the relevant country. Such exchange
controls, if imposed would have a negative impact on the amount a Holder is able to realise from W&C Securities
denominated in an affected Settlement Currency or referencing an affected Underlying Reference.
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Additional risks associated with Warrants

The only means through which a Holder can realise value from their W&C Securities prior to their Exercise Date
(in the case of European Style Warrants) or the beginning of their Exercise Period (in the case of American Style
Warrants) is to sell them at the market price in an available secondary market, which may be a lower value than
the original price at which the Holder purchased the W&C Securities. If there is no or a limited secondary market
for the W&C Securities and the Holder is unable to sell its W&C Securities they will have to exercise the W&C
Securities to realise any value. See "Possible illiquidity of the W&C Securities in the secondary market™ above.

Legal Risks
Meetings of Holders

The Terms and Conditions of the W&C Securities contain provisions for calling meetings of Holders to consider
matters affecting their interests generally (see Condition 8.4 (Meetings of Holders)). These provisions permit
defined majorities to bind all Holders, including Holders who did not attend and vote at the relevant meeting and
Holders who voted in a manner contrary to the majority. While it is not possible to assess the likelihood that the
Conditions will need to be amended during the term of the W&C Securities by a meeting of the Holders, if a
decision is adopted by a majority of Holders and such modifications impair or limit the rights of Holders, this may
negatively affect the market value of the W&C Securities, although the probability of such a decision being taken
by Holders is considered to be low.

The Issuer or the Guarantor (if applicable) may be substituted by another entity

The conditions of the W&C Securities provide (except in the case of U.S. Securities) that the Issuer may, following
the occurrence of certain events, without the consent of the Holders, agree to the substitution of another company
as the principal obligor under any W&C Securities in place of the Issuer, subject to the conditions set out in
Condition 13.2 (Substitution of the Issuer or the Guarantor). In particular, where the substitute is not BNPP,
BNPP will guarantee the performance of the substitute's obligations under the W&C Securities.

The conditions of the W&C Securities also provide that the Issuer may, following the occurrence of certain events,
without the consent of the Holders agree to the substitution of another company as the guarantor in respect of any
W&C Securities issued by BNPP B.V. in place of BNPP, subject to the conditions set out in Condition 13.5
(Substitution of the Issuer or the Guarantor). In particular, the creditworthiness of the substitute guarantor must
be at least equal to that of BNPP, as determined by the Calculation Agent, acting in good faith and in a
commercially reasonable manner, by reference to, inter alia, the long term senior debt ratings assigned by such
rating agencies as the Calculation Agent determines.

Each of the Issuer and the Guarantor shall only exercise a substitution of the Issuer or the Guarantor if (i) a
Substitution Event has occurred and (ii) it has obtained from the Substitute Issuer or Substitute Guarantor, as the
case may be, an undertaking that the substitution would not have a material impact on the interests of the Holders.
Despite this, any such substitution may negatively affect the value of the W&C Securities.

The Issuer will give Holders notice of such substitution in accordance with Condition 10 (Notices).

Potential Conflicts of Interest

BNPP, BNPP B.V. and/or any of their respective Affiliates or agents may engage in activities or arrangements in
a range of capacities that may result in conflicts of interest between their own financial interests and those of any

Holders, for example, by:

(i) engaging in trading activities (including hedging activities) relating to the Underlying Reference
or Reference Entity and other instruments or derivative products based on or relating to the
Underlying Reference or Reference Entity of any W&C Securities for their proprietary accounts
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or for other accounts under their management;

(i) underwriting future offerings of shares or other securities relating to an issue of W&C Securities
or acting as financial adviser or in a commercial banking capacity to certain companies or
companies whose shares or other securities are included in a basket in respect of a Series of
W&C Securities;

(iii) acting in a number of different capacities in relation to an underlying Index, including, but not
limited to, as issuer of the constituents of the Index, index sponsor or calculation agent;

(iv) engaging in business, such as investing in, extending loans to, providing advisory services to,
entering into financing or derivative transactions with a company that has issued shares or a
debt instrument, a fund that has issued fund shares or units, an exchange traded instrument
comprising the relevant Underlying Reference or a Reference Entity;

(v) receiving a fee for performing any services or entering into any transactions described above;

(vi) publishing research reports relating to any Underlying Reference or Reference Entity, which
express views that are inconsistent with purchasing or holding the W&C Securities;

(vii) making determinations regarding the occurrence of various events in respect of the W&C
Securities and the applicable consequences in its role as Calculation Agent or Issuer, as the case
may be, of the W&C Securities.

Any of the conflicts of interest described above could have a material adverse effect on the value of the W&C
Securities and the return a Holder can expect to receive on their W&C Securities, as none of BNPP, BNPP B.V.
and/or any of their respective Affiliates or agents, acting in any capacity, is required to have regard to the interests
of the Holders. Investors should also refer to the description of the role of the Calculation Agent in the "Investment
Considerations” section below.

Change of law

The Terms and Conditions of W&C Securities are based on English law in effect as at the date of this Base
Prospectus. No assurance can be given as to the impact of any possible judicial decision or change to an
administrative practice or change to English law after the date of this Base Prospectus and any such change could
materially adversely impact the value of any W&C Securities affected by it.

Termination of W&C Securities in the event of illegality or impracticability

If the Issuer determines that the performance of its obligations under the W&C Securities has become illegal,
impossible or impracticable in whole or in part for any reason, the Issuer may redeem the W&C Securities by
paying to each Holder the Early Redemption Amount (as defined in "Investment Considerations" below) specified
in the applicable Final Terms. Such redemption may result in an investor losing some or all of their investment in
the W&C Securities.

French Insolvency Law

As a société anonyme incorporated in France, French insolvency law applies to BNP Paribas as Issuer or
Guarantor. Under French insolvency law holders of debt securities are automatically grouped into a single
assembly of holders (the "Assembly™) in order to defend their common interests if a safeguard procedure
(procédure de sauvegarde), accelerated safeguard (procédure de sauvegarde accélérée), accelerated financial
safeguard procedure (procédure de sauvegarde financieére accélérée) or a judicial reorganisation procedure
(procédure de redressement judiciaire) is opened in France with respect to the Issuer.
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The Assembly comprises holders of all debt securities issued by the Issuer (including the W&C Securities),
whether or not under a debt issuance programme and regardless of their ranking and their governing law.

The Assembly deliberates on the proposed safeguard plan (projet de plan de sauvegarde), proposed accelerated
safeguard (projet de plan de sauvegarde accélérée), proposed accelerated financial safeguard plan (projet de plan
de sauvegarde financiére accélérée) or proposed judicial reorganisation plan (projet de plan de redressement)
applicable to BNPP and may further agree to:

- partially or totally reschedule payments which are due and/or write-off debts and/or convert
debts into equity (including with respect to amounts owed under the W&C Securities; and/or

- establish an unequal treatment between holders of debt securities (including the Holders) as
appropriate under the circumstances.

Decisions of the Assembly will be taken by a two-thirds majority (calculated as a proportion of the amount of
debt securities held by the holders expressing a vote). No quorum is required to hold the Assembly.

For the avoidance of doubt, the provisions relating to the Masse, the General Meeting of the Holders and Written
Resolutions set out in the Conditions will not be applicable in these circumstances.

The procedures described above (as may be amended from time to time) could have an adverse impact on Holders
seeking repayment of the W&C Securities in the event that the Issuer or its subsidiaries were to become insolvent.

The commencement of insolvency proceedings against the Issuer would have a material adverse effect on the
market value of W&C Securities issued by the Issuer. Any decisions taken by the Assembly could substantially
impact the Holders of the W&C Securities and even cause them to lose all or part of their investment, should they
not be able to recover amounts due to them from the Issuer.

The implementation of the EU Bank Recovery and Resolution Directive could materially affect the W&C Securities
and their Holders

Directive 2014/59/EU, as amended by Directive (EU) 2019/879 of the European Parliament and of the Council
of 20 May 2019 (the "Bank Recovery and Resolution Directive" or "BRRD") provides for the establishment of
an EU-wide framework for the recovery and resolution of credit institutions and investment firms. The BRRD has
been implemented in France by several legislative texts to provide relevant resolution authorities with, among
other powers, a credible set of tools (the "BRRD Resolution Tools") to intervene sufficiently early and quickly
in an unsound or failing institution so as to ensure the continuity of that institution's critical financial and economic
functions, while minimising the impact of its potential failure on the economy and financial system.

In respect of W&C Securities where BNPP is the Issuer or the Guarantor, if BNPP is determined to be failing or
likely to fail within the meaning of, and under the conditions set by the BRRD, and the relevant resolution
authority applies any, or a combination, of the BRRD Resolution Tools (including, a sale of the business, the
creation of a bridge institution, asset separation or bail-in), any shortfall from the sale of BNPP’s assets may lead
to a partial reduction in the outstanding amounts of certain claims of unsecured creditors of that entity (including,
as the case may be, the W&C Securities or the Guarantee), or, in a worst case scenario, a reduction to zero. The
unsecured debt claims of BNPP (including, as the case may be, the W&C Securities or the Guarantee) might also
be converted into equity or other instruments of ownership, in accordance with the hierarchy of claims in normal
insolvency proceedings, which equity or other instruments could also be subject to any future cancellation, transfer
or dilution (such reduction or cancellation being first on common equity tier one instruments, thereafter the
reduction, cancellation or conversion being on additional tier one instruments, then tier two instruments and other
subordinated debts, then other eligible liabilities). The relevant resolution authority may also seek to amend the
terms (such as varying the date for redemption) of any outstanding unsecured debt securities (including, as the
case may be, the W&C Securities or the Guarantee) (all as further described in Condition 3.2 (Recognition of Bail-
in and Loss Absorption)).
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Public financial support to resolve the Issuer (or the Guarantor, as the case may be) where there is a risk of failure
will only be used as a last resort, after having assessed and applied the resolution tools above, including the bail-
in tool, to the maximum extent possible whilst maintaining financial stability.

The exercise of any power under the BRRD by the relevant resolution authority or any suggestion that such powers
may be exercised could materially adversely affect the rights of the Holders of W&C Securities, the price or value
of their investment in the W&C Securities and/or the ability of the Issuer or the Guarantor, as the case may be, to
satisfy its obligations under the W&C Securities or the Guarantee, respectively. As a result, Holders of W&C
Securities could lose all or a substantial part of their investment in the W&C Securities.

The regulation and reform of "benchmarks" may adversely affect the value of W&C Securities linked to or
referencing such "benchmarks"

A number of major interest rates (including the London Inter-Bank Offered Rate ("LIBOR™) and the Euro
Interbank Offered Rate ("EURIBOR")), other rates, indices and other published values or benchmarks are the
subject of recent national, international and other regulatory guidance and proposals for reform. These reforms
may cause such benchmarks to perform differently than in the past, to disappear entirely or have other
consequences which cannot be predicted. Any such consequence could have a material adverse effect on the value
of and return on W&C Securities linked to any such value or benchmark.

The EU Regulation on indices used as benchmarks in financial instruments and financial contracts or to measure
the performance of investment funds (the "Benchmark Regulation”) is a key element of ongoing regulatory
reform in the EU and the UK and has applied, subject to certain transitional provisions, since 1 January 2018. In
addition to so-called “critical benchmark" indices, such as LIBOR and EURIBOR, other interest rates, foreign
exchange rates, and indices, including equity, commodity and "proprietary” indices or strategies, will in most
cases be within scope of the Benchmark Regulation as "benchmarks" where they are used to determine the amount
payable under, or the value of, certain financial instruments (including securities listed on an EU or UK regulated
market, EU or UK multilateral trading facility ("MTF"), EU or UK organised trading facility ("OTF") or via a
systematic internaliser).

The Benchmark Regulation applies to the contribution of input data to a benchmark, the administration of a
benchmark, and the use of a benchmark in the EU (which, for these purposes and as used below, includes the
United Kingdom). Amongst other things, the Benchmark Regulation requires EU benchmark administrators to be
authorised or registered as such and to comply with extensive requirements relating to benchmark administration.
It also prohibits certain uses by EU supervised entities of (a) benchmarks provided by EU administrators which
are not authorised or registered in accordance with the Benchmark Regulation and (b) benchmarks provided by
non-EU administrators where (i) the administrator's regulatory regime has not been determined to be "equivalent"
to that of the EU, (ii) the administrator has not been recognised in accordance with the Benchmark Regulation, or
(iii) the benchmark has not been endorsed in accordance with the Benchmark Regulation.

The Benchmarks Regulation could have a material adverse impact on any W&C Securities for which a request
for admission to trading on a trading venue has been made, or which are traded on a trading venue or via a
"systematic internaliser” linked to, referencing or otherwise dependent (in whole or in part) upon a "benchmark™
for Benchmarks Regulation purposes.

Any of the above changes or any other consequential changes to any benchmark may result in:

. the level of the published rate or the level of the "benchmark™ or the volatility of the published rate or
level being adversely affected;

. an increase in the costs and risks of administering or otherwise participating in the setting of a
"benchmark™ and complying with such regulations or requirements;

) the "benchmark" (including certain currencies or tenors of benchmarks) being discontinued or otherwise
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unavailable, which may result in the rate of interest in respect of the W&C Securities (if any) being
determined based on any applicable fallback provisions;

. the methodology or other terms of the benchmark being changed in order to comply with regulatory
requirements;

. the occurrence of an Administrator/Benchmark Event (as further described under "Risks associated with
the occurrence of an Administrator/Benchmark Event" below); or

. have other adverse effects or unforeseen consequences.

Any such consequences could have a material adverse effect on the value of and return on any W&C Securities
and/or could lead to the W&C Securities being de-listed, adjusted, redeemed early following the occurrence of an
Administrator/Benchmark Event, subject to discretionary valuation or adjustment by the Calculation Agent or
otherwise impacted depending on the particular "benchmark" and the applicable terms of the W&C Securities.
This could also negatively affect the liquidity of the W&C Securities and a Holder's ability to sell their W&C
Securities in the secondary market.

Risks associated with the occurrence of an Administrator/Benchmark Event

If specified as an Optional Additional Disruption Event in the applicable Final Terms, the occurrence of an
Administrator/Benchmark Event (as defined in Condition 15 (Additional Disruption Events and Optional
Additional Disruption Events) and more fully described in the "Investment Considerations" section below) may
lead to redemption or adjustment of the W&C Securities. Any such adjustment or redemption of the W&C
Securities following the occurrence of an Administrator/Benchmark Event may have an adverse effect on the
value and liquidity of such W&C Securities and accordingly the amount Holders can expect to receive on their
investment.

Future discontinuance of LIBOR or EURIBOR may adversely affect the value of the W&C Securities

As further described in the "Investment Considerations" section below, there is uncertainty as to whether LIBOR
will cease to exist entirely after the end of 2021 and it is not possible to predict whether, and to what extent, panel
banks will continue to provide LIBOR submissions to the administrator of LIBOR going forwards. As a
consequence, LIBOR may perform differently than it did in the past and may have other consequences which
cannot be predicted. The future of EURIBOR is also uncertain. Amongst other developments, relevant authorities
are strongly encouraging the transition away from Interbank Offered Rates ("IBORs"), such as LIBOR and
EURIBOR, and have identified "risk free rates" to eventually take the place of such IBORs as primary
benchmarks. This includes (i) for sterling LIBOR, a reformed Sterling Overnight Index Average ("SONIA"), so
that SONIA may be established as the primary sterling interest rate benchmark by the end of 2021, (ii) for EONIA
and EURIBOR, a new Euro Short-Term Rate ("€STR") as the new euro risk free rate, and (iii) for USD LIBOR,
the Secured Overnight Financing Rate ("SOFR™) to be established as the primary U.S. dollar interest rate
benchmark. The risk free rates have a different methodology and other important differences from the IBORS they
will eventually replace and have little, if any, historical track record and may be subject to changes in their
methodology. It is not known whether certain IBORs will continue long-term in their current form. Any of these
developments could have a material adverse effect on the value of and return on W&C Securities linked to any
such rates.

The reforms and eventual replacement of IBORs with risk free rates may cause the relevant IBOR to perform
differently than in the past, to disappear entirely, or have other consequences which cannot be predicted.

Investors in W&C Securities that pay an Automatic Early Redemption Amount referencing LIBOR or EURIBOR
face the risk that such rate will be discontinued or otherwise unavailable following the occurrence of an Automatic
Early Redemption Event, in which case the rate of interest on the W&C Securities will be determined for the
relevant period by the fall-back provisions applicable to the W&C Securities. Depending on the manner in which
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the LIBOR or EURIBOR rate is to be determined under the Terms and Conditions, this may in certain
circumstances (i) be reliant upon the provision by reference banks of offered quotations for the LIBOR or
EURIBOR rate which, depending on market circumstances, may not be available at the relevant time, (ii) result
in the effective application of a fixed rate based on the rate which applied in the previous period when LIBOR or
EURIBOR was available, or (iii) be determined by reference to an alternative rate selected by an institution with
authority consistent with industry accepted standards or, in the absence of such alternative rate, by a third party
agent appointed by the Calculation Agent. As the replacement rate will not be identical to the original rate (and
may not be comparable), any of the foregoing circumstances could have a significant adverse effect on the value
or liquidity of, and return on, the W&C Securities. In addition, any Holders of such W&C Securities that enter
into hedging instruments based on the original replacement reference rate may find their hedges to be ineffective,
and they may incur costs replacing such hedges with instruments tied to the new replacement reference rate.

The relationship of the United Kingdom with the European Union may affect the business (including the W&C
Securities) of the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor (if applicable) in the United Kingdom

Under the terms of the ratified EU-UK article 50 withdrawal agreement (the "article 50 withdrawal agreement"),
a transition period has now commenced which will last until 31 December 2020. During this period, most EU
rules and regulations will continue to apply to and in the UK and negotiations in relation to a free trade agreement
will be ongoing. Under the article 50 withdrawal agreement, the transition period may, before 1 July 2020, be
extended once by up to two years. However, the UK legislation ratifying the article 50 withdrawal agreement (the
European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018 as amended by the European Union (Withdrawal Agreement) Act 2020
(as so amended, the "EUWA"™)) contains a prohibition on a Minister of the Crown agreeing any extension to the
transition period. While this does not entirely remove the prospect that the transition period will be extended (as
the UK Parliament could pass legislation that would override the effect of the prohibition in the EUWA), the
likelihood of a further extension is reduced. During the transition period, the UK and the EU may not reach
agreement on the future relationship between them, or may reach a significantly narrower agreement than that
envisaged by the political declaration of the European Commission and the UK Government.

To minimise the risks for firms and businesses the UK Government continues preparations (including the UK
Government publishing further draft secondary legislation under powers provided in the EUWA) to ensure that
there is a functioning statute book at the end of the transition period.

Due to the on-going political uncertainty as regards the structure of the future relationship between the UK and
the EU, the precise impact on the business of the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor (if applicable) in the United
Kingdom is difficult to determine. As such, no assurance can be given that such matters would not adversely affect
the ability of the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor (if applicable) to satisfy its obligations under any Series of
Securities with a United Kingdom nexus and/or the market value and/or the liquidity of such W&C Securities in
the secondary market.

The U.S. federal income tax characterisation of the W&C Securities is uncertain and may affect their value

The determination of whether an obligation represents debt, equity, or some other instrument or interest for U.S.
federal tax purposes is based on all the relevant facts and circumstances associated with the W&C Securities.
There may not be statutory, judicial or administrative authority directly addressing the characterisation of some
of the types of W&C Securities that are anticipated to be issued under the Base Prospectus. No determination has
been requested from the U.S. Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") with respect to the W&C Securities, and the
treatment of the W&C Securities described under the section entitled "U.S. Federal Income Taxation" is not
binding on the IRS or the courts, which might not agree with such treatment. Alternative treatments of the W&C
Securities could result in less favourable U.S. federal income tax consequences for an investor, including a
requirement to accrue income on a current basis and to treat any gain as ordinary income. As a result, significant
aspects of the U.S. federal income tax consequences of an investment in the W&C Securities are uncertain.
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INVESTMENT CONSIDERATIONS
1. General investment considerations associated with the W&C Securities
W&C Securities are Unsecured Obligations

The W&C Securities are unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the relevant Issuer and will rank pari passu
with themselves. Each issue of W&C Securities issued by BNPP B.V. will be guaranteed by BNPP pursuant to
the Guarantee. The obligations of BNPP under the Guarantee are senior preferred obligations within the meaning
of Article L.613-30-3-1-3° of the French Code monétaire et financier) and unsecured obligations of BNPP and
will rank pari passu with all its other present and future senior preferred and unsecured obligations, subject to
such exceptions as may from time to time be mandatory under French law.

Description of the role of the Calculation Agent

0] The Calculation Agent may be an Affiliate of the relevant Issuer or, if applicable, the Guarantor, or the
Calculation Agent may be the Issuer itself or, if applicable, the Guarantor itself. The Calculation Agent
is under no obligation to take into account the interests of Holders of the W&C Securities, including with
respect to making certain determinations and judgments, such as whether an event, including a Market
Disruption Event (as defined in the Conditions), has occurred and, in some cases, the applicable
consequences.

(i) The Calculation Agent is obliged to carry out its duties and functions as calculation agent acting in good
faith and in a commercially reasonable manner.

Investors should also refer to "Potential conflicts of interest” in the "Risks™ section.
Certain specific information may not be known at the beginning of an offer period

In certain circumstances, at the commencement of an offer period in respect of W&C Securities, but prior to the
issue date of such W&C Securities certain specific information (specifically, the issue price) may not be known.
In these circumstances the Final Terms will specify in place of the relevant price a minimum and/or maximum
price or an indicative range of prices. The actual price applicable to the W&C Securities will be selected by the
Issuer from within the range or will not be higher than the maximum price and/or will not be lower than the
minimum price as specified in the applicable Final Terms and will be notified to investors prior to the Issue Date.
The actual price will be determined in accordance with market conditions by the Issuer in good faith and in a
commercially reasonable manner.

Prospective purchasers of W&C Securities will be required to make their investment decision based on the
minimum and/or maximum price or the indicative range rather than the actual price which will only be fixed after
the investment decision is made but will apply to the W&C Securities once issued.

Recognition of English law judgments at the end of the United Kingdom’s Brexit Transition Period

Investors should note that on 31 January 2020, the United Kingdom (the “UK”) withdrew from the European
Union under the “Agreement on the withdrawal of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland
from the European Union and the European Atomic Energy Community” dated 19 October 2019 (the
“Withdrawal Agreement”). The Withdrawal Agreement instituted a transition period, ending on 31 December
2020 (the “Transition Period”). Further to the Withdrawal Agreement, at the end of the Transition Period the
provisions of Regulation (EU) No 1215/2012 (the "Brussels Recast Regulation™), which is the formal reciprocal
regime on jurisdiction and judgments currently applied in the EU, will no longer apply in the UK. As a
consequence, persons enforcing a judgment obtained before English courts will no longer automatically be able
to benefit from the recognition of such judgment in EU courts (including France) under such Regulation, subject
to a new regime being agreed.
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The Hague Convention is an international convention which requires contracting states to recognise and respect
exclusive jurisdiction clauses in favour of other contracting states and to enforce related judgments. On 28
December 2018 the UK lodged its instrument of accession to the Hague Convention on Choice of Court
Agreement 2005 (the "Hague Convention™) meaning that the Hague Convention would become applicable in the
UK as of or shortly after the United Kingdom leaves the European Union. On 31 January 2020, the Government
of the UK withdrew such instrument of accession to the Hague Convention and declared that the UK intends to
deposit a new instrument of accession at the appropriate time prior to the termination of the Transition Period to
ensure the seamless continuity of the application of the Hague Convention in the UK. Subject to such timely
accession, as France is already a party to the Hague Convention, judgments handed down by a UK court should
be recognised and enforced under this Convention in France. However, the scope of the Hague Convention is
limited to contracts containing exclusive jurisdiction clauses and there is no assurance that such judgments will
be recognised on exactly the same terms and in the same conditions as under the Brussels Recast Regulation.

2. Investment considerations associated with certain interest rates
Additional information on the future discontinuance of LIBOR

On 27 July 2017, the Chief Executive of the United Kingdom Financial Conduct Authority, which regulates
LIBOR, announced that it does not intend to continue to persuade, or use its powers to compel, panel banks to
submit rates for the calculation of LIBOR to the administrator of LIBOR after 2021. The announcement indicates
that the continuation of LIBOR on the current basis is not guaranteed after 2021.

Specifically, the sustainability of LIBOR has been questioned as a result of the absence of relevant active
underlying markets and possible disincentives (including possibly as a result of benchmark reforms) for market
participants to continue contributing to such benchmarks. On 27 July 2017, and in a subsequent speech by its
Chief Executive on 12 July 2018, the UK Financial Conduct Authority ("FCA™) confirmed that it will no longer
persuade or compel banks to submit rates for the calculation of the LIBOR benchmark after 2021 (the "FCA
Announcements™). The FCA Announcements indicated that the continuation of LIBOR on the current basis
cannot and will not be guaranteed after 2021.

Investors should be aware that, if LIBOR (or EURIBOR) were discontinued or otherwise unavailable, in respect
of W&C Securities that pay an Automatic Early Redemption Amount linked to an AER Rate following the
occurrence of an Automatic Early Redemption Event, the Automatic Early Redemption Amount will be
determined for the relevant period by the fall-back provisions applicable to the W&C Securities, as further
described in the Conditions.

If LIBOR, EURIBOR or any other benchmark is discontinued, the applicable AER Rate may be changed

In respect of W&C Securities that pay an Automatic Early Redemption Amount linked to an AER Rate following
the occurrence of an Automatic Early Redemption Event, if the Issuer or the Calculation Agent determines at any
time that the relevant reference rate has been discontinued, the Calculation Agent will use, as a substitute for the
relevant reference rate, the alternative reference rate selected by the central bank, reserve bank, monetary authority
or any similar institution in the jurisdiction of the currency of the relevant rate that is consistent with industry
accepted standards. If the Calculation Agent notifies the Issuer that it is unable to determine such an alternative
reference rate, the Calculation Agent will appoint a determination agent (which may be the Issuer, the Guarantor
(if applicable) or an affiliate of the Issuer, the Guarantor (if applicable) or the Calculation Agent) who will
determine a replacement reference rate, as well as any required changes to the business day convention, the
definition of business day, the interest determination date, the day count fraction and any method for calculating
the replacement rate including any adjustment required to make such replacement reference rate comparable to
the relevant reference rate. Such replacement reference rate will (in the absence of manifest error) be final and
binding, and will apply to the relevant W&C Securities.

The replacement rate may perform differently from the discontinued reference rate. There can be no assurance
that any adjustment applied to any W&C Securities will adequately compensate for this impact.
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The conditions also provide for other fallbacks, such as consulting reference banks for rate quotations, which may
not be possible if the reference banks decline to provide such quotations for a sustained period of time (or at all).
If the relevant screen page for the reference rate is not available or it is not possible to obtain quotations then the
Calculation Agent will determine the relevant rate of interest for the affected W&C Securities as the rate it
determines was last available prior to such non-availability. The value of the W&C Securities may change if the
replacement rate is different to the original rate.

It is possible that, if a reference rate is discontinued, a clear successor rate will not be established in the market
for some time. Accordingly, the terms of the W&C Securities provide as an ultimate fallback that, following the
designation of a replacement rate, if the Calculation Agent or the determination agent appointed by the Calculation
Agent considers that such replacement reference rate is no longer substantially comparable to the original
reference rate or does not constitute an industry accepted successor rate, the Calculation Agent will appoint or re-
appoint a determination agent (which may or may not be the same entity as the original determination agent) for
the purposes of confirming the replacement reference rate or determining a substitute replacement reference rate
(despite the continued existence of the initial replacement reference rate). Any such substitute replacement
reference rate, once designated pursuant to the Conditions, will apply to the affected W&C Securities. This could
impact the relevant rate of interest in respect of the W&C Securities. In addition, any Holders of such W&C
Securities that enter into hedging instruments based on the original replacement reference rate may find their
hedges to be ineffective, and they may incur costs replacing such hedges with instruments tied to the new
replacement reference rate.

3. Investment considerations associated with adjustment, disruption and related redemption
provisions in respect of the W&C Securities

Description of Additional Disruption Events and Optional Additional Disruption Events.

The Additional Disruption Events correspond to changes in law (including changes in tax or regulatory capital
requirements) and hedging disruptions in respect of any hedging transactions relating to the W&C Securities. The
Optional Additional Disruption Events that may be specified in the applicable Final Terms correspond to the
occurrence of an event relating to benchmark reform (including a material change, permanent cancellation or issue
with any official authorisation of the benchmark, administrator or sponsor) (an Administrator/Benchmark Event),
an early redemption of any Debt Instruments (a Cancellation Event), a material hindrance or delay to the
performance of the Issuer's obligations under the W&C Securities (an Extraordinary External Event), a default by
any hedging counterparty in respect of the W&C Securities (a Hedging Party Default), a materially increased cost
of hedging (an Increased Cost of Hedging), an increase in the rate to borrow any relevant share or any component
of an Index (an Increased Cost of Stock Borrow), circumstances where it is impracticable, illegal or impossible to
purchase, sell, hold or otherwise deal in the Underlying Reference (a Jurisdiction Event), insolvency of the
relevant Share Company or Basket Company (an Insolvency Filing), an inability to borrow any relevant share (a
Loss of Stock Borrow), a drop in the price of a Share below 5 per cent. (or such other value specified in the
applicable Final Terms) of its Strike Price (a Stop-Loss Event) and/or an event that is not attributable to the Issuer
that significantly alters the economics of the W&C Securities (a Significant Alteration Event). Each of the
Additional Disruption Events and Optional Additional Disruption Events are both more fully set out in the
Conditions.

Consequences of a Disrupted Day

The occurrence of a Disrupted Day may delay the determination of the final level, value, price or amount of the
index, share, ETI interest or debt instrument which could also cause a delay in the payment of any Cash Settlement
Amount, as more fully set out in the Conditions.

Description of Early Redemption Amounts

The manner in which the amount due to Holders on an early redemption of the W&C Securities is determined
may depend on the event that has triggered an early redemption of the W&C Securities and the early redemption
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method specified in the applicable Final Terms. The W&C Securities will be redeemed at an amount calculated
by reference to (unless otherwise specified) the fair market value of such W&C Securities (the "Early
Redemption Amount").

If the W&C Securities are early redeemed in part, the amount calculated as payable on such early redemption will
take into account that only a portion of the outstanding W&C Securities are being early redeemed.

4, Investment considerations associated with W&C Securities linked to the performance of one or
more Underlying References

Additional investment considerations in respect of Index Securities.

In respect of Index Securities, Holders will receive an amount (if any) on redemption determined by reference to
the value of the underlying index/indices and/or the Index Securities will pay interest calculated by reference to
the value of the underlying index/indices. Such underlying index may be a well known and widely published index
or an index which may not be widely published or available. The index may reference, among other asset types,
equities, bonds, currency exchange rates, or other securities or it may be a property index referencing certain
property price data which will be subject to market price fluctuations, or reference a number of different assets or
indices. A property index may include valuations only and not actual transactions and the property data sources
used to compile the index may be subject to change.

If the Index specified in the Final Terms is replaced by a successor index with the same or a substantially similar
method for calculating that index or the original index sponsor is replaced by a successor index sponsor acceptable
to the Calculation Agent, the successor index or the successor index sponsor will replace the original index or
original index sponsor, as applicable.

Following a modification to the methodology of the Index (an Index Modification), a permanent cancellation of
the Index (an Index Cancellation) or if the Index Sponsor fails to calculate or publish the level of the Index on a
relevant date for valuation (an Index Disruption) (each, an "Index Adjustment Event"), (i) the Calculation Agent
may determine whether to (x) determine the level of the Index itself, or (y) replace the Index, or (ii) the Issuer
may redeem the Index Securities at the Early Redemption Amount.

In addition, if the published level of an Index is subsequently corrected, the corrected level will be used if corrected
within the prescribed period, provided that, if the corrected level is published less than three Business Days prior
to a due date for payment it will be disregarded.

Additional investment considerations in respect of Share Securities

In respect of Share Securities, Holders will receive an amount (if any) on redemption determined by reference to
the value of the share(s) or Stapled Shares, GDRs and/or ADRs and/or the physical delivery of a given number of
share(s) or Stapled Shares, GDRs and/or ADRs and/or the Share Securities will pay interest calculated by
reference to the value of the underlying share(s) or Stapled Shares, GDRs and/or ADRSs.

No issuer of the underlying shares will have participated in the preparation of the relevant Final Terms or in
establishing the terms of the Share Securities, and none of the Issuer, the Guarantor (if applicable) or any Manager
will make any investigation or enquiry in connection with such offering with respect to any information
concerning any such issuer of shares contained in such Final Terms or in the documents from which such
information was extracted. Consequently, there can be no assurance that all events occurring prior to the relevant
issue date (including events that would affect the accuracy or completeness of the publicly available information
described in this paragraph or in any relevant Final Terms) that would affect the trading price of the share or
Stapled Shares, GDRs and/or ADRs will have been publicly disclosed. The trading price of the share or Stapled
Shares, GDRs and/or ADRs may vary if any such events are subsequently disclosed or if there is a disclosure or
failure to disclose material future events concerning such an issuer of shares.
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Except as provided in the Conditions, Holders will not have voting rights or rights to receive dividends or
distributions or any other rights with respect to the relevant shares to which such Share Securities relate.

A Potential Adjustment Event will occur in a number of scenarios more fully described in the Conditions that
have a diluting or concentrative effect on the theoretical value of the share(s). The Calculation Agent may adjust
the terms of the Share Securities as it determines appropriate to take account of such Potential Adjustment Event.

An Extraordinary Event will occur upon a De-Listing, Insolvency, Merger Event, Nationalisation, Stapling,
Tender Offer (unless Tender Offer is specified as not applicable in the applicable Final Terms) or (if specified in
the applicable Final Terms), Illiquidity, Listing Change or Listing Suspension in respect of a share. If an
Extraordinary Event occurs:

@ the Calculation Agent may make adjustments to any of the terms of the Share Securities (including, in
the case of Share Securities linked to a Basket of Shares, adjustments to and/or substitution of constituent
shares of the Basket of Shares);

(b) the Issuer may redeem the Share Securities in whole or (in the case of Share Securities linked to a Basket
of Shares) in part at the Early Redemption Amount; or

(© the Calculation Agent may make an adjustment to any terms of the Share Securities by reference to the
corresponding adjustment(s) made by the relevant exchange(s) or quotation system(s)) on which options
on the affected Shares are traded.

If the Stapled Shares become de-stapled such that one or more shares comprising the Stapled Shares may be held,
owned, sold, transferred, purchased and otherwise dealt with as an individual share, the Issuer may elect to
substitute the Stapled Shares with an alternative share meeting certain criteria selected by the Calculation Agent.

In addition, if the published price of a Share is subsequently corrected, the corrected price will be used if corrected
within the prescribed period, provided that, if the corrected price is published less than three Business Days prior
to a due date for payment it will be disregarded.

Additional investment considerations in respect of ETI Securities

In respect of ETI Securities, Holders will receive an amount (if any) on redemption determined by reference to
the value of an interest in one or more exchange traded instruments (an "ETI Interest") and/or the ETI Securities
will pay interest calculated by reference to the value of one or more ETI Interests. While ETI Interests are traded
on an exchange and are therefore valued in a similar manner as a share traded on an exchange, if ETI Share
Provisions is specified as not applicable in the applicable Final Terms, certain provisions related to ETI Securities
are similar to the provisions related to funds and Fund Securities. If ET1 Share Provisions is specified as applicable
in the applicable Final Terms, the provisions related to the ETI Securities will be more similar to the provisions
related to shares and Share Securities.

An exchange traded instrument (an "ETI") may invest in and trade in a variety of investments and financial
instruments using sophisticated investment techniques for hedging and non-hedging purposes. None of the
relevant Issuer, the Guarantor (if any) or the Calculation Agent have any control over investments made by the
relevant exchange traded instrument(s) and in no way guarantee the performance of an ETI.

In hedging the relevant Issuer's obligations under the ETI Securities, an entity providing such hedging (the "Hedge
Provider") is not restricted to any particular hedging practice. Accordingly, the Hedge Provider may hedge its
exposure using any method it, in its sole discretion, deems appropriate. The Hedge Provider may perform any
number of different hedging practices with respect to ETI Securities without taking into account any Holder's
interests.
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No entity related to the ET1 will have participated in the preparation of the relevant Final Terms or in establishing
the terms of the ETI Securities, and none of the Issuer, the Guarantor (if applicable) or any Manager will make
any investigation or enquiry in connection with such offering with respect to any information concerning any such
ETI contained in such Final Terms or in the documents from which such information was extracted. Consequently,
there can be no assurance that all events occurring prior to the relevant issue date (including events that would
affect the accuracy or completeness of the publicly available information described in this paragraph or in any
relevant Final Terms) that would affect the trading price of the interests in the exchange traded instrument will
have been publicly disclosed. The trading price of interests in the exchange traded instruments may vary if any
such events are subsequently disclosed or if there is a disclosure or failure to disclose material future events
concerning such an exchange traded instrument.

Except as provided in the Conditions, Holders will not have voting rights or rights to receive dividends or
distributions or any other rights with respect to the relevant ETIs to which such ETI Securities relate.

A Potential Adjustment Event will occur in a number of scenarios more fully described in the Conditions that
have a diluting or concentrative effect on the theoretical value of the ETI Interest(s). The Calculation Agent may
adjust the terms of the ETI Securities as it determines appropriate to take account of such Potential Adjustment
Event.

In the case of ETI Securities, an Extraordinary ETI Event will occur as a result of events including (a) a merger
of the ETI Interests or the ETI or ETI Related Party with other ETI Interests or another entity, an entity obtaining
a controlling stake in the ETI or ETI Related Party or the insolvency of the ETI or any ETI Related Party (Global
Events), (b) material litigation or allegations of criminal or fraudulent activity in respect of the ETI or ETI Related
Party (Litigation/Fraudulent Activity Events), (c) the ETI Related Party ceasing to act without being replaced
(Change in ETI Related Parties/Key Person Events), (d) a material change to the ETI or the ETI Documents
(Modification Events), (e) a change to or suspension of the calculation of the Value per ETI Interest or a breach
of the Investment/AUM Level or Value per ETI Interest Trigger Percentage (Net Asset Value/Investment/ AUM
Level Events), (f) a change in tax law, revocation of any required licence or compulsory redemption of the ETI
Interests required by a competent authority (Tax/Law/Accounting/Regulatory Events), (g) an issue affecting the
hedging associated with the ETI Securities (Hedging/Impracticality/Increased Costs Events) and (h) other events
such as an Extraordinary ETI Event affecting a portion of the basket of ETI Interests, a rating downgrade, issues
obtaining or trading ETI Interests or changes in the way dividends are paid (Miscellaneous Events), each more
fully described in the Conditions. The relevant Issuer may require the Calculation Agent to adjust the terms of the
ETI Securities to reflect such event, substitute the relevant ETI Interest(s) or cancel (in the case of Warrants) or
redeem (in the case of Certificates) the ETI Securities at the Early Redemption Amount.

In addition, if the published price of an ETI Interest is subsequently corrected, the corrected price will be used if
corrected within the prescribed period, provided that, if the corrected price is published less than three Business
Days prior to a due date for payment it will be disregarded.

Additional investment considerations in respect of Debt Securities

In respect of Debt Securities, Holders will receive an amount (if any) on redemption determined by reference to
the price or yield of the underlying debt instrument(s).

If the published reference price of a debt instrument is subsequently corrected, the corrected reference price will
be used if corrected within the prescribed period, provided that, if the corrected reference price is published less
than three Exchange Business Days prior to a due date for payment it will be disregarded.

Investors should be aware that if an underlying debt instrument is redeemed or cancelled by the relevant issuer of
such debt instrument (for example, following an event of default under the terms of the relevant debt instrument),
the Issuer will early redeem the Debt Securities at the Early Redemption Amount in accordance with the
Conditions.
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Additional investment considerations in respect of Fund Securities

In respect of Fund Securities, Holders will receive an amount (if any) on redemption determined by reference to
the value of fund shares or units in one or more funds (including hedge funds, mutual funds or private equity
funds) (each a "Fund"). The value of fund shares or units may vary depending on the performance of the fund
service providers, and in particular the investment adviser.

Funds may trade and invest in a broad range of investments and financial instruments using sophisticated
investment techniques. None of the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor (if any) or the Calculation Agent have any
control over investments made by a Fund and therefore in no way guarantee the performance of a Fund. Funds
may often be illiquid and may only be traded on a monthly, quarterly or even less frequent basis. The trading
strategies of Funds are often opaque. Funds, as well as the markets and instruments in which they invest, are often
not subject to review by governmental authorities, self-regulatory organisations or other supervisory authorities.

A Fund may be established as part of a master-feeder fund structure. Generally, a master-feeder fund structure
involves the incorporation of a "master" fund company into which separate and distinct "feeder" funds invest.
Active management of any investment strategy is, generally, performed at the master fund level. In instances
where the Fund(s) underlying the relevant Fund Securities are "feeder” funds, the Extraordinary Fund Events
described below extend to include the "master" fund and its service providers. In conducting their own due
diligence of the relevant Fund(s), prospective investors should consider whether the relevant Fund(s) are
established as part of a master-feeder fund structure.

No Fund Service Provider will have participated in the preparation of the relevant Final Terms or in establishing
the terms of the Fund Securities, and none of the Issuer, the Guarantor (if applicable) or any Manager will make
any investigation or enquiry in connection with such offering with respect to any information concerning any such
issuer of fund shares or units contained in such Final Terms or in the documents from which such information
was extracted. Consequently, there can be no assurance that all events occurring prior to the relevant issue date
(including events that would affect the accuracy or completeness of the publicly available information described
in this paragraph or in any relevant Final Terms) that would affect the trading price of the fund shares or units will
have been publicly disclosed. The trading price of the fund shares or units or the level of the fund index may vary
if any such events are subsequently disclosed or if there is a disclosure or failure to disclose material future events
concerning such an issuer of fund shares or units.

Except as provided in the Conditions, Holders will not have voting rights or rights to receive dividends or
distributions or any other rights with respect to the relevant fund shares or units to which such Fund Securities
relate.

An Extraordinary Fund Event will occur as a result of events including (a) a merger of the Fund or Fund Service
Provider another entity, an entity obtaining a controlling stake in the Fund or Fund Service Provider or the
insolvency of the Fund or any Fund Service Provider (Global Events), (b) material litigation or allegations of
criminal or fraudulent activity in respect of the Fund or Fund Service Provider (Litigation/Fraudulent Activity
Events), (c) the Fund Service Provider or its key personnel ceasing to act and not being replaced (Fund Service
Provider/Key Person Events), (d) a material change to the Fund or the Fund Documents (Modification Events),
(e) a change to or suspension of the calculation of the NAV per Fund Share or a breach of the AUM Level or
NAYV Trigger Percentage (NAV per Fund Share/AUM Level Events), (f) the failure of the Fund or the Fund
Service Provider to provide required information (Reporting Events), (g) a change in tax law, revocation of any
required licence or compulsory redemption of the fund shares required by a competent authority
(Tax/Law/Accounting/Regulatory Events), (h) an issue affecting the hedging associated with the Fund Securities
(Hedging/Impracticality/Increased Costs Events), (i) a restriction or limitation on subscriptions or redemptions of
any fund shares (Dealing Events) and (j) other events such as an Extraordinary Fund Event affecting a portion of
the basket or Fund Index components, an issue with any rebate agreements, segregation of Fund portfolios,
security granted by the Fund or any Fund Service Provider or a rating downgrade (Miscellaneous Events), each
more fully described in the Conditions. The relevant Issuer may require the Calculation Agent to adjust the terms
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of the Fund Securities to reflect such event, substitute the relevant Fund Shares or the Issuer may redeem the Fund
Securities at the Early Redemption Amount.

The Hedge Provider may not receive the proceeds of redeeming any fund shares that they hold on the date
expected, for example, if redemption is delayed or suspended by the Fund. If this occurs, the Redemption Date of
the Fund Securities may be postponed for a period of up to two calendar years (or such other period as may be
specified in the applicable Final Terms) and no additional amount shall be payable as a result of such delay.

Additional investment considerations in respect of market access products

Prospective purchasers of the W&C Securities should note that the W&C Securities are market access products
in that the Issuer's obligations in respect thereof may be hedged by means of the Share(s), the Index, the Shares
comprised in the Index, the Shares relating to the depositary receipts, the Debt Securities and/or any instrument
used for the purposes of hedging obligations under the W&C Securities being held by a Qualified Investor which
is a company within the Issuer's group. Although the prospective purchaser of the W&C Securities will have no
proprietary interest in such Share(s), the Index, the Shares comprised in the Index, the Shares relating to the
depositary receipts, the Debt Securities and/or any instrument used for the purposes of hedging obligations under
the W&C Securities, the economic and other risks associated with such Shares, the Index, the Shares comprised
in the Index, the Shares relating to the depositary receipts, the Debt Securities and/or instrument shall be assumed
by the prospective purchasers of W&C Securities as set out further in the Conditions.

No assurance can be given as to the liquidity of any trading market for the W&C Securities. Prospective
purchasers of the W&C Securities should note that the liquidity of any trading market for the W&C Securities is
directly linked to the liquidity of any trading market for the Shares, the depositary receipts, the Debt Securities or
the Index or contracts or instruments which reference the Index.

Prospective purchasers of the W&C Securities should also be aware that the probability of the occurrence of a
Hedging Disruption Event (or other adjustment event under the relevant legal terms as set out further in the
Conditions) may be higher for certain developing or emerging markets as further described in "Risks associated
with W&C Securities with a nexus to emerging markets" above.
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USER'S GUIDE TO THE BASE PROSPECTUS
1. INTRODUCTION

The purpose of this section (the "User's Guide") is to provide potential investors with a tool to help them navigate
through the various documents relating to W&C Securities issued by BNPP or BNPP B.V. under the Base
Prospectus.

2. DOCUMENTATION

For each issue of W&C Securities under the Base Prospectus, the documents listed below will be available to
potential investors on an on-going basis.

2.1 The Base Prospectus
This document:

. contains an overview of the contents of this Base Prospectus, the information relating to BNPP (as Issuer
or Guarantor) and BNPP B.V. (as Issuer) and the risk factors;

) sets out the Terms and Conditions of the W&C Securities (other than the specific commercial terms and
characteristics of a particular issue, in respect of which, see paragraph 2.3 below);

. sets out the possible specific characteristics of the W&C Securities, including the payout formulae used
to calculate the amount(s) (if any) payable to the investors on the exercise/redemption date and the
Underlying Reference(s); and

. details the terms specific to each type of Underlying Reference linked W&C Securities in the annexes to
the Terms and Conditions of the W&C Securities.

2.2 The Supplement(s)

If a significant new factor, material mistake or material inaccuracy relating to the information included in the Base
Prospectus, which is capable of affecting a potential investor's assessment of the W&C Securities arises, the Issuer
and the Guarantor (if applicable) will publish a supplement to the Base Prospectus. The supplement approved by
the Autorité des Marchés Financiers (the "AMF") in accordance with Article 23 of the Prospectus Regulation and
published on the website of the AMF (www.amf.france.org) and on the website of BNPP (https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/public/LegalDocs.aspx).

In accordance with Article 23(2) of the Prospectus Regulation, investors who have already agreed to purchase or
subscribe for W&C Securities before this Base Prospectus is published have the right, exercisable within two
working days after the publication of this Base Prospectus, to withdraw their acceptances. Investors should be
aware, however, that the law of the jurisdiction in which they have accepted an offer of Securities may provide
for a longer time limit.

2.3 The Final Terms or (in the case of Exempt Securities) Pricing Supplement

The Final Terms or (in the case of Exempt Securities) the Pricing Supplement will be prepared to document each
specific issue of W&C Securities. It will contain:

. the specific terms of the issue, including but not limited to: the number of W&C Securities being issued,
the relevant identification codes and the currency of the W&C Securities;
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. the commercial terms of the issue, such as the payout formula, any automatic early redemption provisions
and the related definitions in respect of a specific issue of W&C Securities, as described in the Base
Prospectus or further described in the Pricing Supplement (in the case of Exempt Securities);

. the Underlying Reference(s) to which the W&C Securities are linked;

. the relevant dates, such as the issue date, exercise or redemption date(s) or exercise period, valuation or
averaging date(s) and settlement date; and

. if required, a duly completed summary specific to such issue of W&C Securities (the "issue specific
summary").
3. HOW TO NAVIGATE THE BASE PROSPECTUS

All W&C Securities issued under the Base Prospectus will be subject to the generic sections of the Base Prospectus
summarised above. Investors should note that depending on the specific terms of an issue of W&C Securities
not all sections of the Base Prospectus will be relevant to each issuance.

The table below lists all of the sections of the Base Prospectus and their applicability to each issue of W&C
Securities:

Sections which are applicable to all W&C Securities

Sections which are only applicable to specific issues of W&C Securities
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Contents of the Base Prospectus

1. OVERVIEW OF THIS BASE PROSPECTUS

2. RISKS

3 INVESTMENT CONSIDERATIONS

4, USER'S GUIDE TO THE BASE PROSPECTUS

5. AVAILABLE INFORMATION 1. Sec idi L informat h
. Sections providing general information on the

6. FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS Base Prospectus, the Issuer(s), the Guarantor

7. PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION and the W&C Securities

8. DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

9. GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAMME AND PAYOUT

METHODOLOGY UNDER THIS BASE PROSPECTUS

10. FORM OF FINAL TERMS FOR THE W&C SECURITIES 2. Section setting out the general terms

11. TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE W&C SECURITIES governing the W&C Securities

12. Additional Terms and Conditions for Payouts 3. Section detailing the different payout formulae

13. Additional Terms and Conditions for Index Securities

14. Additional Terms and Conditions for Share Securities

15. Additional Terms and Conditions for ETI Securities . 4. g_ectlonst ;p[&llcgblf fo V}\é&? Secu?tl)eso
epending on the Underlying Reference(s). One

16. Additional Terms and Conditions for Debt Securities of more %ections may agplg depending on the

17. Additional Terms and Conditions for Fund Securities Underlying Reference(s).

18. Additional Terms and Conditions for Market Access Securities

19. USE OF PROCEEDS 5. Section detailing how the Issuer(s) will apply
the proceeds of each issue of W&C Securities

2. FORM OF GUARANTEE 6. Section detailing the terms of the

21. DESCRIPTION OF BNPP B.V. 7. Sections relating to the Issuer /

22. DESCRIPTION OF BNPP applicable)

23. FORM OF THE W&C SECURITIES

24. BOOK-ENTRY CLEARANCE SYSTEMS

25. BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEMS

26. TAXATION

27. CERTAIN CONSIDERATIONS FOR ERISA AND OTHER EMPLOYEE

BENEFIT PLANS
28. NOTICE TO PURCHASERS AND HOLDERS OF U.S. SECURITIES AND 8. Sections providing additional general
TRANSFER RESTRICTIONS information in respect of the W&C Securities

29. OFFERING AND SALE

30. GENERAL INFORMATION

31. RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

4. HOW TO READ THE FINAL TERMS

The applicable Final Terms are divided in three parts:

. Part A, titled "~ CONTRACTUAL TERMS", which provides the specific contractual terms of the W&C
Securities;
. Part B, titled "~ OTHER INFORMATION", which provides other information specific to the W&C

Securities; and

61



. In the case of W&C Securities where an issue specific summary is required, an issue specific summary
of the W&C Securities will be appended to the Final Terms.

Exhaustive information on the characteristics of the W&C Securities as set out in Part A and Part B of the
applicable Final Terms is available in the Base Prospectus. The following diagram indicates the links between the
various clauses of Parts A and B of the applicable Final Terms and the corresponding sections of the Base
Prospectus set out above.

Information linked to sechﬂﬁ fErom the Base Prospectus

Issuer and Guarantor (if applicable) of the W&C I e e e

- » onthe Base Prospectus, the Issuer(s), the
------------ >  Guarantor andthe W&C Securiies

Securities

Description and definitions relating__
to the W&C Securities

Payout Formula
PARTA:
CON%T;Q;;;’;‘UAL Description and definitions in L -»>
respect of the Underlying formulae

Reference(s)

Information relating to setlement _

. ) 4 Section applicable to W&C Securities
on exercise/redemption N app : .

depending on the Underlying Reference(s).
One or more sections may apply
depending on the Underlying Reference(s)

Information specific to the W&C Securities

Listing and admission to frading . > I Ihg 9 hlgzﬂ;zmlss;:ur(gldwi
and rating information ! WAC Securiies

Information on performance of
Underlying Reference(s) and,
other information relating to the
Underlying Reference(s)

6. Sections detailing the terms of each of
the guarantees

PARTB:
OTHER
INFORMATION

ns relating fo the Issuer /

Public Offer information (i Guarantor (as applicable)

applicable) : o =
8. Sections providing additional general

l e e - > information in respect of the W&C

Securiies
ISSUE SPECIFIC SUMMARY (if applicable)
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AVAILABLE INFORMATION

So long as any of the U.S. Securities are "restricted securities” within the meaning of Rule 144(a)(3) under the
Securities Act, and neither BNPP nor BNPP B.V. is subject to and in compliance with Section 13 or 15(d) of the
United States Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), nor exempt from reporting
pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b) thereunder, BNPP has undertaken to furnish to each Holder or beneficial owner of
U.S. Securities, whether issued by BNPP or issued by BNPP B.V. and to any prospective purchaser, any
information required to be delivered under Rule 144A(d)(4) under the Securities Act.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The documents incorporated by reference (such sections being the "BNP Paribas Disclosure") contain forward-
looking statements. BNPP, BNPP B.V. and the BNP Paribas Group (being BNP Paribas together with its
consolidated subsidiaries, the "Group™) may also make forward-looking statements in their offering circulars, in
press releases and other written materials and in oral statements made by their officers, directors or employees to
third parties. Statements that are not historical facts, including statements about BNPP, BNPP B.V. or the Group's
beliefs and expectations, are forward-looking statements. These statements are based on current plans, estimates
and projections, and therefore undue reliance should not be placed on them. Forward-looking statements speak
only as of the date they are made, and BNPP, BNPP B.V. and the Group undertake no obligation to update publicly
any of them in light of new information or future events.

PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Most of the financial data presented, or incorporated by reference, in this Base Prospectus are presented in euros.

The audited consolidated financial statements of BNPP for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December
2019 have been prepared in accordance with international financial reporting standards ("IFRS") as adopted by
the European Union. IFRS differs in certain significant respects from generally accepted accounting principles in
the United States ("U.S. GAAP"). The Group has made no attempt to quantify the impact of those differences. In
making an investment decision, investors must rely upon their own examination of the BNP Paribas Group, the
terms of an offering and the financial information. Potential investors should consult their own professional
advisors for an understanding of the differences between IFRS and U.S. GAAP, and how those differences might
affect the information herein. The Group's fiscal year ends on 31 December and references in the BNPP 2018
Registration Document (in English) and the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration Document (in English) and any
amendment to the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration Document (in English) (in each case, as defined in
"Documents Incorporated by Reference" below and incorporated by reference herein) to any specific fiscal year
are to the 12-month period ended 31 December of such year.

Due to rounding, the numbers presented throughout the BNP Paribas Disclosure and in the table under the heading

"Capitalization of BNPP and the BNP Paribas Group™ in the General Information section below may not add up
precisely, and percentages may not reflect precisely absolute figures.
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DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

This Base Prospectus should be read and construed in conjunction with the following documents which have been
previously published or are published simultaneously with this Base Prospectus and shall be incorporated in, and
form part of, this Base Prospectus:

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

()

()

(9)

(h)

(i)

@)

the terms and conditions of the Warrants and the Terms and Conditions of the W&C Securities in each
case from the base prospectus or supplements listed below (the "Warrant Previous Conditions");

the terms and conditions of the Certificates from each base prospectus and supplements listed below (the
"Certificate Previous Conditions");

the form of final terms of the W&C Securities contained in each base prospectus listed below (the
"Previous Form of Final Terms");

the statutory annual reports for 2018 (the “2018 BNPP B.V. Annual Report") and 2019 (the 2019
BNPP B.V. Annual Report™) which include, respectively, the audited annual non-consolidated financial
statements of BNPP B.V. as at, and for the years ended, 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019 (the
"BNPP B.V. 2018 Financial Statements" and the "BNPP B.V. 2019 Financial Statements"
respectively) and the respective auditors' reports thereon;

BNPP's Document de référence et rapport financier annuel in English for 2018 including the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 and the statutory auditors' report
thereon other than the sections entitled "Person Responsible for the Registration Document", the "Table
of Concordance" and any reference to a completion letter ("Lettre de fin de travaux™) therein with filing
number D.19-0114 (the "BNPP 2018 Registration Document (in English)™);

BNPP's Document d'Enregistrement Universel au 31 décembre 2019 et rapport financier annuel in
English including the consolidated, financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 and the
statutory auditors' report thereon, other than the sections entitled "Person Responsible for the Universal
Registration Document", the "Table of Concordance™ and any reference to a completion letter ("Lettre
de fin de travaux") therein, with filing number D.20-0097 (the "BNPP 2019 Universal Registration
Document (in English)");

the first amendment to BNPP's Document d'Enregistrement Universel au 31 décembre 2019 et rapport
financier annuel in English dated 30 March 2020, other than the sections entitled "Person Responsible
for the Universal Registration Document™ and the "Table of Concordance”, with filing number D.20-
0097-A01 (the "First Amendment to the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration Document (in
English)");

the press release dated 2 April 2020 relating to a meeting of the Board of Directors of BNPP (the "2
April 2020 BNPP Press Release");

the second Amendement au Document d'Enregistrement Universel au 31 décembre 2019 (in English) for
BNPP dated 5 May 2020, other than the sections entitled "Person Responsible for the Universal
Registration Document” and the "Table of Concordance", with filing number D.20-0097-A02 (the
"Second Amendment to the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration Document (in English)™); and

the third Amendement au Document d Enregistrement Universel au 31 décembre 2019 (in English) for
BNPP dated 25 June 2020, other than the sections entitled "Persons Responsible for the Universal
Registration Document” and the "Table of Concordance”, with filing number D.20-0097-A03 (the
"Third Amendment to the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration Document (in English)"),
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save that any statement contained herein or in a document which is deemed to be incorporated by reference herein
shall be deemed to be modified or superseded for the purpose of this Base Prospectus to the extent that such
statement is inconsistent with a statement contained in this Base Prospectus or any supplement to this Base
Prospectus.

Any non-incorporated parts of a document referred to herein are either deemed not relevant for an investor or
are otherwise covered elsewhere in this Base Prospectus.

The information incorporated by reference above is available as follows:

Information Incorporated by Reference Reference

Warrant Previous Conditions

https://rates-globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/LegalDocs.aspx

2005 Warrant Conditions Pages 42 to 93 of the base prospectus of BNPP and
BNPP B.V. dated 18 October 2005 as approved by the
Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier (the
"CSSF")

January 2006 Warrant Conditions Pages 55 to 109 of the base prospectus of BNPP and
BNPP B.V. dated 18 January 2006 as approved by the
CSSF

June 2006 Warrant Conditions Pages 49 to 117 of the base prospectus of BNPP and
BNPP B.V. dated 21 June 2006 as approved by the
CSSF

December 2006 Warrant Conditions Pages 2 to 10 of the supplement dated 21 December
2006 to the base prospectus of BNPP and BNPP B.V.
dated 21 June 2006, as approved by the CSSF

March 2007 Warrant Conditions Pages 3 to 12 of the supplement dated 1 March 2007 to
the base prospectus of BNPP and BNPP B.V. dated 21
June 2006, as approved by the CSSF

May 2007 Warrant Conditions Pages 55 to 144 of the base prospectus of BNPP and
BNPP B.V. dated 30 May 2007 as approved by the
CSSF

May 2008 Warrant Conditions Pages 68 to 181 of the base prospectus of BNPP and

BNPP B.V. dated 30 May 2008 as approved by the
Authority for the Financial Markets (the "AFM")

August 2008 Warrant Conditions Pages 45 to 158 of the supplement dated 14 August
2008 to the base prospectus of BNPP and BNPP B.V.
dated 30 May 2008, as approved by the AFM

June 2009 Warrant Conditions Pages 87 to 215 of the base prospectus of BNPP and
BNPP B.V. dated 4 June 2009 as approved by the AFM
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June 2010 Securities Conditions

Pages 130 to 235 of the base prospectus of BNPP and
BNPP B.V. dated 3 June 2010 as approved by the AFM

March 2011 Securities Conditions

Pages 20 to 54 of the supplement dated 24 March 2011
to the base prospectus of BNPP and BNPP B.V. dated
3 June 2010, as approved by the AFM

June 2011 Securities Conditions

Pages 138 to 461 of the base prospectus of BNPP and
BNPP B.V. dated 7 June 2011 as approved by the AFM

September 2011 Securities Conditions

Pages 2 to 3 of the supplement dated 14 September
2011 to the base prospectus of BNPP and BNPP B.V.
dated 7 June 2011, as approved by the AFM

April 2012 Securities Conditions

Pages 4 to 6 of the supplement dated 4 April 2012 to
the base prospectus of BNPP and BNPP B.V. dated 7
June 2011, as approved by the AFM

June 2012 Securities Conditions

Pages 152 to 492 of the base prospectus of BNPP and
BNPP B.V. dated 1 June 2012 as approved by the AFM

June 2013 W&C Securities Conditions

Pages 347 to 831 of the base prospectus of BNPP B.V.,
BNPP, BNP Paribas Fortis SA/NV ("BNPPF"), BP2F
and BGL BNP Paribas ("BGL") dated 3 June 2013 as
approved by the AMF with visa number 13-259

July 2013 W&C Securities Conditions

Pages 4 to 6 of the supplement dated 24 July 2013 to
the base prospectus of BNPP B.V., BNPP, BP2F,
BNPPF and BGL dated 3 June 2013 as approved by
the AMF with visa number 13-416

September 2013 W&C Securities Conditions

Page 12 of the supplement dated 12 September 2013 to
the base prospectus of BNPP B.V., BNPP, BP2F,
BNPPF and BGL dated 3 June 2013 as approved by
the AMF with visa number 13-490

November 2013 W&C Securities Conditions

Pages 12 to 129 of the supplement dated 12 November
2013 to the base prospectus of BNPP B.V., BNPP,
BP2F, BNPPF and BGL dated 3 June 2013 as
approved by the AMF with visa number 13-602

December 2013 W&C Securities Conditions

Pages 9 to 17 of the supplement dated 20 December
2013 to the base prospectus of BNPP B.V., BNPP,
BP2F, BNPPF and BGL dated 3 June 2013 as
approved by the AMF with visa number 13-687

January 2014 W&C Securities Conditions

Pages 9 to 15 of the supplement dated 10 January 2014
to the base prospectus of BNPP B.V., BNPP, BP2F,
BNPPF and BGL dated 3 June 2013 as approved by
the AMF with visa number 14-008

April 2014 W&C Securities Conditions

Pages 29 to 62 of the supplement dated 11 April 2014
to the base prospectus of BNPP B.V., BNPP, BP2F,

66




BNPPF and BGL dated 3 June 2013 as approved by
the AMF with visa number 14-145

June 2014 W&C Securities Conditions

Pages 402 to 908 of the base prospectus of BNPP B.V.,
BNPP, BP2F, BNPPF and BGL dated 5 June 2014 as
approved by the AMF with visa number 14-276

August 2014 W&C Securities Conditions

Page 24 of the supplement dated 7 August 2014 to the
base prospectus of BNPP B.V., BNPP, BP2F, BNPPF
and BGL dated 5 June 2014 as approved by the AMF
with visa number 14-457

5 September 2014 W&C Securities Conditions

Page 15 of the supplement dated 5 September 2014 to
the base prospectus of BNPP B.V., BNPP, BP2F,
BNPPF and BGL dated 5 June 2014 as approved by
the AMF with visa number 14-485

22 September 2014 W&C Securities Conditions

Pages 12 to 157 of the supplement dated 22 September
2014 to the base prospectus of BNPP B.V., BNPP,
BP2F, BNPPF and BGL dated 5 June 2014 as
approved by the AMF with visa number 14-510

October 2014 W&C Securities Conditions

Page 101 of the supplement dated 10 October 2014 to
the base prospectus of BNPP B.V., BNPP, BP2F,
BNPPF and BGL dated 5 June 2014 as approved by
the AMF with visa number 14-543

February 2015 W&C Securities Conditions

Pages 22 to 25 of the supplement dated 10 February
2015 to the base prospectus of BNPP B.V., BNPP,
BP2F, BNPPF and BGL dated 5 June 2014 as
approved by the AMF with visa number 15-049

March 2015 W&C Securities Conditions

Page 30 of the supplement dated 30 March 2015 to the
base prospectus of BNPP B.V., BNPP, BP2F, BNPPF
and BGL dated 5 June 2014 as approved by the AMF
with visa number 15-125

June 2015 W&C Securities Conditions

Pages 455 to 1055 of the base prospectus of BNPP
B.V., BNPP, BP2F, BNPPF and BGL dated 9 June
2015 as approved by the AMF with visa number 15-
262

August 2015 W&C Securities Conditions

Pages 12 to 14 of the supplement dated 6 August 2015
to the base prospectus of BNPP B.V., BNPP, BP2F,
BNPPF and BGL dated 9 June 2015 as approved by
the AMF with visa number 15-443

September 2015 W&C Securities Conditions

Pages 24 to 32 of the supplement dated 10 September
2015 to the base prospectus of BNPP B.V., BNPP,
BP2F, BNPPF and BGL dated 9 June 2015 as
approved by the AMF with visa number 15-478

November 2015 W&C Securities Conditions

Pages 18 and 19 of the supplement dated 10 November
2015 to the base prospectus of BNPP B.V., BNPP,
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BP2F, BNPPF and BGL dated 9 June 2015 as
approved by the AMF with visa number 15-568

February 2016 W&C Securities Conditions

Pages 193 to 196 of the supplement dated 29 February
2016 to the base prospectus of BNPP B.V., BNPP,
BP2F, BNPPF and BGL dated 9 June 2015 as
approved by the AMF with visa number 16-065

June 2013 MAS W&C Securities Conditions

Pages 99 to 224 of the base prospectus of BNPP B.V.
dated 21 June 2013 as approved by the AMF with visa
number 13-292

August 2013 MAS W&C Securities Conditions

Page 3 of the supplement dated 12 August 2013 to the
base prospectus of BNPP B.V. dated 21 June 2013 as
approved by the AMF with visa number 13-457

December 2013 MAS W&C Securities Conditions

Pages 6 to 12 of the supplement dated 20 December
2013 to the base prospectus of BNPP B.V. dated 21
June 2013 as approved by the AMF with visa number
13-688

March 2014 MAS W&C Securities Conditions

Pages 5 to 7 of the supplement dated 3 March 2014 to
the base prospectus of BNPP B.V. dated 21 June 2013
as approved by the AMF with visa number 14-064

April 2014 MAS W&C Securities Conditions

Pages 6 to 11 of the supplement dated 11 April 2014 to
the base prospectus of BNPP B.V. dated 21 June 2013
as approved by the AMF with visa number 14-144

May 2014 MAS W&C Securities Conditions

Pages 5 to 8 of the supplement dated 21 May 2014 to
the base prospectus of BNPP B.V. dated 21 June 2013
as approved by the AMF with visa number 14-221

August 2014 MAS W&C Securities Conditions

Pages 117 to 243 of the base prospectus of BNPP B.V.
dated 8 August 2014 as approved by the AMF with
visa number 14-458

September 2014 MAS W&C Securities Conditions

Pages 4 to 5 of the supplement dated 19 September
2014 to the base prospectus of BNPP B.V. dated 8
August 2014 as approved by the AMF with visa
number 14-509

October 2014 MAS W&C Securities Conditions

Pages 6 to 18 of the supplement dated 3 October 2014
to the base prospectus of BNPP B.V. dated 8 August
2014 as approved by the AMF with visa number 14-
538

November 2014 MAS W&C Securities Conditions

Pages 4 to 5 of the supplement dated 27 November
2014 to the base prospectus of BNPP B.V. dated 8
August 2014 as approved by the AMF with visa
number 13-628

February 2015 MAS W&C Securities Conditions

Pages 5 to 7 of the supplement dated 19 February 2015
to the base prospectus of BNPP B.V. dated 8 August

68




2014 as approved by the AMF with visa number 15-
056

April 2015 MAS W&C Securities Conditions

Pages 5 to 20 of the supplement dated 10 April 2015 to
the base prospectus of BNPP B.V. dated 8 August
2014 as approved by the AMF with visa number 15-
148

May 2015 MAS W&C Securities Conditions

Pages 5 to 8 of the supplement dated 28 May 2015 to
the base prospectus of BNPP B.V. dated 8 August
2014 as approved by the AMF with visa number 15-
235

July 2015 MAS W&C Securities Conditions

Pages 125 to 258 of the base prospectus of BNPP B.V.
and BNPP dated 1 July 2015 as approved by the AMF
with visa number 15-442

August 2015 MAS W&C Securities Conditions

Pages 4 to 6 of the supplement dated 6 August 2015 to
the base prospectus of BNPP B.V. and BNPP dated 1
July 2015 as approved by the AMF with visa number
15-328

September 2015 MAS W&C Securities Conditions

Pages 4 to 5 of the supplement dated 22 September
2015 to the base prospectus of BNPP B.V. and BNPP
dated 1 July 2015 as approved by the AMF with visa
number 15-494

November 2015 MAS W&C Securities Conditions

Pages 4 to 7 of the supplement dated 25 November
2015 to the base prospectus of BNPP B.V. and BNPP
dated 1 July 2015 as approved by the AMF with visa
number 15-606

January 2016 MAS W&C Securities Conditions

Pages 5 to 6 of the supplement dated 7 January 2016 to
the base prospectus of BNPP B.V. and BNPP dated 1
July 2015 as approved by the AMF with visa number
16-013

March 2016 MAS W&C Securities Conditions

Pages 138 to 153 of the supplement dated 9 March
2016 to the base prospectus of BNPP B.V. and BNPP
dated 1 July 2015 as approved by the AMF with visa
number 16-072

April 2016 MAS W&C Securities Conditions

Pages 6 to 14 of the supplement dated 6 April 2016 to
the base prospectus of BNPP B.V. and BNPP dated 1
July 2015 as approved by the AMF with visa number
16-013

May 2016 MAS W&C Securities Conditions

Pages 5 to 8 of the supplement dated 18 May 2016 to
the base prospectus of BNPP B.V. and BNPP dated 1
July 2015 as approved by the AMF with visa number
16-183
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July 2016 MAS W&C Securities Conditions

Pages 226 to 359 of the base prospectus of BNPP B.V.
and BNPP dated 5 July 2016 as approved by the AMF
with visa number 16-293

August 2016 MAS W&C Securities Conditions

Page 13 of the supplement dated 11 August 2016 to the
base prospectus of BNPP B.V. and BNPP dated 5 July
2016 as approved by the AMF with visa number 16-
395

July 2017 MAS W&C Securities Conditions

Pages 243 to 380 of the base prospectus of BNPP B.V.
and BNPP dated 3 July 2017 as approved by the AMF
with visa number 17-319

November 2017 MAS W&C Securities Conditions

Page 20 of the supplement dated 30 November 2017 to
the base prospectus of BNPP B.V. and BNPP dated 3
July 2017 as approved by the AMF with visa number
17-622

July 2018 MAS W&C Securities Conditions

Pages 254 to 397 of the base prospectus of BNPP B.V.
and BNPP dated 5 July 2018 as approved by the AMF
with visa number 18-289

August 2018 MAS W&C Securities Conditions

Pages 22 and 23 of the supplement dated 24 August
2018 to the base prospectus of BNPP B.V. and BNPP
dated 5 July 2018 as approved by the AMF with visa
number 18-397

July 2019 MAS W&C Securities Conditions

Pages 243 to 389 of the base prospectus of BNPP B.V.
and BNPP dated 3 July 2019 as approved by the AMF
with visa number 19-313

Certificate Previous Conditions

https://rates-globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/LegalDocs.aspx

2005 Certificate Conditions

Pages 94 to 135 of the base prospectus of BNPP and
BNPP B.V. dated 18 October 2005 as approved by the
CSSF

January 2006 Certificate Conditions

Pages 110 to 154 of the base prospectus of BNPP and
BNPP B.V. dated 18 January 2006 as approved by the
CSSF

June 2006 Certificate Conditions

Pages 143 to 214 of the base prospectus of BNPP and
BNPP B.V. dated 21 June 2006 as approved by the
CSSF

December 2006 Certificate Conditions

Page 2 of the supplement dated 21 December 2006 to
the base prospectus of BNPP and BNPP B.V. dated 21
June 2006, as approved by the CSSF
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March 2007 Certificate Conditions

Pages 13 to 21 of the supplement dated 1 March 2007
to the base prospectus of BNPP and BNPP B.V. dated
21 June 2006, as approved by the CSSF

May 2007 Certificate Conditions

Pages 171 to 254 of the base prospectus of BNPP and
BNPP B.V. dated 30 May 2007 as approved by the
CSSF

May 2008 Certificate Conditions

Pages 226 to 388 of the base prospectus of BNPP and
BNPP B.V. dated 30 May 2008 as approved by the
AFM

August 2008 Certificate Conditions

Pages 207 to 369 of the supplement dated 14 August
2008 to the base prospectus of BNPP and BNPP B.V.
dated 21 June 2006, as approved by the AFM

June 2009 Certificate Conditions

Pages 284 to 471 of the base prospectus of BNPP and
BNPP B.V. dated 4 June 2009 as approved by the
AFM

Previous Form of Final Terms

https://rates-globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/LegalDocs.aspx

2005 Form of Final Terms for Warrants

Pages 84 to 100 of the base prospectus of BNPP and
BNPP B.V. dated 18 October 2005 as approved by the
CSSF

January 2006 Form of Final Terms for Warrants

Pages 35 to 54 of the base prospectus of BNPP and
BNPP B.V. dated 18 January 2006 as approved by the
CSSF

June 2006 Form of Final Terms for Warrants

Pages 31 to 48 of the base prospectus of BNPP and
BNPP B.V. dated 21 June 2006 as approved by the
CSSF

May 2007 Form of Final Terms for Warrants

Pages 33 to 54 of the base prospectus of BNPP and
BNPP B.V. dated 30 May 2007 as approved by the
CSSF

July 2007 Form of Final Terms for Warrants

Pages 23 to 45 of the supplement dated 11 July 2007
to the base prospectus of BNPP and BNPP B.V. dated
30 May 2007, as approved by the AFM

January 2008 Form of Final Terms for Warrants

Pages 235 to 264 of the supplement dated 8 January
2008 to the base prospectus of BNPP and BNPP B.V.
dated 30 May 2007, as approved by the AFM

May 2008 Form of Final Terms for Warrants

Pages 39 to 67 of the base prospectus of BNPP and
BNPP B.V. dated 30 May 2008 as approved by the
AFM
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August 2008 Form of Final Terms for Warrants

Pages 15 to 44 of the supplement dated 14 August
2008 to the base prospectus of BNPP and BNPP B.V.
dated 30 May 2008, as approved by the AFM

June 2009 Form of Final Terms for Warrants

Pages 50 to 86 of the base prospectus of BNPP and
BNPP B.V. dated 4 June 2009 as approved by the
AFM

2005 Form of Final Terms for Certificates

Pages 25 to 41 of the base prospectus of BNPP and
BNPP B.V. dated 18 October 2005 as approved by the
CSSF

January 2006 Form of Final Terms for Certificates

Pages 35 to 54 of the base prospectus of BNPP and
BNPP B.V. dated 18 January 2006 as approved by the
CSSF

June 2006 Form of Final Terms for Certificates

Pages 118 to 142 of the base prospectus of BNPP and
BNPP B.V. dated 21 June 2006 as approved by the
CSSF

March 2007 Form of Final Terms for Certificates

Pages 47 to 69 of the supplement dated 1 March 2007
to the base prospectus of BNPP and BNPP B.V. dated
21 June 2006, as approved by the CSSF

May 2007 Form of Final Terms for Certificates

Pages 145 to 170 of the base prospectus of BNPP and
BNPP B.V. dated 30 May 2007 as approved by the
CSSF

July 2007 Form of Final Terms for Certificates

Pages 46 to 73 of the supplement dated 11 July 2007
to the base prospectus of BNPP and BNPP B.V. dated
30 May 2007, as approved by the CSSF

October 2007 Form of Final Terms for Certificates

Pages 31 to 66 of the supplement dated 3 October 2007
to the base prospectus of BNPP and BNPP B.V. dated
30 May 2007, as approved by the CSSF

January 2008 Form of Final Terms for Certificates

Pages 235 to 264 of the supplement dated 8 January
2008 to the base prospectus of BNPP and BNPP B.V.
dated 30 May 2007, as approved by the CSSF

May 2008 Form of Final Terms for Certificates

Pages 182 to 225 of the base prospectus of BNPP and
BNPP B.V. dated 30 May 2008 as approved by the
AFM

August 2008 Form of Final Terms for Certificates

Pages 159 to 206 of the supplement dated 14 August
2008 to the base prospectus of BNPP and BNPP B.V.
dated 30 May 2008, as approved by the AFM

June 2009 Form of Final Terms for Certificates

Pages 227 to 283 of the base prospectus of BNPP and
BNPP B.V. dated 4 June 2009 as approved by the
AFM
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June 2010 Form of Final Terms for Securities

Pages 57 to 129 of the base prospectus of BNPP and
BNPP B.V. dated 3 June 2010 as approved by the
AFM

March 2011 Form of Final Terms for Securities

Pages 17 to 19 of the supplement dated 24 March 2011
to the base prospectus of BNPP and BNPP B.V. dated
3 June 2010, as approved by the AFM

June 2011 Form of Final Terms for Securities

Pages 72 to 137 of the base prospectus of BNPP and
BNPP B.V. dated 7 June 2011 as approved by the
AFM

April 2012 Form of Final Terms for Securities

Page 4 of the supplement dated 4 April 2012 to the
base prospectus of BNPP and BNPP B.V. dated 7 June
2011, as approved by the AFM

June 2012 Form of Final Terms for Securities

Pages 84 to 151 of the base prospectus of BNPP and
BNPP B.V. dated 1 June 2012 as approved by the
AFM

June 2013 Form of Final Terms for W&C Securities

Pages 208 to 273 of the base prospectus of BNPP B.V.,
BNPP, BNPPF, BP2F and BGL dated 3 June 2013 as
approved by the AMF with visa number 13-259

November 2013 Form of Final Terms for W&C
Securities

Pages 9 to 10 of the supplement dated 12 November
2013 to the base prospectus of BNPP B.V., BNPP,
BP2F, BNPPF and BGL dated 3 June 2013 as
approved by the AMF with visa number 13-602

December 2013 Form of Final Terms for W&C
Securities

Page 8 of the supplement dated 20 December 2013 to
the base prospectus of BNPP B.V., BNPP, BP2F,
BNPPF and BGL dated 3 June 2013 as approved by
the AMF with visa number 13-687

January 2014 Form of Final Terms for W&C
Securities

Page 8 of the supplement dated 10 January 2014 to the
base prospectus of BNPP B.V., BNPP, BP2F, BNPPF
and BGL dated 3 June 2013 as approved by the AMF
with visa number 14-008

April 2014 Form of Final Terms for W&C Securities

Pages 68 to 72 of the supplement dated 11 April 2014
to the base prospectus of BNPP B.V., BNPP, BP2F,
BNPPF and BGL dated 3 June 2013 as approved by
the AMF with visa number 14-145

June 2014 Form of Final Terms for W&C Securities

Pages 260 to 338 of the base prospectus of BNPP B.V.,
BNPP, BP2F, BNPPF and BGL dated 5 June 2014 as
approved by the AMF with visa number 14-276

August 2014 Form of Final Terms for W&C Securities

Page 23 of the supplement dated 7 August 2014 to the
base prospectus of BNPP B.V., BNPP, BP2F, BNPPF
and BGL dated 5 June 2014 as approved by the AMF
with visa number 14-457
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September 2014 Form of Final Terms for W&C
Securities

Pages 10 to 11 of the supplement dated 22 September
2014 to the base prospectus of BNPP B.V., BNPP,
BP2F, BNPPF and BGL dated 5 June 2014 as
approved by the AMF with visa number 14-510

February 2015 Form of Final Terms for W&C
Securities

Pages 15 to 18 of the supplement dated 10 February
2015 to the base prospectus of BNPP B.V., BNPP,
BP2F, BNPPF and BGL dated 5 June 2014 as
approved by the AMF with visa number 15-049

June 2015 Form of Final Terms for W&C Securities

Pages 282 to 367 of the base prospectus of BNPP B.V.,
BNPP, BP2F, BNPPF and BGL dated 9 June 2015 as
approved by the AMF with visa number 15-262

September 2015 Form of Final Terms for W&C
Securities

Pages 22 to 23 of the supplement dated 10 September
2015 to the base prospectus of BNPP B.V., BNPP,
BP2F, BNPPF and BGL dated 9 June 2015 as
approved by the AMF with visa number 15-478

October 2015 Form of Final Terms for W&C
Securities

Page 10 of the supplement dated 8 October 2015 to the
base prospectus of BNPP B.V., BNPP, BP2F, BNPPF
and BGL dated 9 June 2015 as approved by the AMF
with visa number 15-520

November 2015 Form of Final Terms for W&C
Securities

Page 15 of the supplement dated 10 November 2015
to the base prospectus of BNPP B.V., BNPP, BP2F,
BNPPF and BGL dated 9 June 2015 as approved by
the AMF with visa number 15-568

June 2013 MAS Form of Final Terms for W&C
Securities

Pages 69 to 98 of the base prospectus of BNPP B.V.
dated 21 June 2013 as approved by the AMF with visa
number 13-292

August 2014 MAS Form of Final Terms for W&C
Securities

Pages 85 to 116 of the base prospectus of BNPP B.V.
dated 8 August 2014 as approved by the AMF with
visa number 14-458

July 2015 MAS Form of Final Terms for W&C
Securities

Pages 94 to 124 of the base prospectus of BNPP B.V.
and BNPP dated 1 July 2015 as approved by the AMF
with visa number 15-328

July 2016 MAS Form of Final Terms for W&C
Securities

Pages 194 to 225 of the base prospectus of BNPP B.V.
and BNPP dated 5 July 2016 as approved by the AMF
with visa number 16-293

February 2017 MAS Form of Final Terms for W&C
Securities

Page 184 of the supplement dated 28 February 2017 to
the base prospectus of BNPP B.V. and BNPP dated 5
July 2016 as approved by the AMF with visa number
17-078

July 2017 MAS Form of Final Terms for W&C
Securities

Pages 210 to 242 of the base prospectus of BNPP B.V.
and BNPP dated 3 July 2017 as approved by the AMF
with visa number 17-319
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February 2018 MAS Form of Final Terms for W&C
Securities

Page 172 of the supplement dated 21 February 2018 to
the base prospectus of BNPP B.V. and BNPP dated 3
July 2017 as approved by the AMF with visa number
18-055

July 2018 MAS Form of Final Terms for W&C
Securities

Pages 219 to 253 of the base prospectus of BNPP B.V.
and BNPP dated 5 June 2018 as approved by the AMF
with visa number 18-289

July 2019 MAS Form of Final Terms for W&C
Securities

Pages 208 to 242 of the base prospectus of BNPP B.V.
and BNPP dated 3 July 2019 as approved by the AMF
with visa number 19-313

BNP PARIBAS

BNPP 2018 REGISTRATION DOCUMENT (in English)

https://rates-globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/LegalDocs.aspx

2018 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Profit and loss account for the year ended 31
December 2018

Page 152 of the BNPP 2018 Registration Document
(in English)

Statement of net income and changes in assets and
liabilities recognised directly in equity

Page 153 of the BNPP 2018 Registration Document
(in English)

Balance sheet at 31 December 2018

Page 154 of the BNPP 2018 Registration Document
(in English)

Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 December
2018

Page 155 of the BNPP 2018 Registration Document
(in English)

Statement of changes in shareholders' equity between
1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018

Pages 156 and 157 of the BNPP 2018 Registration
Document (in English)

Notes to the financial statements prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union

Pages 158 to 269 of the BNPP 2018 Registration
Document (in English)

Statutory Auditors' report on the Consolidated
Financial Statements of BNP Paribas for the year
ended 31 December 2018

Pages 270 to 276 of the BNPP 2018 Registration
Document (in English)

BNPP 2019 UNIVERSAL REGISTRATION DOCUMENT (in English)

https://rates-globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/LegalDocs.aspx

Headings as listed by Annex | of European Commission Regulation (EC) No. 2017/1129

1. Persons Responsible

11 Person responsible for the Universal | Page 610 of the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration
Registration Document Document (in English)

1.2 Statement of the person responsible for the | Page 610 of the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration
Universal Registration Document Document (in English)

15 Approval from a competent authority Page 1 of the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration

Document (in English)
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2. Statutory auditors Page 608 of the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration
Document (in English)

3. Risk factors Pages 276 to 288 of the BNPP 2019 Universal
Registration Document (in English)

4, Information about the issuer Pages 4 and 5 of the BNPP 2019 Universal
Registration Document (in English)

5. Business overview

5.1 Principal activities Pages 6 to 16, 188 to 191 and 592 to 598 of the BNPP
2019 Universal Registration Document (in English)

5.2 Principal markets Pages 6 to 16, 188 to 191 and 592 to 598 of the BNPP
2019 Universal Registration Document (in English)

5.3 History and development of the issuer Page 5 of the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration
Document (in English)

5.4 Strategy and objectives Pages 136 to 138, 515 and 558 to 568 of the BNPP
2019 Universal Registration Document (in English)

55 Possible dependency Page 590 of the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration
Document (in English)

5.6 Basis for any statements made by the issuer | Pages 6 to 16 and 114 to 128 of the BNPP 2019

regarding its competitive position Universal Registration Document (in English)

5.7 Investments Pages 136, 238 to 241, 503, 556 and 557, 564 to 566
and 591 of the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration
Document (in English)

6. Organisational structure

6.1 Brief description Pages 4, 6, 576 and 577 of the BNPP 2019 Universal
Registration Document (in English)

6.2 List of significant subsidiaries Pages 249 to 257, 496 to 502 and 592 to 597 of the
BNPP 2019 Universal Registration Document (in
English)

7. Operating and financial review

7.1 Financial situation Pages 152, 154, 466 and 467 of the BNPP 2019
Universal Registration Document (in English)

7.2 Operating results Pages 114 to 128, 134, 135, 140 to 146, 152, 189 and

466 of the BNPP 2019 Universal
Document (in English)

Registration
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Capital resources

8.1 Issuer’s capital resources Pages 156, 157 and 491 of the BNPP 2019 Universal
Registration Document (in English)

8.2 Sources and amounts of cash flows Page 155 of the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration
Document (in English)

8.3 Borrowing requirements and  funding | Pages 138 and 416 to 430 of the BNPP 2019 Universal
structure Registration Document (in English)

8.4 Information regarding any restrictions on the | N/A
use of capital resources that have materially
affected, or could materially affect, the
issuer’s operations.

8.5 Anticipated sources of funds N/A

9. Regulatory environment Pages 267, 272 and 273 of the BNPP 2019 Universal

Registration Document (in English)
10. Trend information Page 138 of the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration
Document (in English)

11. Profit forecasts or estimates N/A

12, Administrative, management, and
supervisory bodies, and senior
management

121 Administrative and management bodies Pages 31 to 43 and 98 of the BNPP 2019 Universal

Registration Document (in English)

12.2 Administrative and management bodies’ | Pages 47, 48, 61, 62 and 72 to 94 of the BNPP 2019
conflicts of interest Universal Registration Document (in English)

13. Remuneration and benefits

13.1  Amount of remuneration paid and benefits in | Pages 72 to 97 and 226 to 233 of the BNPP 2019
kind granted Universal Registration Document (in English)

13.2  Total amounts set aside or accrued by the | Pages 72 to 97 and 226 to 233 of the BNPP 2019
issuer or its subsidiaries to provide pension, | Universal Registration Document (in English)
retirement, or similar benefits

14. Board practices

141 Date of expiry of the current terms of office | Pages 31 to 42 of the BNPP 2019 Universal

Registration Document (in English)

77




14.2 Information about members of the | N/A
administrative bodies’ service contracts with
the issuer
14.3 Information about the audit committee and | Pages 51 to 58 of the BNPP 2019 Universal
remuneration committee Registration Document (in English)
144 Corporate governance regime in force in the | Pages 44 to 49 of the BNPP 2019 Universal
issuer’s country of incorporation Registration Document (in English)
145 Potential material impacts on the corporate | Pages 31 to 42 of the BNPP 2019 Universal
governance Registration Document (in English)
15. Employees
15.1 Number of employees Pages 4, 540, 541 and 576 of the BNPP 2019 Universal
Registration Document (in English)
15.2 Shareholdings and stock options Pages 72 to 94, 175, 176, 545 and 546 of the BNPP
2019 Universal Registration Document (in English)
16. Major shareholders
16.1  Shareholders owning more than 5% of the | Pages 17 and 18 of the BNPP 2019 Universal
issuer’s capital or voting rights Registration Document (in English)
16.2 Existence of different voting rights Page 16 of the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration
Document (in English)
16.3  Control of the issuer Pages 17 and 18 of the BNPP 2019 Universal
Registration Document (in English)
16.4 Description of any arrangements, known to | Page 18 of the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration
the issuer, the operation of which may at a | Document (in English)
subsequent date result in a change of control
of the issuer
17. Related party transactions Pages 72 to 94, 246, 247, 604 and 605 of the BNPP
2019 Universal Registration Document (in English)
18. Financial information concerning the
issuer’s assets and liabilities,
financial position, and profits and losses
18.1 Historical financial information Page 4, 21, 113 to 258, 465 to 503 and 613 of the
BNPP 2019 Universal Registration Document (in
English)
18.2 Interim and other financial information N/A
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18.3  Auditing of historical annual financial | Pages 259 to 264 and 504 to 509 of the BNPP 2019
information Universal Registration Document (in English)
18.4 Pro forma financial information N/A
18.5 Dividend policy Pages 21, 24, 25, 115, 494 and 577 of the BNPP 2019
Universal Registration Document (in English)
18.6  Legal and arbitration proceedings Pages 236 and 237 of the BNPP 2019 Universal
Registration Document (in English)
18.7 Significant change in the issuer’s financial or | Page 591 of the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration
trading position Document (in English)
19. Additional information
19.1 Share capital Pages 16, 234 to 236, 484 to 487, 599 and 624 of the
BNPP 2019 Universal Registration Document (in
English)
19.2  Memorandum and articles of association Pages 599 to 603 of the BNPP 2019 Universal
Registration Document (in English)
20. Material contracts Page 590 of the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration
Document (in English)
21. Documents on display Page 590 of the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration

Document (in English)

2019 FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

Profit and loss account for the year ended 31
December 2019

Page 152 of the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration
Document (in English)

Statement of net income and changes in assets and
liabilities recognised directly in equity

Page 153 of the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration
Document (in English)

Balance sheet at 31 December 2019

Page 154 of the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration
Document (in English)

Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 December
2019

Page 155 of the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration
Document (in English)

Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity between
1 January 2018 and 31 December 2019

Pages 156 and 157 of the BNPP 2019 Universal
Registration Document (in English)

Notes to the financial statements prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union

Pages 158 to 258 of the BNPP 2019 Universal
Registration Document (in English)
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Statutory Auditors’ report on the Consolidated
Financial Statements of BNP Paribas for the year
ended 31 December 2019

Pages 259 to 264 of the BNPP 2019 Universal
Registration Document (in English)

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE BNPP 2019 UNIVERSAL REGISTRATION DOCUMENT (in English)

https://rates-globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/LegalDocs.aspx

3. Risk factors Pages 3 and 4 of the First Amendment to the BNPP
2019 Universal Registration Document (in English)
21, Documents on display Page 5 of the First Amendment to the BNPP 2019

Universal Registration Document (in English)

2 April 2020 BNPP Press Release

https://rates-globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/LegalDocs.aspx

Press Release of the BNP Paribas Board of Directors
meeting of 2 April 2020

Page 1 of the 2 April 2020 BNPP Press Release

SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE BNPP 2019 UNIVERSAL REGISTRATION DOCUMENT

(in English)
https://rates-globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/LegalDocs.aspx

2. Statutory auditors Page 106 of the Second Amendment to the BNPP 2019
Universal Registration Document (in English)

3. Risk factors Pages 76 to 79 of the Second Amendment to the BNPP
2019 Universal Registration Document (in English)

5. Business overview

54 Strategy and objectives Pages 18 and 37 of the Second Amendment to the
BNPP 2019 Universal Registration Document (in
English)

7. Operating and financial review

7.1 Financial situation Pages 3 to 71 and 74 of the Second Amendment to the
BNPP 2019 Universal Registration Document (in
English)

7.2 Operating results Pages 61 to 71 and 74 of the Second Amendment to
the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration Document (in
English)

8. Capital resources

8.1 Issuer’s capital resources Pages 55, 56, 74 and 80 to 84 of the Second
Amendment to the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration
Document (in English)
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8.3 Borrowing requirements and funding Page 17 of the Second Amendment to the BNPP 2019
structure Universal Registration Document (in English)

13. Remuneration and benefits

13.1 Amount of remuneration paid and benefits Pages 87 to 105 of the Second Amendment to the

in kind granted

BNPP 2019 Universal Registration Document (in
English)

13.2 Total amounts set aside or accrued by the
issuer or its subsidiaries to provide pension,
retirement, or similar benefits

Pages 87 to 105 of the Second Amendment to the
BNPP 2019 Universal Registration Document (in
English)

18. Financial information concerning the
issuer’s assets and liabilities, financial position,
and profits and losses

18.1 Historical financial information

Pages 61 to 71 and 74 of the Second Amendment to
the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration Document (in
English)

18.2 Interim and other financial information

Pages 61 to 71 and 74 of the Second Amendment to
the BNPP 2019 Universal Registration Document (in
English)

18.6 Legal and arbitration proceedings

Pages 85 and 86 of the Second Amendment to the
BNPP 2019 Universal Registration Document (in
English)

18.7 Significant change in the issuer’s financial
or trading position

Page 85 of the Second Amendment to the BNPP 2019
Universal Registration Document (in English)

21. Documents on display

Page 85 of the Second Amendment to the BNPP 2019
Universal Registration Document (in English)

THIRD AMENDMENT TO THE BNPP 2019 UNIVERSAL REGISTRATION DOCUMENT (in English)

https://rates-globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/LegalDocs.aspx

Approval by the AMF of the 2019 Universal
Registration Document, 1st Amendment and 2nd
Amendment to the 2019 Universal Registration
Document

Pages 3 and 4 of the Third Amendment to the BNPP
2019 Universal Registration Document (in English)

General Information

Page 5 of the Third Amendment to the BNPP 2019
Universal Registration Document (in English)

Statutory Auditors

Page 6 of the Third Amendment to the BNPP 2019
Universal Registration Document (in English)

BNP PARIBAS ISSUANCE B.V.
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2018 BNPP B.V. Annual Report

https://rates-globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/LegalDocs.aspx

Managing Director's Report Pages 3 and 4 of the 2018 BNPP B.V. Annual Report

Balance Sheet at 31 December 2018 Page 5 of the 2018 BNPP B.V. Annual Report

Profit & Loss Account for the year ended 31 | Page 6 of the 2018 BNPP B.V. Annual Report
December 2018

Cashflow Statement for the year ended 31 December | Page 7 of the 2018 BNPP B.V. Annual Report
2018

Shareholder's equity Page 8 of the 2018 BNPP B.V. Annual Report

Notes/Other Information Pages 9 to 19 of the 2018 BNPP B.V. Annual Report

Auditor's Report of the Financial Statements of BNPP | Pages 21 to 24 of the 2018 BNPP B.V. Annual Report
B.V. for the year ended 31 December 2018

2019 BNPP B.V. Annual Report

https://rates-globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/LegalDocs.aspx

Managing Director’s Report Pages 3 to 4 of the 2019 BNPP B.V. Annual Report

Balance Sheet at 31 December 2019 Page 5 of the 2019 BNPP B.V. Annual Report

Profit & Loss account for the year ended 31 December | Page 6 of the 2019 BNPP B.V. Annual Report
2019

Cashflow Statement for the year ended 31 December | Page 7 of the 2019 BNPP B.V. Annual Report
2019

Notes/Other Information Pages 8 to 16 of the 2019 BNPP B.V. Annual Report

Shareholder's equity Page 10 of the 2019 BNPP B.V. Annual Report

Auditor's Report of the Financial Statements of BNPP | Pages 17 to 21 of the 2019 BNPP B.V. Annual Report
B.V. for the year ended 31 December 2019

Information contained in the documents incorporated by reference other than information listed in the tables above
is for information purposes only.

Each Issuer will provide, free of charge, to each person to whom a copy of this Base Prospectus has been delivered,
upon the oral or written request of such person, a copy of any or all of the documents which are incorporated
herein by reference in (a), (b) or (c) above. Each of the documents incorporated by reference in (d) to (j) above
will only be made available by the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor (if applicable) to which such document relates.
Written or oral requests for such documents should be directed to the relevant Issuer at its principal office set out
at the end of this Base Prospectus.
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[FORM OF] FINAL TERMS FOR W&C SECURITIES
[The Base Prospectus expires on 1 July 2021 and the Issuer intends that the Base Prospectus will be
updated before expiry. The updated base prospectus will be available on [https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/LegalDocs.aspx].]*
FINAL TERMS DATED [@]
[BNP Paribas Issuance B.V.
(incorporated in the Netherlands)
(as Issuer)
[Legal entity identifier (LEI): 7245009UXRIGIRYOBR48]]
BNP Paribas
(incorporated in France)
(as [Issuer] / [Guarantor])
[Legal entity identifier (LEI): ROMUWSFPUSMPRO8K5P83]
[insert title of W&C Securities]
under the Note, Warrant and Certificate Programme
of BNP Paribas Issuance B.V. and BNP Paribas
The Base Prospectus received approval no. 20-298 on 1 July 2020

[BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C.

(as Manager)]

[Any person making or intending to make an offer of the W&C Securities may only do so[:

(i)

(i)

[Neither] [None of] the Issuer [nor], [the Guarantor or] any Manager has authorised, nor do they authorise, the

in those Non-exempt Offer Jurisdictions mentioned in Paragraph 33 of Part A below, provided such
person is a Manager or Authorised Offeror (as such term is defined in the Base Prospectus) and that such
the offer is made during the Offer Period specified in that paragraph and that any conditions relevant to

the use of the Base Prospectus are complied with; or

otherwise]? in circumstances in which no obligation arises for the Issuer[, the Guarantor] or any Manager
to publish a prospectus pursuant to Article 3 of the Prospectus Regulation or to supplement a prospectus

pursuant to Article 23 of the Prospectus Regulation, in each case, in relation to such offer.

making of any offer of W&C Securities in any other circumstances.]?

Include in respect of an issue of W&C Securities for which the public offer period spans an update to the Base Prospectus or the
Issue Date occurs after an update to the Base Prospectus where the public offer period concludes prior to the update to the Base

Prospectus.
Include this wording where a non-exempt offer of W&C Securities is anticipated.

Do not include if "Prohibition of Sales to EEA and UK Retail Investors — Legend" and the related selling restriction apply in all

jurisdictions at all times.
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[Investors should note that if a supplement to or an updated version of the Base Prospectus referred to below is
published at any time during the Offer Period (as defined below), such supplement or updated base prospectus, as
the case may be, will be published and made available in accordance with the arrangements applied to the original
publication of these Final Terms. Any investors who have indicated acceptances of the Offer (as defined below)
prior to the date of publication of such supplement or updated version of the Base Prospectus, as the case may be,
(the "Publication Date™) have the right within two working days of the Publication Date to withdraw their
acceptances.]*

4 Include in respect of issues of W&C Securities where the public offer period spans a supplement to the Base Prospectus or an
update to the Base Prospectus.
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PART A - CONTRACTUAL TERMS

[Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions set forth in the Base
Prospectus dated 1 July 2020 [, [the][each] Supplement[s] to the Base Prospectus published and approved on or
before the date of these Final Terms (copies of which are available as described below) and any other Supplement
to the Base Prospectus which may have been published and approved before the issue of any additional amount
of W&C Securities (the "Supplements™) (provided that to the extent any such Supplement (i) is published and
approved after the date of these Final Terms and (ii) provides for any change to the Conditions of the W&C
Securities such changes shall have no effect with respect to the Conditions of the W&C Securities to which these
Final Terms relate)] which [together] constitute[s] a base prospectus for the purposes of Regulation (EU)
2017/1129 (as amended or superseded, the "Prospectus Regulation™) (the "Base Prospectus™). This document
constitutes the Final Terms of the W&C Securities described herein for the purposes of the Prospectus Regulation
and must be read in conjunction with the Base Prospectus to obtain all the relevant information. [A summary of
the W&C Securities is annexed to these Final Terms.] [The Base Prospectus [and] [,] [any Supplement(s) to the
Base Prospectus] [and these Final Terms]® [is/are] available for viewing at [address] [and] [website] and copies
may be obtained free of charge at the specified offices of the Security Agents.]]

[The following alternative language applies if the W&C Securities are being issued pursuant to Conditions set
forth in a previous Base Prospectus that is incorporated by reference herein, such as the first tranche of an issue
which is being increased was issued under a Base Prospectus with an earlier date. N.B. when using a post — 1
July 2012 approved Base Prospectus to tap a previous issue under a previously approved Base Prospectus, the
final terms in the post — 1 July 2012 Base Prospectus may (and will if the previous issue was contemplated under
a pre — 1 July 2012 Base Prospectus) take a different form to the final terms used for the original issue being
tapped. The Conditions of the original issue being tapped should be reviewed to ensure that they would not
require the final terms documenting the further issue to include information which is no longer permitted in final
terms. Where the final terms documenting the further issue would need to include such information, it will not be
possible to tap using final terms and a drawdown prospectus (incorporating the original Conditions and final
terms) will instead need to be prepared.

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions (the "Conditions")
set forth in the Base Prospectus dated [original date] [, [the][each] Supplement][s] to it published and approved on
or before the date of these Final Terms (copies of which are available as described below) and any other
Supplement to it which may have been published and approved before the issue of any additional amount of W&C
Securities (the "Supplements") (provided that to the extent any such Supplement (i) is published and approved
after the date of these Final Terms and (ii) provides for any change to the Conditions of the W&C Securities such
changes shall have no effect with respect to the Conditions of the W&C Securities to which these Final Terms
relate)] which are incorporated by reference in the Base Prospectus dated [current date]. This document
constitutes the Final Terms of the W&C Securities described herein for the purposes of Regulation (EU)
2017/1129 (the "Prospectus Regulation™) and must be read in conjunction with the Base Prospectus dated
[current date] [and any Supplement[s] to it] to obtain all relevant information, which [together] constitute[s] a
base prospectus for the purposes of the Prospectus Regulation (the "Base Prospectus"), including the Conditions
incorporated by reference in the Base Prospectus. [A summary of the W&C Securities is annexed to these Final
Terms.][The Base Prospectus [and] [,] [any Supplement(s) to the Base Prospectus] [and these Final Terms]®
[is/are] available for viewing at [address] [and] [website] and copies may be obtained from [address].]

[The following alternative language applies in respect of issues of W&C Securities (a) where the public offer
period spans a supplement to the Base Prospectus or an update to the Base Prospectus or (b) where the public
offer period concludes prior to the publication of a supplement to the Base Prospectus or an update to the Base
Prospectus, but the Issue Date of the Securities occurs after such publication.

5 Include in respect of issues of W&C Securities that are listed.
Include in respect of issues of W&C Securities that are listed.

=
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Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions (the " Conditions")
set forth in the Base Prospectus dated [date][,][and][the][each] Supplement][s] to the Base Prospectus published
and approved on or before the date of these Final Terms (copies of which are available as described below)]
[notwithstanding the publication and approval of any [other] Supplement to the 2020 Base Prospectus (each a
"2020 Future Supplement™) which may have been published and approved after the date of these Final Terms
and before the [issue] [end of the public offer period] of the Securities to which these Final Terms relate)
([together,] the 2020 Base Prospectus")] [and/or] [an updated Base Prospectus (any Supplement(s) thereto, each
a "2021 Future Supplement"), which will replace the 2020 Base Prospectus (the "2021 Base Prospectus")] (the
date of any such publication and approval, each a "Publication Date"). This document constitutes the Final
Terms of the W&C Securities described herein for the purposes Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 (the "Prospectus
Regulation™) and [(i) prior to any Publication Date, must be read in conjunction with the 2020 Base Prospectus,
or (ii)] on and after any Publication Date must be read in conjunction with [the 2020 Base Prospectus, as
supplemented by any 2020 Future Supplement as at such date] [or, as applicable,] [the 2021 Base Prospectus , as
supplemented by any 2021 Future Supplement as at such date],] save in respect of the Conditions which are
extracted from the 2020 Base Prospectus to obtain all the relevant information. The 2020 Base Prospectus, as
supplemented, constitutes[, and the 2021 Base Prospectus will constitute,] a base prospectus for the purposes of
the Prospectus Regulation. [A summary of the W&C Securities is annexed to these Final Terms.] [The 2020
Base Prospectus[, as supplemented,] [and] [these Final Terms]’ [is/are] available[, and the 2021 Base
Prospectus will be available] for viewing at [address] [and] [website] and copies may be obtained from
[address].]

[Include whichever of the following apply or specify as "Not applicable”. Note that the numbering should remain
as set out below, even if "Not applicable™ is indicated for individual paragraphs or subparagraphs (in which case
the subparagraphs of the paragraphs which are not applicable can be deleted). Italics denote directions for
completing the Final Terms. However, such numbering may change where individual paragraphs or
subparagraphs are removed.]

References herein to numbered Conditions are to the terms and conditions of the relevant series of W&C Securities
and words and expressions defined in such terms and conditions shall bear the same meaning in these Final Terms
in so far as they relate to such series of W&C Securities, save as where otherwise expressly provided.

[When completing any final terms consideration should be given as to whether such terms or information
constitute "significant new factors" and consequently trigger the need for a supplement to the Base Prospectus
under Article 23 of the Prospectus Regulation.]

These Final Terms relate to the series of W&C Securities as set out in ""Specific Provisions for each Series" below.
References herein to "W&C Securities" shall be deemed to be references to the relevant W&C Securities that are
the subject of these Final Terms and references to "W&C Security" shall be construed accordingly.

SPECIFIC PROVISIONS FOR EACH SERIES

SERIES |[TRANC |NO.OF NO OF [NO. OF ISl [[COMM |[MNEMO |[CFI |[F[TY [ISSUE [CALL/ |[EXERCI |[[SCHEDULE [[EXERCIS |[RELEVANT [SHARE |SPECIFIED
NUMBE [HE W&C W&C WARRAN [N/ [ON NIC IS|PE [PRICE® PUT SE PRICE | D]] E JURISDICTIO [AMOUN [SECURITIE
R NUMBER [SECURITI |SECURITI (TS PER [ T|coDE CODE N |OF |PER REDEMPTIO |[PERIOD/ [N] T/ S
ES ISSUED |ES UNIT IND |W&C N DATE" DATE] DEBT PURSUANT
EX [[SECURI SECURIT [TO
TY/! Y SECTION
UNIT] AMOUN |871(m)"
|
! Include in respect of issues of W&C Securities that are listed.
8 DTC: CUSIP — include for U.S. Securities.
°, For Preference Share Certificates, the Issue Price is required to be par.
10 Applicable for Certificates
u Specify “Yes” if the W&C Securities are Specified Securities for the purpose of Section 871(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986.
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[e] [®] [e] [Up to][®] {[e]]* [®] |[®] QI [®] ([ [[®] |[linsert [call/ | [insert [e] [o11® [e]] [e] [Yes/No]
. currency] | put]] currency]
] [e]V/[[®]% [o1*
of the
Notional
Amount]
o] |rel el [Up tol[®] |[eTT" ORD] o |[®11 |[ |(®] |{insert |fcalll |Ginsert [[®] OIR Q] el [Yes/No]
° currency] [put]] currency]
1 [e])re1% [o11°
of the
Notional
Amount]

[(Where the Final Terms cover more than one series of W&C Securities, the table above should be completed for
all variables which will differ across the different series of W&C Securities. The relevant line item for any such
variable in the General Provisions below should include the following language: "See the Specific Provisions for
each Series [above]".)]

GENERAL PROVISIONS

The following terms apply to each series of W&C Securities:

Issuer: [BNP Paribas Issuance B.V.)]//[BNP Paribas]
[Guarantor: [BNP Paribas]]

Trade Date: [specify]

Issue Date [specify]

Consolidation: The W&C Securities are to be consolidated and form

a single series with the [insert title of rel